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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of China
Ever Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd (the “Company”), | hereby
present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Looking back into 2022, the general economies and the Group'’s
operations are still challenging as the continuous outbreak of the new
COVID-19 variant, Omicron, has led to serious disruptions in economic
activities in Hong Kong and China. However, we still reinforces our beliefs
to diversify the source of income and innovate our business to address
business risks brought by the constantly changing external environment.

On the other hand, our financial leasing segment performance has
remained weak under stringent regulatory requirements in the finance
lease industry in the PRC. In the course of exploring a new business
model, attention has been diverted to coping with the two defaulted
finance lease projects and one of the finance lease projects had been
devised the exit plans to get the segment off the hook. The litigation of an
alleged breach of a RMB200 million loan contract brought by a bank, we
had finalised the determination of financial impact from the judgement
with its PRC legal adviser and auditors. The Group recorded a net gain on
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost.

Moreover, we are actively working on some operational issues (such as
high cost profile) of manufacturing and sales of food additives business
in Liaoning by streamlining the manufacturing process and increasing
its productivity through set-up of new production line(s) in due course.
We are happy to see that the trail productivity was starting on the early of
2023. We will stick to our conservative and effective investment strategy to
generate stable income from idle funds of the investment segment without
increasing the liquidity risk and compromising opportunities of making
good investments.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

For the year under review, the financial leasing segment recorded a
segment profit of HK$75.0 million mainly driven by derecognition of
financial asset and financial liabilities from one of defaulted finance
lease projects on recourse basis (2021: segment loss of HK$42.2
million). The food additives business, being classified under others
in the segment information, recorded a net loss of HK$4.5 million in
2022 (2021: HK$11.6 million). The investment segment recorded a net
profit of HK$7.9 million in 2022 (2021: HK$2.5 million). The trading
segment, recorded a net loss of HK$7.1 million mainly due to written off
of inventories in Ever Grand Healthcare Company Limited (2021: profit
of HK$6.6 million). After taking into account of the corporate and other
expenses and finance cost of HK$29.5 million in 2022 (2021: HK$33.9
million), a net profit arising from share of results of associates in 2022 of
HK$1.6 million (2021: HK$21.3 million), loss of certain unallocated other
income, gains and losses of HK$0.4 million (2021: losses of HK$1.2
million), income taxation expense of HK$0.5 million in 2022 (2021:
HK$4.1 million), net gain on derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities at amortised cost of HK$169.4 million, the Group recorded a
net loss of HK$43.6 million (2021: net loss of HK$62.7 million) and a net
profit attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$7.0 million in 2022
(2021: net loss of HK$40.6 million).

FUTURE OUTLOOK

As all of us can finally move on from COVID-19 pandemic, 2023 will be
the year of full normalization where passengers and trade flow resume to
a large extent, may be toward pre-COVID levels in best case scenarios.
Reopening of mainland border should trigger exponential increase in
face-to-face discussion. The Group’s financial position have strengthened
further during the past year and therefore enable us to continue our
prudent approach to cautiously and diligently look for new potential growth
opportunities, undervalued assets and business expansion in order to
diversify the income sources and attain a long term growth.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TR
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On behalf of the Board of the Company, | hereby wish to extend my HAABREREARTEEZELEETREEN
gratitude for the hard work contributed by all the staff and the Directors, ~ WAZROEE > RESMFIRIFES S H > BRFEF A
as well as the support to the Company from all our customers, creditors, BIZPBEEA X SEB LR R K
business partners and the shareholders. We will adhere to proven  #f{FIAA SIS - RIS RA BN SR
management strategy, grasp market trend and opportunities, and  5RE& > HIEHIZBEANIKE  KREARFRIEE
endeavour to bring greater value to our shareholders and make new SI{E(E > AtEIELIHSE

contribution to the community.

Wong Lik Ping FE
Chairman FHFE
Hong Kong, 29 March 2023 EF8 B =ZF=RA"+AhH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded revenue of HK$77.8 million in the year ended 31
December 2022 (“2022") as compared to that of HK$123.6 million in the
year ended 31 December 2021 (“2021"). The Group recorded a gross
profit of HK$14.3 million in 2022 as compared to the gross loss of HK$3.8
million in 2021 and net profit of HK$43.6 million in 2022 as compared to
the net loss of HK$62.7 million in 2021.

For the year under review, the financial leasing segment of the Group
(the “Financial Leasing Segment”) has contributed a segment profit of
HK$75.1 million, as compared to a segment loss of HK$42.2 million in
2021. For the definition of segment profit or loss and detailed analysis,
please refer to note 6 in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for 2022. The decrease in loss is mainly due to recognise of one-
off net gain on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortised cost of approximately HK$169.4 million, the directors of the
Company after taking into account the legal advice, determined that the
Group does not retained any contractual rights to the cash flows from the
finance lease receivables and the associate obligations due to bank are
discharged which is under litigation in 2021.

During 2022, the Group operated the business of manufacturing
and sale of solid sorbitol in the first half of 2022 and compound food
additives in its food additives business and it was starting to manufacture
Chlamydonas Reinhardtii Nutritional powder in the second half of 2022
(the “Food Additives Segment”). The Group also engaged in research
and development of new products such as Advantame, highly extreme
sweeteners and EPS, clinic diagnostic reagent. During the year under
review, the segment recorded a net loss of HK$7.6 million in 2022,
representing a decrease of HK$4.0 million from a net loss of HK$11.6
million in 2021. The decrease in loss is mainly attributable to change of
gross loss of HK$3.2 million recorded in 2021 to gross profit of HK$0.5
million recorded in 2022.

The investment segment of the Group (the “Investment Segment”)
recorded a net profit of HK$12.0 million in 2022 as compared to a net
profit of HK$2.5 million in 2021. The increase in net profit was mainly due
to (1) an increase in gain on change in fair value of investment properties
by HK$27.6 million, as a result from a loss of HK$10.7 million in 2021 to
a gain of HK$16.9 million in 2022; and offset by (2) an increase in loss
on fair value change of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
by HK$20.5 million, as a result from a gain of HK$5.7 million recorded in
2021 to loss of HK$14.8 million recorded in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
RS

During the year under review, the Group engaged in trading business.
The trading segment of the Group includes (i) it carries out production,
wholesale, distribution and trading of daily necessities, including personal
care and sanitising products as well as face masks under its own brand or
as original equipment manufacturer (OEM) for other brands and related
commercial activities in Hong Kong and (ii) sale of medical and health
products in Hong Kong. It recorded a net loss of HK$7.1 million in 2022
as compared to a net profit of HK$6.6 million in 2021 and it was mainly
due to write-off of inventories of HK$7.2 million in 2022.

After taking into account of the corporate and other expenses and finance
cost of HK$29.0 million in 2022 (2021: HK$33.9 million), a net profit
arising from share of results of associates in 2022 of HK$1.6 million
(2021: net profit of HK$21.3 million), loss of certain unallocated other
income, gains and losses of HK$0.7 million (2021: losses of HK$1.2
million), income taxation expense of HK$0.5 million in 2022 (2021:
HK$4.1 million), the Group recorded a net profit of HK$43.6 million
(2021: net loss of HK$62.7 million) and a net profit attributable to the
owners of the Company of HK$7.0 million in 2022 (2021: net loss of
HK$40.6 million).

A significant decrease in net loss from HK$62.7 million in 2021 to net
profit of HK$43.6 million in 2022 was primarily due to (i) net gain on
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost;
and (i) the impairment loss recognized on loan receivables.

Revenue and gross profit

During the year, the Financial Leasing Segment recorded revenue
and gross loss of HK$6.0 million and HK$10.0 million respectively
(2021: revenue of HK$3.2 million and gross loss of HK$27.5 million),
representing a increase of 88% in revenue and an decrease of 64% in
gross loss as compared to the previous year. The revenue of this segment
mainly represents (i) service fee income for financing arrangement and
consultancy services and (i) interest income generated from financial
leasing and provision of loan facilities. The cost of sales mainly represents
(i) service cost to banks and other non-bank financial institutions on
various kinds of factoring and consultancy services and (i) interest
expenses on back-to-back borrowings from banks and other non-bank
financial institutions. The main customer base primarily includes large
corporations covering industries of energy resources, manufacturing,
transportation and public utility construction, property management and
education sectors.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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During the year, the segment revenue continued to shrink as a result of
lack of completed conventional finance lease transactions and the service
fee income therefrom under an unfavorable operating environment in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Against the backdrop of
the stringent regulatory oversight of the finance lease industry and its
resulting difficulties to source back-to-back credit from banks to leverage
prospective transactions, the Group has cautiously applied its own capital
to finance the business in this segment and thus reduced the business
volume. The gross loss was incurred primarily because of the negative
net interest spread of two financial leasing projects on recourse basis
where the interest cost accrued from the borrowings was greater than the
income from the respective defaulted receivables. The magnitude of such
outnumbered the gross profit of the segment and even the Group’s and
consequently turned them into a gross loss position.

Under the Investment Segment, the money lending business and property
development recorded revenue and gross profit both at HK$9.1 million in
2022 (2021: both at HK$11.2 million), representing a decrease of 19% in
both from those of 2022, respectively.

The revenue in this segment represents loan interest income from
the provision of loan facilities carried out by a licensed subsidiary of
the Company in Hong Kong and rental income from letting out office
properties in Hong Kong, Shanghai and Liaoning in the PRC. The
decrease in the segment revenue and gross profit is mainly due to early
settlement of loan receivables during the year and a waiver of rental
income for a three months period from June to August 2022.

The business from the Food Additives Segment recorded revenue of
HK$2.1 million (2021: HK$5.7 million) and gross profit of HK$0.5
million in 2022 (2021: gross loss of HK$3.2 million). The revenue and
cost of sales of the business mainly represent the sales income and
manufacturing cost of solid sorbitol from the production base in the
Liaoning province, the PRC in the first half of 2022 respectively. Due
to lack of economy of scale as a result of started to terminate the solid
Sorbitol Production line in the second half of 2022, the Food Additives
Segment incurred a slightly gross profit in 2022 from gross loss in 2021.

The Trading Segment recorded revenue and gross profit of HK$60.5
million and HK$14.7 million in 2022 (2021: revenue of HK$103.5 million
and gross profit of HK$15.7 million). The decrease in the segment
revenue in 2022 was mainly due to a decrease in trading volume of
medical and health products and the gross profit is mainly due to high
mark-up at cost in December 2022 and hence slightly decreased by
6.4%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
m@@ uTuRHBl \1:)?

The overall decrease in the Group’s revenue and the increase in the
Group’s gross profit was mainly due to the significant decrease in the
revenue of the Trading Segment and Food Additives Segment due to sales
volume was decreased and affected by the macro-economic environment.
The significant improvement from gross loss in 2021 to gross profit
in 2022 was mainly due to reversal of net interest spread from one of
financial leasing projects, the Group turnout resulted in gross profit in
2022.

Other income

The other income of the Group in 2022 mainly comprised of dividend
income, government subsidies, interest income from trust products
and highly liquid wealth management investments issued by non-bank
financial institutions in the PRC and bank interest income. The increase
was primarily due to the increase in dividend income and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and government subsidies.

Other gains and losses

The other gains and losses in 2022 amounted to a net gain of HK$160.5
million (2021: net loss of HK$12.5 million), mainly comprising of fair value
gain on investment properties of HK$16.9 million, a fair value loss on a
financial assets at FVTPL of HK$27.7 million and further being offset by
one-off net gain on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
at amortised cost of HK$169.4 million. Please refer to note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements for breakdown and their changes for the
2022 and the comparative figures in 2021.

Administrative expenses and other operating expenses

The Group’s administrative and other operating expenses for the year
mainly included staff costs (including directors and chief executive's
emoluments) of HK$34.3 million (2021: HK$40.1 million), legal and
professional, depreciation of property, plant and equipment and various
administrative expenses. The Group’s administrative expenses and other
operating expenses remains stable attributed by a decrease in staff costs,
an increase in selling expenses for trading segment and a donation made
to Tenant of Public Housing Care Association during 2022.

Share of associates’ results

The share of results of associates amounted to a net profit of HK$1.6
million in 2022 as compared with a net profit of HK$21.3 million in 2021.
The result was mainly due to the decrease in the sharing of profits of Top
Insight and Simagi of HK$0.2 million and HK$1.4 million as compared
with HK$18.8 million and HK$0.3 million in 2021 respectively.
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Income taxation

Income tax expense for the year amounted to HK$0.5 million (2021:
HK$4.1 million), mainly comprising of (i) a deferred tax credit of HK$0.1
million and (ii) a provision for current tax for current and prior years of
HK$0.6 million in Hong Kong.

FINANCIAL POSITION

The total asset amount of the Group as at 31 December 2022 amounted
to HK$801.3 million, representing a decrease of HK$280.2 million
as compared with HK$1,081.5 million as at 31 December 2021. The
decrease in total asset was mainly due to derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost and fair value losses on
equity investments at FVTOCI and impairment on loan receivables. As
at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total liabilities dropped by HK$301.1
million to HK$264.7 million from HK$565.8 million as at 31 December
2021, while the Group’s total borrowings dropped by HK$271.1 million to
HK$152.6 million from HK$423.7 million as at 31 December 2021.

The gearing ratios (which is calculated from the total liabilities over total
asset) significantly decreased from 52.3% as at 31 December 2021
to 33.0% as at 31 December 2022 due to offset a financial asset and
a financial liability and the net amount presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position as the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts in Qinghai project.
The current ratios (which is calculated from total current assets over total
current liabilities) increased from 0.9 as at 31 December 2021 to 1.3 as at
31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
RS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposits, deposits placed with non-bank financial
institutions and short-term bank deposits of approximately HK$88.3
million (of which HK$17.0 million was pledged to the banks to secure
bank borrowings granted to the Group for financial leasing business
(2021: HK$18.4 million)) as compared to HK$55.3 million as at 31
December 2021. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had bank and
other borrowings amounting to HK$152.6 million (2021: HK$411.4
million), HK$nil (2021: HK$12.3 million) which are due within one year of
interest rates at 9.0% (2021: 4.75% to 9.0%) respectively.

For the prior year, the Group has financed its operations with facilities
provided by banks and other non-bank financial institutions, capital
injection from a non-controlling shareholder of a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and internally generated cash flows.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had no material
exposure to fluctuation in exchange rates in foreign currency as material
transactions such as revenue and cost of sales were denominated in local
currencies in which the relevant entities operated. The Group did not enter
into any foreign exchange hedging transactions or instruments during
2022.

FINANCING BUSINESS AND CREDIT
EXPOSURE

The Group's major credit risk is primarily attributable to finance lease
receivables and loan receivables.

They are mostly derived from two types of money lending services, namely
the financial leasing services in the PRC carried out by non-wholly owned
subsidiaries (namely, Beijing Ever Grand International Financial Leasing
Co. Limited (“BJEG”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, “BJEG Group”))
and the loan financing services carried out by TF Advances Limited (“TF
Advances”) in Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRI i B AT

The financial leasing service in the PRC P EIR AR B E RS
Business model EHERL

BJEG Group principally engages in the provision of finance lease JtRIEREEFEHTHEBNIZMRESEERK
and related consultancy services in the PRC. The principal mode of  1EREE:4:0ARTS c FHiR M BREN T EERAE
finance lease offered is the sale-and-leaseback model. The principal — BFALIER - EFE L BB R EIBZER T
loan amounts are back-to-back sourced from peers or banks to the HREZESBITHRENHEERSBIATLE
customers on recourse or non-recourse basis. For recourse financing, H TEBZEEREMS MEGZHBBERIE
the financing agreement contains a recourse clause pursuant to which, 3 ¥t > B4 BREETUEEZ =M (EERE
upon occurrence of events (the “Recourse Events”) specified under ) % BREMEH BB A EHRRERERE
the recourse clause, the ultimate lender has the right to transfer the A ZEHRIFR S (U R 2 FEWEIEE 2 (0]
outstanding receivable of periodic lease payments due from the lessee IERIEZEE tRIEEZEEFERASEENE X
during the lease term back to the BJEG Group, and the BJEG Group will (& 2BAE S HAFT iR S ok X (T FEWE BT S 1
pay the ultimate lender an amount equal to such outstanding receivable ~ FRZ FUB- ptEBREREBMS » BEBEHSE
of periodic lease payments transferred. For non-recourse financing, % ItRIEREEHERNEHES 2 EME
upon occurrence of the Recourse Events, the BJEG Group would not be  EBZEREEHIARIES T AN GEEREHGE
liable for any damages and losses suffered by the ultimate lender. Due to  BEFEREHLEVSHH S ERUEIREHREES
difficulty to source back-to-back borrowing to finance the finance leases ~ Z<EEFHRTIU BB B S BT ILF TS -

under the tightening regulatory requirements, they have been recently

funded by the Group's own capital.

BJEG Group’s target customers in the PRC mainly include sizable JtRIE=&EEEFENBEEERTIEEIERE
and asset-intensive institutional customers covering industries ranging  AEIRER 845 iE N AR RS WS
from the energy resources, manufacturing, transportation, public utility —REEFTENARE BETERMERZS
construction, property management and education sectors. Most JIRIBEEEBETEIERNNAZSHERTHEBL
customers of BJEG Group in the PRC are sought after through (a) FAVBEBMRK [(aIRAEF IRITHEIZEMNE
referrals from business partners of existing customers, banks or peers, FEETEBAERE (b1t RIE=EEPEEELN
(b) marketing and sales effort from BJEG Group’s operation division in the — FiBHEERINE TEMUR(C)SEE SR ESIEE
PRC, and (c) business connections from the Group’s senior management.  FUBG 484K o

Internal control procedures A EBIEF R T

BJEG Group has taken the following internal control measures in carrying  EHEREREERARET  RIEEZEREH
out the financial leasing business: EXUN T AR EEIHE T
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
RS

Credit risk assessment of customers

0)

The operation division of the BJEG Group evaluates the
background and the credit worthiness of any new customers by
considering its financial position, market share, background of
shareholders and business reputation. The BJEG Group also takes
into consideration their business strategies in the future and their
expansion plan. After assessment, the Operation Division will make
application and the management of the BJEG Group will decide
whether to make quotation and the proposed terms of the finance
lease based on the application, source of funding, preliminary risk
of the application and assessment of costs to be incurred by the
Finance and Treasury Division.

Mechanism in determining loan terms

(i)

After preliminary approval by the management, the operation
division of the BJEG Group will carry out due diligence and checks
on creditworthiness. The BJEG Group studies and analyses the
background of the customer including its operating history and
shareholders and other financial information. Specific needs in
respect of the type and specification requirements of the assets
will also be studied and compared with the BJEG Group's historical
and market records. After due diligence, the operation division
of the BJEG Group will provide preliminary quotation for client'’s
consideration based on the estimated cost of capital, return
assessment and approval by the management.

The BJEG Group will also evaluate different transaction structures
and the relevant leasing and financing options. Lease terms
including time frame, the amount of the lease payment, the
payment schedule, and financing terms including interest rate,
duration and the amount of financing will also be considered for
the purpose of making an overall assessment of the legal and
operational risks of a particular transaction. Interest rate risk,
counterparty and credit risk, the level of debt, and the residual
value risk of the subject assets will also be assessed at this stage.
Cash flow analysis will also be performed to assess the financial
impact of the transaction.

In evaluating a finance lease transaction, the BJEG Group will
assess the profitability and the return on investment, the counter-
party risk, leverage risk, and the residual value risk.
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The BJEG Group will proceed to obtain preliminary indications
from the financial institutions for the financing arrangements (if
any). The BJEG Group will generally require indications from
at least two financial institutions on the proposed financing
arrangements.

Approval process for granting loans

(iif)

After confirmation of principal terms with the customers, the
operation division of the BJEG Group will make a final application
and notify the finance and treasury division of the BJEG Group.
With reference to the opinion from external legal adviser, the
general manager will conduct the final assessment of the risk of
the finance lease application and consider recommending it or not
to the board of BJEG, the legal representative of TJ Ever Grand to
approve it accordingly.

After the approval by the board of BJEG, the legal representative
of TJ Ever Grand, the operation division of the BJEG Group will
then proceed to prepare the agreement and relevant document
on the basis of the negotiated and approved terms of the asset
acquisition, lease and the financing of the finance lease (if any).
The relevant documents will be reviewed by the finance and
treasury division of the BJEG Group and external legal adviser for
comments.

Following the determination of the specifications and the detailed
terms of the financing arrangements (if any), the BJEG Group will
proceed to coordinate with different parties for the finance lease
and financing. The process represents the collaborative efforts of
different departments to ensure that all the related arrangements
will be completed according to the planned schedule.

The finance and treasury division of the BJEG Group grants
financing according to the financing conditions and timetable
of the signed finance lease agreement and the financing of the
finance lease agreement (if any).

All the finance leases will be subject to a further approval by the
board of the Company if an applied amount triggers the disclosure
or shareholder’'s approval obligation of the Company under the
Chapter 13, 14 or 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
m@@ uTuRHBl \1:)?

Monitoring loan repayment and recovery

(iv)

The operation division and finance and treasury division of the
BJEG Group monitors the receipt of the lease payment from the
customers, and closely monitors if there is any delay in the lease
payment by the customers and follow-up actions to be taken
promptly in case of such delay. The BJEG Group will monitor if
there is any breach of covenant and assess the consequential
impact in case of the occurrence of any breach of covenant.

The operation division of the BJEG Group will closely monitor the
financial condition of the lessees and the guarantors (collectively,
the “Obligors”), requesting financial statements of the Obligor
semi-annually and keeping track of the Obligors in public domain
for analysis, in order to monitor the financial position and the
operating condition of the Obligors. If and when there are some
adverse changes in credit risk in the Obligors based on internal
risk evaluation and/or occurrence of delayed payments, on-site
checks at the Obligors’ premise will be carried out to check the
operating condition of the Obligors, project progress and condition
of the leased assets, all of which will be documented accordingly.
The BJEG Group will obtain the relevant information on the
operating and credit condition of the lessee and condition of the
leased assets through ongoing monitoring, industry analysis, online
information, newspaper and research report, in order to evaluate
the creditability of the lessees and identify any potential default risk
and based on the result of such evaluations, to timely implement
measures such as on-site checks (if and when necessary),
replenishment of leased assets, amendments to the terms of the
lease agreement, seizure of the leased assets or termination of the
lease agreement.

In addition, the BJEG Group also closely monitors the operating
and credit condition of the customers in order to assess the
creditworthiness of the customer and to identify any potential risk
of default.

As part of the on-going monitoring process, the BJEG Group also
explores opportunities to realise their investments in finance lease
receivable through different financing strategies.
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Taking actions on delinquent loans

(v) If the customer of leasing project is overdue, the operation division,
finance and treasury division and the project leaders of the BJEG
Group will keep a close contact with customers and creditors to
keep the relevant parties informed of the current development and
seek a proper solution to resolve or mitigate the risk exposure of
the BJEG Group.

Upon the enquiry to the customer, the BJEG Group may at its own
discretion grant a limited time extension, usually not exceeding
three months to the customer. Upon passing the time extension
period, the BJEG Group will send demand letters to the defaulting
customers.

In the event of a default, the BJEG Group may also negotiate
settlement proposals with the customer. Where settlement
proposals cannot be agreed, or where the customer fails to
honour the commitments under the settlement proposals, or the
customer lost contact with the BJEG Group, the BJEG Group may
institute legal proceedings against the customer and may, seek
to realise the property for public auction to recover the principal
and outstanding interest. In determining the time extension, the
settlement proposals and the possible enforcement action, we will
have regard to, amongst other things, (i) the loan-to-value ratio of
the loan (including interest), (ii) the costs of legal action, and (iii)
the probability and ability of realizing the underlying securities.

The loan financing services in Hong Kong

Business model

TF Advances is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and a licenced
money lender under the Money Lender Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), which principally engages in the provision of loan
financing service in Hong Kong by providing unsecured or secured loan
to its customers. TF Advances generally utilises its internal working capital
as the loan principal. TF Advances’s target customers in Hong Kong
include individuals and institutional clients. Most loan transactions of TF
Advances in Hong Kong are sought after through (a) referrals from its
existing customers or business partners, and (b) business connections of
the Group’s senior management.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
m@@ uTuRHBl \1:)?

Internal control procedures

Credit risk assessment of customers;

TF Advances has taken the following internal control measures in carrying
out the loan financing business:

0)

An eligible client could be a corporate or an individual whose
creditworthiness and loan collateral are evaluated and approved by
the finance department, legal department and the chief executive
officer of TF Advances (collectively, the “Management Team”).
All the loans will be required to be further approved by the board
of the Company if an applied loan amount is over HK$25 million
or an amount that would trigger the disclosure or shareholder’s
approval obligation of the Company under the Chapter 13, 14 or
14A of the Listing Rules, whichever is the lower (collectively, the
“Threshold”).

Upon receiving the applicant’s particulars and loan terms
documented in a loan application form, TF Advances will
obtain proof of identity, background and contact details from
the applicant for verification. TF Advances will also conduct
background search and credit search against the applicants
and guarantor (in case of any personal or corporate guarantee).
TF Advances will also follow the money laundering and terrorist
financing prevention procedures in the course of collection and
verification of information about their backgrounds. If there is any
collateral such as pledge of real estate property, TF Advances
will perform preliminary valuation and validity check on the legal
titles of the collateral to be pledged. In case of low liquidity of the
collateral, we may consider engaging independent surveyor or
valuer to conduct a valuation.

Mechanism in determining loan terms

(i)

The operation team of TF Advances will determine the offer terms
of the loan such as the amount and the interest rate of the loan
and the period of repayment, on a case-by-case basis considering
the applicant’s background and other factors (if applicable) such
as the following:

a) Tenor of the loan;
b) Any personal or corporate guarantee;
c) Any encumbrances on the collateral and its liquidity and

marketability;
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d) Valuation of the mortgaged real estate (if any);

e) Salary income proof, duration of current employment,
personal net worth for individual customers;

f) Financial position and performance on the latest auditor's
report/management accounts;

g) Proposed use of proceeds;

h) Benchmarking performed by obtaining quotations of the
prospective loans in kind by other peers.

After collecting all necessary information about the applicants
and the loans, a credit assessment form will be completed and
submitted to the Management Team for approval.

Approval process for granting loans

(iif)

The Management Team will approve the application if they think
fit based on the results of the background checks, borrower’s/
guarantor’s repayment ability, and legal searches and valuation of
collateral. Prior to the approval of the application, the Management
Team may also consult the independent non-executive directors
of the Company for their independent view and professional
judgement on the loan application. In addition, the financial
controller of the Company will assess the cash position of the
Company to ensure the sufficiency of working capital of the
Company.

It is a policy of TF Advances that the loan amount should normally
not be more than 100% of the market value of the collateral and/
or not be more than 5-years of total forecasted salary income/net
profits. Should there be any shortfall, TF Advances may request
personal guarantees from the borrower’s directors and/or ultimate
beneficial shareholders (in case the borrower is a company).
Additional approval from the Board is required when the applied
loan amount exceeds the Threshold.

After obtaining the internal approval, TF Advances will enter into
the loan agreements with the borrowers and/or guarantors. TF
Advances may also instruct it external legal consultant for the
preparation and execution of the required legal documents.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
RS

Monitoring loan repayment and recovery

(iv)

Upon the loan agreements being entered into, the finance
department of TF Advances will mark the date of repayments of
each loan. One week before the payment due date, a notice for
demand is served to borrower. When it is overdue, an overdue
notice will be brought to the attention of senior management of TF
Advances for further consideration.

At each year end, a valuation of collateral is performed to ensure
the sufficiency of loan-to-value ratio at least reaching 100%.
At each end date of the bi-annual reporting period on 30 June
and 31 December of each year, the finance department of
TF Advances will obtain an updated statement of collaterals
or financial statements of borrower and guarantors (if any) for
evaluation of credit worthiness.

Taking actions on delinquent loans

(v)

When the loan is overdue, the finance department of TF Advances
will contact the borrower and guarantor (if any) to remind them
of the possible enforcement action(s) and timing of repayment
and seeking reasons for the delay in payment. Depending on the
reasons given by the borrower, TF Advances may at its discretion
grant some time extension for a period usually not exceeding 3
months.

When the loan is overdue for more than 1 month, a written notice
for demanding repayment will be served to the borrower and
guarantor (if any).

When the loan is overdue for more than 3 months, a demand
letter will be served to the borrower and guarantor (if any). If
no concrete response is received, legal proceedings may be
commenced against the borrower and guarantor (if any). TF
Advances may also apply to court for freezing and/or disposing of
the collaterals.

Normally settlement proposals like rescheduling the repayment
schedule would be negotiated between the defaulted customer
and TF Advances. However, such repayment schedule shall be
approved by the director(s) of TF Advances. Further approval from
the Board will be required, if the repayment proposal involves a
change in principal terms of any transaction which exceeds the
Threshold or triggers any other requirements under the Listing
Rules.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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TOP FIVE BORROWERS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B A T

AAAERA

The following table sets out the top five borrowers of the Group and the N3R5 HEAEB R A LERNAKEHEE RN
respective gross principal terms of finance lease receivables (“FL”) and ~ ((RAZEME) MEHME (B SENEE

loan financing (“Loan”): 4R
As at Percentage As at Percentage
31 December tothe 31 December to the
2022 total gross 2021 total gross
Principal principal Principal principal
Amount amount Amount amount
RIEZZ -
+ZA +ZA
=+—8 fhFgEE =t—H rERE
Type of Interest rate, term, maturity and by ] B KEH B
receivable securities obtained HK$'000 HK$'000
EURER  AE R DBAREENAR F#7 TR
Gross:
Customer 1 - Sanya Loan 9% per annum, 1-year ended in Jan 2020, secured by
leased aviation facilities and others and guaranteed by
its holding company. 152,645 68.8% 165,631 29.2%
®Rl-=& £ FRR% BE_Z_TFE-AAR—F hHEHR
R RE MR A HER AT ERe
Customer 2 FL 11.15% per annum, 2 to 3 years ending in Nov 2023
and Aug 2024, secured by leased equipment and
guaranteed by its former holding company. 33,921 15.2% 36,807 6.5%
ER2 RMEHE ENRIL% BE_ - ZE+-AR_E_NE
NAABRME=F RAEREFERLREA
FERR A AR
Customer 3 FL 10.14% per annum, 2 years ending in Dec 2023, secured
by leased equipment. 7,915 3.6% 8,088 1.5%
®R3 RMEHEE ENRI4% BE_E_ZE+_AANME A
THERBFRE.
Customer 4 FL 6.69% per annum, 1 year ending in Nov 2023, secured
by leased equipment. 7,915 3.6% - -
&R4 MERE FERER6A% BE_S_=ZF+—FAP—5H
THERE LA
Customer 5 FL 6.69% per annum, 1 year ending in Nov 2023, secured
by leased equipment. 7,915 3.6% - -
&F5 REHEE FEFR6A% BE_T_ZF+—BAP—5H
THEREFLR
Others - Qinghai FL 5.46% per annum, 5-years ending in April 2023, secured
by leased machinery and guaranteed by its ultimate
holding company. - - 245,380 43.3%
Hi—&% RMEHRE FRES46% BET = FINBABRE Al
ERmMIEEART R SRR ERATIER.
Others Loan 10% per annum, 1-year ending in Jan 2023, secured
by a share charge by a chargor company in which
Customer 3 indirectly owned 90% equity interest. - - 56,000 9.9%
Hi e FREIR HEZZ_=F—FAAH—HF A%A3
B ER0WREN AL ARNRAERIELR-
Others FL 4.75% per annum, 5-years ending Jan 2022, secured by
leased machineries and security deposit. - - 12,269 2.2%
Hih REHEE ENRLT% BE_S-_F—-FARRE H
B RE SRR
Others - treasury Loan
investment (Note 5) 11,593 5.2% 42,451 74%
Hii—E2KE () &R
Total gross principal amount 221,904 100% 567,126 100%

KEHE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
RS

EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS (“ECL”) OF FINANCE RiESfiEEWGREKEZZ

LEASE AND LOAN RECEIVABLES TRHRE B #5418 (TFRERIE & R518))
The following table sets out the details of ECL of finance lease and loan TR FIRIER ERERTRERE R FBHAE
receivables: SRS
As at As at
31 December Percentage 31 December Percentage
2022 to the 2021 tothe
Amount of total Amount of total
Provision provision Provision provision
RIEZZHF RIZZ—-&F
+=A +-A

=t-B (hRHEEE =t+—B RGERE
BEEE BAL BRtE [Epi)in

Type of ECL Stage for
receivable 2022 balance Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FEWHER —SIEERZRBEEGE/BE M FTHEx TR
Gross:
EEE
Less: Provision for
impairment losses
B ORERR
Customer 1 - Sanya Loan 3 Note 1 (152,645) 94.2% (103,059) 40.4%
BRl-=% £ fiizEL
Customer 2 FL 1 Note 2 (5,314) 3.2% (3,681) 1.4%
BR2 RMEEE fizk2
Customer 3 FL 1 Note 3 (1,583) 1.0% (1,227) 0.5%
®F3 MEEE MizE3
Customer 4 FL 1 Note 4 (113) 0.1% - -
R4 RMEBEHRE fifzE4
Customer 5 FL 1 Note 4 (113) 0.1% - -
EF5 RMBHE e
Others - Qinghai FL 3 - - (144,774) 56.7%
Hit—58 RMBEHRE
Others - treasury investment
(Note 5) (2,261) 1.4% (2,454) 1.0%
Hi—E2K & (H:5)
Total provision (162,029) 100% (255,195) 100%
BfERE
Total net amount 59,875 311,931
B3

2 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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Basis of Assessment of ECL

ECL assessment on receivables are performed individually based on
probability-weighted expected credit losses of multiple possible events
(“PWECL") model adopted in accordance with HKFRS 9, which involves
4 key parameters, namely (i) Exposure at default (“EAD"); (i) probability
of default (“PD"); (iii) Loss given default (“LGD”) or 100% minus recovery
rate upon default (“Recovery Rate”); and (iv) discount rate. The depth of
PWECL model depends on the year end status of recoverability of each
receivables which are classified into 3 stages from the lowest stage 1 to
the highest stage 3 further set out in note 35 and summarised as below.
References are made to an announcement dated 3 September 2021 for

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B A T

FRHEEERZFHEE

RFEEBYHREERFS  RAZEA
EHNERINETRREERHE (BXINERR
EEEER)) BE BB EYRIERNTERE
&R By RIERRS 8 BIGEXM O
(TEADJ) ;(iZZ#IBE= (TPD ) ;(iii)iE? ’]?59%?‘7
(TLGD J) 3¢100%AEXEIHE (TRIRZ)) ;

(ivVAEIRZ - PWECLIR AU AU 3R VHR/?BTIEW@H&
FRIERYE AR PR EIR R - WH&TAIE’“EZ%MIB
B It RENEIIERERSIFEEE CE—

SFIBEACHIEESS) AN T E%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁzﬁﬂf
THB FERARA T —FNA

Length of assessment

FHER R

capital terms used and further details. A iE—
= E Z/_\tl:

Type of stage Year end status of recoverability

PEEZHEERY FRATURE T

Stage 1 The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have any

12 month ECL

past-due amounts, or debtor frequently repays after due dates but

usually settle after due date
PSR
BEEREEENIAEBES

HFEFHNENRRETETAEARTE NEFALE

REEEE  12ERFEHREEREE

Stage 2 There have been significant increases in credit risk since initial Lifetime ECL-not credit-
recognition through information developed internally or external impaired
resources

FPREE BEBNERINBERPTEINER P ELCE EERMRT  FHREREEEE—IFE
REEE HIE N BRE

Stage 3 There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL-credit-impaired

F3PEEE BRBRETEEREERE FHRTEREEBE—BE

BRE

General collaterals, guarantees obtained and comments over the
movement in the total provision for ECL

As at 31 December 2022, FL were all secured by respective equivalent or
more worth of net book value of leased machinery and equipment. FL with
an aggregate carrying amount of HK$35,826,000 were also guaranteed by
related parties of customers and/or customers’ deposits.

The provision for impairment losses on receivables decreased by HK$92.9
million from HK$255.2 million as at 31 December 2021 to HK$162.3
million primarily because of a net gain on derecognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities at amortised cost; and (i) the impairment loss
recognized on loan receivables.

FRIREN—RIER R - BERERERERES
BHEBHEREETNER

TR HF+RA=t+—H #MEEETHRS
RBRFENREFEESNEEH SRR ER
1 o 4EBR B 7335,826,0008 T 2 B THE TR L
BER RS R RNER 2 ERE R

B EEREFEENR S - —F+_8
=+—HH#9255,200,0007 7T57192,900,0007% 7T
£162,300,00078 7 » EZ A BUH DR EH
AT ENERMEE REREEINEFEE ; K
(VFLEU E R EESDRYRIE R 1R °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
RS

Other than this, there was a relatively mild increase or decrease in

provision for each receivable that offset each other and did not impact on
the total during the year.

Notes:

As at 31 December 2022, the cumulative ECL amount of HK$152.6 million is based
on EAD of HK$152.6 million, PD of 100% (i.e. default events were triggered in prior
years), LGD of 100% (2021: 62%) or recovery rate of 0% (2021: 38%) and discount
factor of 1.0 (2021: 1.0). The ECL amount was fully provided because the loan was
not received over 1 year and the compensation will not be receivable shortly after the
current year end.

As at 31 December 2022, the cumulative ECL amount of HK$5.3 million is based on
EAD of HK$33.9 million, PD of 35.3% (2021: 1.2%), LGD of 52.6% (2021: 61.9%)
or recovery rate of 47.4% (2021: 38.1%) and discount factor of 1. There was a
slightly overprovision for ECL of approximately HK$1.6 million because of the timing
factor changed and recovery rate was increased.

As at 31 December 2022, the cumulative ECL amount of HK$1.6 million is based on
EAD of HK$7.9 million, PD of 3.5% (2021: 1.2%), LGD of 52.6% (2021: 61.9% %)
or recovery rate of 47.4% (2021: 38.1%) and discount factor of 1 (2021: 1.2). There
was a slightly overprovision for ECL of approximately HK$0.4 million because of the
timing factor changed.

As at 31 December 2022, the cumulative ECL amount of HK$0.1 million is based on
EAD of HK$7.9 million, PD of 3.5%, LGD of 52.6% or recovery rate of 47.4% and
discount factor of 1. The receivable was newly acquired in 2022 and no comparison
with prior year can be made.

The receivables made for treasury investment purpose are mainly trust products
issued and managed by trust management companies in the PRC and not
considered part of the principle activities of the money lending business.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the restricted bank deposits of HK17.0 million
(as at 31 December 2021: HK$18.4 million) and the finance lease
receivables of HK$nil (2021: HK$100.6 million) were pledged to the
banks and other non-bank financial institutions for facilities granted to the
Group.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s 51.39% equity interest in Ever
Grand (Tianjin) Finance Lease PRC Co., Ltd. was pledged to secure a
borrowing facility to finance prospective finance lease transactions, which
did not materialize later and the facility had never been utilised. The share
charge was subsequently discharged on 24 January 2022.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2022, 31 December 2021 and 30 June 2021, there was a
litigation in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) about an alleged
breach of loan contract brought by The Export-Import Bank of China
(“"EXIM Bank”) against Beijing Ever Grand International Financial Leasing
Co. Limited (“BJEG”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in
the PRC. A court hearing was held in late April 2021. The loan contract
was related to Qinghai Pingan High-precision Aluminum Industry Co.,
Ltd (“Qinghai”), and its terms and amount of loan proceeds were back-
to-back with those of the finance lease agreement with Qinghai. In this
appeal, EXIM Bank as an appellant appealed to overturn the judgement
at the first instance (Notification [2020] Shan 01 Min Chu 659) handed
down by the Intermediate People Court of Xi'an City, Shanxi Province
which dismissed EXIM Bank’s claims brought against BJEG regarding the
alleged breach of loan contract in December 2020. In the appeal case,
EXIM Bank reinstated its claims to require BJEG to repay the outstanding
principal, overdue interests (i.e. normal, compound and penalty to be
charged at 50% of the prevailing commercial lending standard rate of
the same kind in the PRC plus 15%) under the loan contracts and court
fees or requested to return the case for retrial. As at 30 June 2022, the
relevant carrying amount of outstanding principal and interest amounted
to RMB200 million and RMB33.3 million recorded in borrowing and other
payable, respectively. The board of directors of the Company announces
that in September 2022, BJEG received the second trial civil judgement
of the appeal case (which is a final judgement) pursuant to which,
among others, the Higher People’s Court of the Shanxi Province of the
PRC dismissed the appeal. After discussion with its PRC legal adviser
and auditors in relation to it and thereafter no financial impact from the
judgement. The Company was finalisation with its PRC legal adviser and
auditors as at 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
RS

Save as disclosed hereinabove, the Group had no other material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2022.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no capital commitments (2021:
HK$0.1 million) for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

PROSPECT

Looking ahead, under the combined effect of a series of factors such as
global trade friction, geopolitical conflicts and high inflation in developed
countries, the global economy is still under great pressure to stabilize
and recover. With rather low inflation pressure and loosened monetary
policies in China, the national economic growth rate shall gradually
recover and rebound in the future as the impacts of the epidemic
gradually weaken and various measures in stabilizing growth take effect.
Meanwhile, the Chinese government achieved positive results in the
efficient coordination of pandemic prevention and control as well as in
socio-economic development, which stabilised the macro-economy and
achieved continuous expansion in the total economic volume and steady
improvement in the quality of development. Stepping into 2023, as the
US Federal Reserve’s interest rate hike is approaching to the end and
with the normalisation of the pandemic preventive controls and expand
domestic demand, the mainland economy has begun to recover gradually
and comprehensively, which is expected to bring new development
opportunities. Bounded by factors such as changes in industry
regulations, downward economic cycle, and intensified competition in
the industry, the number of entities in the financial leasing industry and
the balance of financial leasing businesses both declined in 2022. The
development of the industry entered a critical period of transformation and
optimisation.

Green transformation, digital economy and equipment upgrading
continued to grow and added momentum to industry transformation.
In the future, with the upgrading of domestic industries, the recovery
of macro-economy and the gradual strengthening of the internal circle
policies, coupled with the business transformation of financial leasing
companies and the adjustment and adaptation of regulatory policies,
it is expected that the financial leasing industry will maintain a healthy
development and better contribute to the economic development.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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In Hong Kong where the Group has been placing emphasis on domestic
consumption market especially on the consumer products found in
pharmacies, economic recovery remained robust through successful
implementation in COVID-19 containment measures and a series of anti-
epidemic subsidies schemes launched by the Hong Kong government.
The Group will adjust sales strategies, optimise the product mix, and
strengthen brand marketing and promotion to adapt the changes
of demand and consumption behaviour in the post-COVID-19 era,
to further expand the scale of proprietary business and new sales
channels. Strategic cooperations will be established to strengthen the
competitiveness and market share of the Group in the market.

As to the Financial Leasing Segment, the restructuring plans of two
defaulted customers had been approved by the court and their creditors
and the execution of the plans were still under progress as at year end
of 2021. However, one of the defaulted customers received the second
trial civil judgement of the appeal case, which is a final judgement in
September 2022. After taking into account the legal advice, determined
that it does not retained any contractual rights to the cash flows from
the finance lease receivables of customer, with carrying amounts net
of impairment allowance as at 31 December 2021 of RMB82 million;
and the associate obligations due to EXIM Bank are discharged. For
another defaulted customers, the greater effort has been put to sort out
the creditors of defaulted recourse businesses and enormous amount
of negotiations with the creditors and gathering favorable admissible
evidences. All in all, it continues to adhere to the risk management and
control policies to critically evaluate any potential adverse change in credit
risk of other existing finance projects and promptly take recovery actions
in a bid to safeguard the Group’s assets. At the same time, it has been
exploring new business model to thrive under the prevailing regulatory
requirements and targeting customers in various sectors.

As to the Investment Segment, the Group will continue to adopt a
conservative investment strategy towards the investment portfolio
comprising of equity, debt and real estate. With the robust risk
management and control policies, the Group will closely assess its
performance and optimize its composition in order to strike a balance
between a stable return and the necessary liquidity of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As to the Food Additives Business, with a high cost profile of the
manufacturing process, such as the surge in raw material price of sorbitol,
it is uneasy to shift the burden to customers and thus the Group stopped
to manufacture and sales of solid sorbitol. In the second half of 2022, the
Group was starting to manufacture Chlamydonas Reinhardtii Nutritional
powder in order to tackle the persistent problem of economic of scale and
build up the bargaining power with customers from this new production
line. This expansion plan has been subject to new fresh capital and at
the trial stage to produce the products. In the meantime, the segment will
continue to enhance the production stability, broaden the customer base
and market shares in different provinces and industries, and optimize the
production process to reduce operating costs, and conduct research and
development of new products.

As to the Trading Segment, it will emphasize on product diversification,
various distribution channels and widening customer base in different
territories to bolster the business volume. In addition, seeking partnerships
with various healthcare companies and other commercial business
partners allows the segment to expand its product line into the fields of
maternal and child healthcare as well as medicines, and into different
types of customers. Leveraging a wholesaler licence in proprietary Chinese
medicines (“PCMs”), the Group seeks direct exclusive distributorship of
PCMs with manufacturers to enhance profitability. This direct exclusivity
will also boost sales as it puts the segment into advantageous position to
deal with sizable distributors and retailers who look for stability of supplies
and better terms. At the meantime, the Group entered into continuing
connected transactions with Top Empire International Limited (“TEI")
under TEI Framework Purchase Agreement on 10 January 2023 which
expects to expand its products portfolio with the product to the PRC
market. Leveraging the personal network and expertise in the industry,
establishment of extensive distribution network of small and medium
dispensaries in Hong Kong and the public awareness of hygiene and
health during the pandemic, the future demand for health and hygiene
products, personal care and other medical products that the segment
offers looks promising. The Group will remain committed to cultivate the
business and consider it as a growth impetus in the future.

In addition to the existing segments, the Group will cautiously and
diligently explore new potential growth opportunities, undervalued assets
and business expansion in order to diversify the income sources, bring
in profits and ultimately attain long and sustainable growth and enhance
shareholders’ value as a whole.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND MATERIAL
DISPOSALS

At 31 December 2022, the Group held loan receivables (excluding from
a loan receivable from sale-leaseback transaction and those from money
lending business) of HK$9.3 million (2021: HK$40.0 million), equity
investments at FVTOCI of HK$93.2 million (2021: HK$108.8 million)
and financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$123.3 million (2021:
HK$147.1 million).

During the year, the Group invested in loan receivables through 1 to 3
years trust products of HK$11.6 million (2021: HK$42.5 million) issued by
financial institutions in the PRC. The Group recorded loan interest income
from loan receivables amounting to HK$2.4 million (2021: HK$3.1 million)
and a reversal of impairment loss on loan receivables of HK$nil (2021:
impairment loss of HK$1.2 million).

The equity investments at FVTOCI of HK$93.2 million as at 31 December
2022 (2021: HK$108.8 million) represented unlisted equity securities
issued by the PRC and Hong Kong private entities with operations
including manufacturing and sales of medical equipment, rockets and
satellite network, new materials for industrial and medical equipment,
batteries for EV cars, provision of asset management of unlisted
investments in the PRC and SFC licensed business activities of type 1, 2,
4,5 and 9 in Hong Kong. There was a fair value loss of HK$6.7 million
recognised through other comprehensive income in 2022 (2021: a fair
value loss of HK$18.7 million) and no dividend income was recognised to
profit or loss in 2022 and 2021 from the equity investments at FVTOCI.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B A T

EAREREXRLE

A B F+ZA=+—HB AEERFERE
WEH FEEEREERS ZEBREN KK
B EWRER) 9,300,000 T (T2 - —
£ © 40,000,000 7T) %{/A\EFTELLH%EE
WA B8R 2 B& 3% E93,200,00078 7T (=
£F 1 108,800,000787T) MIZAF(EBBIBT
IRz SREE#123,300,0008 7T (T B - —4F .
147,100,0005&7T) ©

FN AEEZBETESRMEBET I —E=
ﬂEHHTEI u%%uull 600, 0007 7T (— T —4F
42,500,0007870) RENERER - EEERIFHK
B ERRBVE R B HA2,400,00087T (CF
——% 13,100 OOO/%E) RO ERRIERS
BOB T (CZE - —5F L RI{EEE1,200,000/87T) °

N CECTE+ A=+ —R BATEEEH
2 MU A TR 2 B A3 93,200,000/ 7T (Z

——£F 1 108,800,000787T) I E K E B
FAABEBMMETZIELMERAES  £HE81E
SIS R IHEBERE NEIREEME TR
BB EIMN S BEENSEE M BEPEGE
IS EIRHEESIE UENEAN SRSy
SFEI SR 148  SE24E 55448 EOE R ORI
%58 o N FER51E6,700 ooo/%mi BT E
FREMEEMIRARD CE—F . AFES
1818,700,000787T) » Mt R B A FEBBE
ﬂﬂ%@u&/\%ﬁﬁﬂézts&éﬂﬁﬁﬁéLlw\ﬁé:;ﬁ
TR RIE T —FINB R o

Annual Report 2022
FER

_7__

29



3

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The equity investments at FVTOCI as at 31 December 2022 included
the equity investment of 55,500,000 shares of Imagi Brokerage Limited
(“Imagi Brokerage”), representing approximately 9.69% of the total issued
shares of it (as at 31 December 2021: 55,500,000 shares or 9.69%),
whose fair value was HK$54.9 million or approximately 6.85% of the
Group's total asset (as at 31 December 2021: HK$55.7 million or 5.15%)
and the cost was HK$74.3 million. The Imagi-Brokerage mainly carries
out businesses of type 1, 2, 4, 5 and 9 regulated activities licensed by
the Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) in Hong Kong. With
no dividend income received, there was an unrealized fair value loss
of HK$0.8 million recognised to other comprehensive income in the
current period (2021: HK$18.6 million), which is mainly due to significant
operating losses of the Imagi-Brokerage caused by material fair value
losses in listed equity investments though its revenue from brokerage and
asset management services increased significantly. The purpose of the
investment is mainly to bring returns to the Group by dividends and capital
growth. Details of the investment are summarised as below:

HE_Z_F+ZRA=+—H #BEAFE
FREMEEUWATER Z B A E S iEImagi
Brokerage Limited (T Imagi Brokerage 1) 55,500,0008%
5 EEREZIBE BTN 2499.69% (&
EIET—F+"F=+—H : 555000008
17589.69% ) BIREAI & » /AT (E 254,900,000
B EAEEREENCS% BEZTZ—
F+ZHA=+—H :55700,00087T35.15%) *
B2 7574,300,00078 75 ° Imagi BrokerageE= B E
BREEFRPESHEREZE T (BEE))
SFEIE 148  SE24E 55448 EOE R FOLEIT
#EE) c EER M R UNERAR B U > BRTEAEIN E
2 W s e S0 SR B IR A (B B5$8800,00078

T (CEI— fE 18,600,000 7T) » tET5 E=EH
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J:ﬁﬁxﬁé?ﬁé?*i%ﬁ N EERIEME R magi
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RENHERMn ™

Investment ~ Asat 31 December ~ Asat31 December  As at 31 December
of  RTZREt-A MPIRZt-A RHIREZT-A
Name of Place of Securities held ~~ Proportion of ownership  Percentage to the (HKS FITOC! Fair value loss Dividend income
Investment Company incorporation by the Group held by the Group Group's netasset ~ Nature of business million) (HKS million) (HKS millon) (HKS million)
RATERE
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a0 02 Ao 02 W0 02w w2 A0 202
TETECRICETET-ECECCE TET-ECEITECS-EIETCETTC-ECECCE
Imagi Brokerage Limied Hong Kong BA000shares  96%%  96%  515%  685%  Typel 24 5and reguited achites 743 57 549 186 08 Ni Nil
liensed by the SFC
B 5500 000% EREOURENRIE 2R B
B BRI RERD
Other than Imagi Brokerage, the Group held no other single significant  B&lmagi Brokeragedh B E _ S - _F K

investment, classified as the equity investments at FVTOCI, in any investee
company with a value of 5% or more of the Group’s total assets as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

The financial assets at FVTPL of HK$123.3 million as of 31 December
2022 (2021: HK$147.1 million) comprised of (i) 9 different unlisted fund
and equity products in the PRC of HK$64.4 million (2021: 10 different
unlisted fund and equity products in the PRC of HK$72.2 million) and (ii)
numerous listed equity shares and bonds of HK$58.8 million in the Hong
Kong and the Chinese stock exchanges (2021: HK$74.9 million). There
was a fair value loss of HK$27.7 million recognised to profit or loss in 2022
(2021: fair value gain of HK$17,000).
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The Group held no single investment classified as the financial assets at
FVTPL with a value of 5% or more of the Group’s total assets as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held two investment properties
with aggregate fair value of HK$147,670,000 (2021: HK$142,369,000)
let out for rental income in Shanghai and Liaoning the PRC. During the
year, the Group recorded total rental income of HK$4,699,000 (2021:
HK$5,713,000) and total unrealised fair value gain of HK$16,923,000
(2021: fair value loss of HK$10,701,000). Please refer to note 15 for
further details.

Shanghai property is a 3-storey industrial building located in 188
Xinjunhuan Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC. 1-storey industrial
building was disposed to a third party at the consideration of approximately
HK$11,784,000 on 7 November 2022.

Liaoning property is an industrial development complex with 4 industrial
buildings located in Taoci Industrial Zone, Qigong Community, Wan Shou
Street, Jianping County, Chaoyang City, Liaoning Province, the PRC.

The Board is of the view that reasonable and effective use of temporary
idle funds will better utilise the idle resources and enhance the overall
capital gain of the Group. The investments were made for treasury
management purpose with a view to increasing the return on the
unutilised funds of the Group and generating better investment return to
the Company and its Shareholders as a whole after taking into account,
among others, the level of risk and return on investment. Prior to making
such investments, the Group had ensured that there remains sufficient
working capital for the Group’s business needs, operating activities and
capital expenditures even after making the investments. The Board
considers that they are conservative investments with a satisfactory
expected return, acceptable risk and high liquidity, are in line with the
internal risk management and treasury management of the Group,
and have not caused any adverse impact on the working capital of the
Group. As part of its treasury management, the Group has been closely
monitoring the performance of the investments and its cash flow position.

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately 65 (2021: 98)
employees (excluding employees of the Company’s associates) in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The employees are remunerated with basic salary,
bonus and other benefits in kind with reference to industry practice and
their individual performance. The Group offers induction trainings to new
employees and gives regular trainings to existing employees for updating
their skills and knowledge.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere on this report, the Group did not have any
significant events after the reporting period.
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UPDATE ON USE OF PROCEED IN RELATION
TO FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements on 30 December
2019 and 31 March 2020 in relation to placing of new shares under
general mandate and change in use of proceeds from the placing
(collectively refer as to “Announcements”), the 2020 interim report dated
26 August 2020 and the 2021 interim report dated 25 August 2021.
Unless otherwise stated, capitalised terms used herein shall bear the
same meanings as those defined in the Announcements. Part of the
net proceeds (the “Net Proceeds”) from placing were applied up to 31
December 2022 and are intended to be applied in accordance with the
revised proposed application set out in the Announcements. The below
table sets out the details of the application of the Net Proceeds:
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Actual Unutilised

Actual use of Net  amount of Net
Total use of Net Proceeds Proceeds Expected
revised planned  Proceeds as at as at as at timeline
use of Net 1January 31 December 31 December for the
Proceeds 2022 2022 2022 intended use
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(HK$' million)  (HK$' million) ~ (HK$’ million)  (HK$’ million)

(BEET) (BBAT) (BE%ET) (B&AT)
Improving and enhancing the existing WERIRH B RANINEER 31 December
production lines for Food Additives Business ~ IRE4 &4 47 - - 47 2023
_ET=F
+ZA=+-H
Working capital of the Food Additives Business B @RAMEI£HKHNEESS 63 6.3) - - -

Purchasing the medical, health and hygiene ~ BB R EREREL ERIE

products for trading purpose BEER 150 (15.0) - - -
General Working Capital of the Group FEEN—REEES 6.2 (6.2) - - -

322 (27.5) - 47

Due to the continuous outbreak of the COVID-19 Pandemic which
disrupted the Food Additives Business, there has been a delay in
the application of the unutilised proceeds allocated to improving and
enhancing the existing production lines for Food Additives Business to
the early of 2023. The remaining unutilised proceeds of HK$4.7 million
allocated to improving and enhancing the existing production lines for
Food Additives Business has been deposited into bank accounts in Hong
Kong.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Bt a RETRIRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

China Ever Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is
pleased to present its Environmental, Social and Governance (hereinafter
called “ESG”) report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year 2022"), with an aim to
provide details of the system establishment and performance of the Group
in terms of sustainable development to both the internal and external
stakeholders.

This report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide set
out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. This report highlights the
environmental and social measures and activities of the Group during the
Year 2022. For information regarding the corporate governance section,
please refer to the Corporate Governance Report.

The Company is committed to creating sustained value for stakeholders
by implementing ESG management framework into its operation with an
aim to put the objectives of sustainable development into its daily practice.
To be accountable to all the stakeholders, the Company endeavoured to
minimise the influence on the environment, be aware of the employee
well-being and contribute more to the community.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Board'’s oversight of ESG issues

The Board has a primary role in directing and overseeing sustainability
initiatives to ensure the effectiveness and relevance in light of the evolving
sustainability landscape. The Board is committed to incorporate ESG
mindset into the Group's business operations and responsible for the
long-term sustainability of the Group, including formulating strategies and
overseeing the Group's ESG-related risks and opportunities. The Board
considers ESG-related risks and opportunities as part of the Company’s
overall strategic formulation.

The Board has delegated the power of sustainability strategies
development and policies implementation to the management. The
management is responsible for executing projects, evaluating results,
monitoring potential risks and reporting on performance.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ESG management approach and strategy for material ESG-related
issues

To better understand the opinions and expectations of different
stakeholders on the ESG issues, materiality assessment is conducted
annually. The Group ensures various platforms and channels of
communication are used to reach, listen and respond to its key
stakeholders. Through communication with the stakeholders, the Group
can understand their expectations and concerns. The feedbacks obtained
allow the Group to make more informed decisions, and to better assess
and manage the impacts of the business decisions.

The Group has evaluated the materiality for each of the ESG aspects
through the following steps: (i) identification of ESG issues by the Group;
(i) key ESG areas prioritisation with stakeholder engagement; and (iii)
validation and determining material ESG issues based on the results of
communication with the stakeholders.

Taking these steps enhances the understanding of the expectations
and concerns of the Group’s stakeholders on various ESG issues, which
enable the Board to plan the sustainable development direction to address
material ESG-related issues in the future.

Progress review made against ESG-related goals and targets

ESG-related goals and targets have been set to provide a strategic direction
for all operations, the progress is closely reviewed by the Company from
time to time. Modification may be needed if the progress falls short of
expectation and/or change of business operations.

The Group'’s sustainability target enables the Company to develop a
realistic roadmap and focus on results of achieving the visions. The
sustainability performance and progress made against the goals are
reported annually to the Board for review at least annually.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The report follows the four reporting principles as mentioned in the ESG
Reporting Guide:

Materiality: Stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment were
conducted annually to identify material ESG issues, and to ensure that
these issues are addressed in the report.

Quantitative: Data presented in this report have been collected prudently.
Please refer to the environmental and social performance data for
standards and methodologies used for calculation of key performance
indicators.

Balance: An unbiased and balanced picture of the performance has been
disclosed in a transparent manner.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the disclosures, data collection and
calculation methods have remained consistent throughout the years to
facilitate comparability over time.

REPORTING BOUNDARIES

The Group has been operating in four operating and reportable segments,
including (i) provision of finance lease consulting services and financing
services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”): (ii) investment
properties in the PRC and Hong Kong, investments in securities and
money lending business in Hong Kong; (iii) sale of medical, health and
hygiene products; and (iv) research and development, manufacturing
and sale of food additives, new food ingredients and nutritional enhancers
in the PRC. The report focuses on the operation of Group at its principal
places of business in Hong Kong, Beijing and Liaoning.

The key performance indicators (“KPIs”) data are gathered only from the
operations under the Group’s direct operational control. The Group will
continue to strengthen information of the major ESG aspects in order to
enhance the disclosure of information on sustainable development when
and where applicable.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholder engagement is a key success factor in formulating
environmental and social strategy, defining the Group’s objectives,
assessing materiality, and establishing policies. The Group’s key
stakeholders include government, shareholders, customers, employees,
suppliers or service providers, community and the public. The Group
has conducted a survey, discussed or communicated with stakeholders
to understand their views and respond to their needs and expectations,
evaluated and prioritised their inputs to improve the Group’s performance,
and finally strived to provide value to the stakeholders.

EAVE -

RHENSEARFIEIRIERAER RERE
BEER EEEERHIEBREFER &
SENTEFNERRBE - RR B EBE
HIEBRRBRER HERAR K%lEL
THE BB ERIER UTRRE

R DfEHRERRE &E&%F@JH;TEQE&%
FEERRZERNEARSF  WRER DB

PEREBE-

Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication and response
FinE HZRER BB K [l FE
Government o Compliance with laws and regulations ° Law-abiding operations
BT BPAEER RS
o Tax payment in accordance with the laws Tax payment on time and in full
HOENIR TERFRHANR
Shareholders ° Financial results ° Improve profitability
&S MG & = mAEE 7]
° Sound risk control o Optimise risk management and internal
2 B89 /& B 22 5 control systems
e Corporate transparency BERREERANIBEEERA
EFREE o Regular information disclosure
EHRERBRSE
Customers ° Demand for funds o A wide range of financial leasing products
=R HESMEX ENRMEREE®D
° Customer information security o Customer pr|vacy protection
ERERZR = RAERE
° Guarantee product quality o Optimise the quality management control
EmE2RE BLEE2EEES
Employees o Career development platform ° Transparent promotion channel
=] BEZRTE FEANE A RS
° Remuneration and benefits ° Competitive remuneration package
S e rE A BB OMEMAE 2
° Occupational health and safety ° Implement health and safety management
BxERRZE system

BEERZE2EERR
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Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication and response
FinE HZREXR BB K [l FE
Suppliers or service o Receive payment on time ° Payment schedule
providers VSTV SR EN el
R ARSI At o Business ethics and credit standing . Fulfilment of obligations under any contract
HEBEEREESE in accordance with laws
REBITEREHNETHNEE
Community and the ° Employment opportunities ° Provide employment opportunities
public BEEE R ERE
HERAR ° Environmental protection ° Adhere to green operations
IRIBIRE &STAREEE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In the Year 2022, the Group carried out materiality assessment on a
number of ESG issues in order to identify which issues were crucial to the
Group’s business and were of the utmost concern to stakeholders. It helps
the Group to ensure its business development can meet the expectations
and requirements of stakeholders. The Group has identified 24 ESG
issues covering environmental, social and operation, and has invited both
internal and external stakeholders to assess the materiality of the ESG
issues through a scoring tool and interviews. The Group’s management
has reviewed the ranking of materiality of the ESG issues and then
disclosed the results in this report. The results of materiality assessment
prioritised stakeholder inputs and made the Group focused on the material
aspects for actions, achievements and reporting.
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The Group’s materiality matrix of ESG issues in the Year 2022

CERCCHEAERRR - HEREAEENEZHER
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o 1510 6
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4711
1
0
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Low Importance of topics to business High
& HEFREEN RS =
Environmental issues Social issues Operation issues
RIEER HEEE BEEH
1. Greenhouse gas emissions 9.  Occupational health and safety 17.  Supply chain management
RERBHER BERERZE HEEEE IR
2. Energy consumption and resource 10.  Child labour 18.  Supplier evaluation and
management BT selection
[ =N=NY EENEP H E g ST see
Hb/}?/gﬁ%&ﬁ/}? = I 11. Forced and Compulsory labour T/\E%Fﬁﬁ D$T$&i£?§
3. Water resources consumption 5838 K5 %5 B 19. Customer service and
KERHFE 12. Training and development Eit;factigl e o
4. Waste management Bl R ERE BB kom = E
BRI EIE 13. Salaries and employee benefits 20. @;%Te; privacy
5. Use of packaging materials e REERT = e
HE KA US| Bk . . . H
BEMEER 14.  Diversity and equal opportunity 21. Egigﬁigk and complaint
6.  Impact on the environment ZnlbhFEEKRE ‘
Ypre e p o R B R 3% 5 R IR
HIRIEHEE 15.  Talent attraction and retention )
7. Climate change IR AR Re 4 88 A\ A 22 %"dfggtﬁyf;‘d quality
=Rk AR
RIRZAE 16.  Anti-corruption ,
8. Community contribution R&s 23 Ifntgrii%tgﬁ?g%perty protection
HEE REES
24. Marketing and labeling
HEERIRE
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EMISSIONS

Emissions refer to air and greenhouse gas (the “GHG”) emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

Combustion of fuels in motor vehicles controlled by the Group is the main
sources of nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur oxides (SOx) and particulate
matter (PM) emission. It could likewise generate GHG such as carbon
dioxide (COz2), methane and nitrous oxide.

The key environmental performance indicators of the Group’s emissions in
the Year 2022 are shown in the table below:

HE

RYERER Ao RERE CEERE) P M
KREIMHPES BERESERYZESE-

AEBRZEFNTERENREZRAEY
(NOx) ~ B EM(SOn B KL F(PMIFE B9
2R - HEH A BEE AL — | EAR(CO) ~ i
R—E{taFEREREE-

N TFE AEESIYRRRIRIZEN
BRI TR

Unit Year 2022 Year 2021
Environmental indicators IRIBIEIE B ZEICEE “EIFE
Air emissions ote ) E&f‘ﬁﬁtm (Htat1)
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) emissions B2 EYINOX)BER ) g5 13,746 11,404
Sulphur oxides (SOx) emissions BRE1E¥(SOX)BER ) g5 111 240
Particulate matter (PM) emissions TF ML (PMBERYD g5e, 1,247 898

Note 1:  The emission factors used to calculate the NOx, SOx and PM are sourced from: (i)
the Hong Kong Environmental Protection Department’s (“EPD”) EMFAC-HK Vehicle
Emission Calculation model; and (i) the United States Environmental Protection
Agency'’s Vehicle Emission Modeling Software — MOBILE6.1. The assumption of 80%
relative humidity, a temperature of 25 degrees Celsius, an average speed of 30kmh,
and include running exhaust emissions only.

To better manage the Group’s material topics and its performance on
environmental aspect, the Group decides to set quantifiable targets for
air emissions over the year ending 31 December 2024 (“Year 2024") as
follows:

Mifatl . PR ETEINOX > SOXRPMEYHEER F AR (()EH
BRIFREE (MRRE)) NWEMFAC-HKSE BT EIZ
B K FEE B SRR (el B B B HE R B —
MOBILE6.1 » iR & HHEHRE80% ~ 1 FE 1 X256 ~ 15
RrRE 30N B R EIETEMER B E

ABRFHEBRAERNEARZERETIRIES
ENRE AEBREREHE_S_NE+Z
B=+—HIEE (T2 NEE)) RIS
=2{EERMT !

Environmental indicators Reduction target Baseline Year Status
RIFHER AR BEFE kA&

NOx emissions intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2024 Year 2019 In progress
NOHF I B —_EMEERTR3% “T-NEE EITH
SOx emissions intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2024 Year 2019 In progress
SOHIMEE “EMEERRL3% “E-NEFE EITHR
PM emissions intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2024 Year 2019 In progress
PMEEEE —EMEEATRL3% “T-NEE EITH

The Group will continue to work for the target sets and review the status
annually prior to Year 2024.
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The Group believes that green transportation brings benefits, which
include reduction of transportation costs and reduction of energy
consumption and pollution. As such, the Group encourages optimising
transportation routes, high filling rate or carpooling and proper tire
pressure to achieve efficiency.

The Group reminds employees to consider environmental impact in their
commuting decisions to reduce air and greenhouse emissions. Employees
are encouraged to take public transportation as often as possible and
select fuel efficient vehicles. While employees are driving, it is suggested to
avoid unnecessary acceleration or deceleration, close windows when the
vehicle is travelling at high speed, and only use air-conditioning when it is
necessary.

Electricity consumption of the Group is a major part of its GHG emissions.
Various electricity-saving policies have been established to reduce the
electricity consumption by the Group. The Group encourages staff
members to switch off light during daytime, maintain lamps well to keep
clean, use stairs instead of elevators, install energy-efficient lighting,
and disable the standby mode for all electrical appliances, including
computers, photocopiers and printers when they are not in use. Air
conditioning is required to be set no lower than 25°C in summer. It is
also required to ensure the windows and doors are closed while air-
conditioning is on, and turn off the air-conditioning after office hours or
after the usage of the meeting room.

In the Group’s Liaoning and Beijing offices, energy saving signs remind
staff members to turn off the lights and promote energy conservation. In
the Hong Kong office, light-emitting diode (“LED”) lamps were installed as
much as possible, and multi-purpose devices with printing, scanning and
photocopying functions were adopted to achieve electrical efficiency.

In order to address indirect emissions relating to paper waste deposited at
landfills, the Group encourages employees to apply computer technology
such as emails, electronic backup devices and storage devices to reduce
paper consumption, print on both sides of a sheet of paper, avoid
unnecessary printing or copying on paper, adjust documents and use
space efficiency formats to optimise use of paper, and put recycling boxes
near the photocopiers to collect single-sided paper for reuse and used
double-sided paper for recycling.

BB E R ERERE

FEBFREHEERNED BENEERN
7~ PR AERE Repl 75 e o [RIIE » A 52 B S B %
AREERRG SEEIHEXRKRBEEREN

REAE

FEBREERSTEYFEBRIETE BLE
RECRERIEFN flAsEEEE A EN AR
HRBRG WERRH RSB IR A
%l*ﬂ%m@m BSRBS 3B S NS B NNIR SRR ~ £

TR PRI E REN U ERF S ERZER
FAEFZENHERHAEREINNEE

7o AREEBHIEZRMBEHR L/(/Jﬁi\ﬁﬁéw
FEEZEREEARBEAER  FEERLRE

HEZ  ERERMIFER  ZEERMmSH
B”Eﬁ%%ﬁ&?—ﬁﬁﬁaﬁ% (BFEER §‘EUH%)§ZH
ENtY) T~MER KRG AR - ERAR ERER
EEMER25° CZRE o TR Ak R 258 AU
FIEHERE LUk TR RS R =R AR
FAZEE

AERERBEERICRIMAE ARSI E e
BRERENIEERNE - EEBMAE BRI
SR BE (TLED)) J& > WA AEFTT
BN Rt R R ENTAER 2 TAER SR B IR B

=2

77 IR SRR ANA B 2 PRI AR
BfEEEAEH BFEHREMREFEESE
fadb o B R REEEITE] BRI E
FTENSAEEN > MAREE M A ERIME B HIE
UL E FARSR AR R ENI S TR E Bl U AE » WY
EERNERKOREFEREEMRR.
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In the Group’s Beijing office, saving paper signs remind staff members
to optimise use of paper and reduce paper waste. The Group constantly
reminds employees to consider environmental impact in their commuting
decisions to reduce air and GHG emissions. Employees are encouraged
to take public transportation as often as possible and select fuel-efficient
vehicles. While employees are driving, it is recommended to avoid
unnecessary acceleration or deceleration, keep windows closed when the
vehicle is travelling at high speed, and only use air-conditioning when it is
necessary.

The Group recognises the severity of indirect GHG emissions from
business travel by employees, and requires employees to utilise
teleconference instead of overseas meetings and choose railway rather
than airway for short distance travel to reduce the carbon footprint of
business travel.

The Group requires that discharges, if any, into waterways and land must
comply with relevant laws and regulations.

The Environmental Policy established by the Group encourages
employees to handle office waste generated in a proper and
environmentally friendly manner.

Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations. There was
no significant hazardous waste generated in view of the Group’s business
nature.

The Group promotes waste reduction practices including waste reduction
at source, reuse, clean recycling, recover and reduction of disposal at
landfills. Employees are encouraged to purchase supplies or equipment
with longer life-span, to install recycling bins to collect recyclables, such as
waste paper, glass or aluminium bottles, metal, and plastics, and to have
recyclers to collect recyclables.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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The key environmental performance indicators of the Group’s GHG
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BB E R ERERE

ERERPIRRIRIRIR

emissions in the Year 2022 are shown in the table below: BEMIEEHSN TR
Unit Year 2022 Year 2021
Environmental indicators RIRIRE =X} “EICFE S FE
GHG emissions BERBEHER
Direct emissions (Scope 1) BiEHE (EE1) kg COze 20,175 42,002
FraftixEs
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (Mo ) B EE2) mE) kg COze 161,973 487,170
Fr-&E(HRES
Other indirect emissions (Scope 3) HuBEEEm EER) kg COze 11,691 17,541
Fr_ShHEE
Total GHG emissions o2 BERBEHERES W) kg COze 193,839 546,713
Fr_ahiE2
GHG emissions intensity M3 BERBHRERE W) kg COze 1.08 1.13
(per production
volume (kg))
FrZaftixgs
BTREES)
Waste EE4
Total non-hazardous waste produced FMELEREEEEE kg N/A 2,400
T B
Non-hazardous waste produced intensity ~ FRE4EBEEBEEYZE kg N/A 0.004
(per production B
volume (kg))
Fre
BTREES)
Total hazardous waste produced "ee4 FTELBEEEYRE W) kg N/A N/A
T FEA B
Hazardous waste produced intensity MESBEBEENEE kg N/A N/A
(per production FEA TEA

volume (kg))

Fr

BTREES)
Note 1:  The national emission factors for Liaoning and Beijing are set at 0.6101 kg CO/  Aifatl . HFEBRIEFERMNERIHNEFREA0.6101F 5%
kWh, which are sourced from The Ministry of Ecology and Environment of People’s ZREETRE IHREPEARENEE SR
Republic of China (2019). In addition, the emission factor for Hong Kong based %B( T—HF) oltdh BEEHEEBANHIK
operations is set at 0.71 kg CO/kWh, which is sourced from Hong Kong Electric FREATIFR_AH /TR THREEE

Sustainability Report 2021. :2: FRFEERR S

Note 2: GHG emissions (direct and indirect) and its removal can be divided into the following ~ A322 . BEREEHIN (EEREH RERBIOBUT=

three separate areas:

Scope 1: Direct GHG emissions from operations that are owned or controlled by the
Group including combustion of fuels in motor vehicles controlled by the
Group.

Scope 2: Energy indirect emissions resulting from generation of purchased electricity
that is consumed by the Group’s including the controlled equipment or its
operations within the physical building boundary for electricity purchased

from power companies.

B EE -

FEL: HEAEEFRERSIENNETERELN
BERBIN QEAEBERFSER
JEBINREL o

HER: FERZEFINREIENBRERYRIR
BENEEMBEEBLRBENEIFTHE
FENIBE B ELERSEREEDIL
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Scope 3: All other indirect GHG emissions that occurred outside the Group, including
both upstream and downstream emissions including: (i) GHG emissions
due to electricity used for fresh water/sewage processing by the Water
Services Department/Drainage Services Department respectively; and (ii)
business travel by employees.

Note 3:  GHG emissions intensity in 2021 has been restated.

Note 4:  No hazardous waste is produced by the Group. Therefore, such disclosure is not

applicable to the Group. In the event when any hazardous waste is to be disposed of,
the Group would engage professional companies to handle it.

In accordance with policies stated above for the reduction of air and
GHG emissions from vehicles, the Group adopts the following measures:
(i) control the numbers of vehicles owned by the Group; (ii) control the
frequency of employees not to take public transportation for local business
commuting; and (iii) control the volume of business travel by employees.

Non-hazardous wastes are preferred to be recycled, otherwise, they are
sent for landfill or incineration. In accordance with policies stated above
for the reduction of non-hazardous wastes, the Group adopts the following
measures: (i) control the commercial wastes generated by employees; (ii)
control the waste of papers; and (iii) control the volume of non-hazardous
waste going direct to landfill or incineration without recycling.

To better manage the Group’s material topics and its performance on
environmental aspect, the Group decides to set quantifiable targets for
GHG emissions over Year 2024 as follows:

HER: FEBLUMEENFTARMREEREREE
BRI SIS LR TR BOBER (BUFE 1)K
B/ RHBENRERBNIEERK 5K
PRELRRZEREHINE ; RMEENS
o)

M3 B B —FRERBINERE

Mfat4 . AEENEELSAEREY AL ZRETBEBRE

B -HERRETAESEY) AEERTRHEEX
AEIERER

B DR AR BB R oA E R
REEEERERLA T (VRIS E A R EE
HE (NEREET L AHETH FHIRSE
K KlifzfEERHEE

EERRYERLEA A SRR REAEHIER
FRAC - RIE LR HB D EEEREY > &
SRR (MR EEEENBRER
Y) S (EERARSRORE 5 Re(iEm B
WEMAETRIRNESERDHE

B EEAERENERZERARRIES
EHRRR AERRERE T _NFERAER
P BRI T

Environmental indicators Reduction target Baseline Year Status

RIGHER AHEE AR HEFE 7N

GHG emissions intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2024 Year 2019 In progress
BERBHNEE —EMEEATRL3% “E-NEE EITHR

Non-hazardous waste produced intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2024 Year 2019 In progress
FMESBERENTE “EMEERRL3% “2-hEFE EITHR

Hazardous waste produced intensity Maintain zero generation Year 2019 Remain zero generation
FIELEERENEE ERTEL “Z-NFE ERTEY

The Group will continue to work for the target sets and review the status
annually prior to Year 2024.
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The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure
the compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating to
environmental protection and pollutant emissions. In the Year 2022, there
was no case of material non-compliance with the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China ({1 A R LA HIRIBREE))
and other relevant laws and regulations relating to air and GHG emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste that have a significant impact on environment. In
addition, there was no report of significant fines or sanctions as a result of
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in the Year 2022.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group recognises that efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials, in production, storage, transportation,
buildings, electronic equipment, etc., is one of the significant aspects to
protect environment.

The Group established policies and procedures to reduce energy
consumption in the facility, to assess the energy efficiency, to increase
the use of clean energy, if possible, to set targets to monitor energy
consumption, to ensure power is turned off when electrical appliances are
not in use, and to admit natural daylight into workplace during the day.

The Group requires employees to reduce water consumption in the
offices. For example, employees are encouraged to fully empty any
containers before washing, to turn off water taps promptly, to check
faucets and pipes for leaks, and to adopt water saving appliances.

BBt & RS

FEERBREREBNEE  BRETHRIRMR
s AR BRBI R Rt 75 A R ROER o 1Y
TR FE BEREER(PEARKNER
RIBREE) RBRRERFCREREEHIR Bk
ERREMBIBCTYUAREEHIRIZENEK
TENA S RESEYNEMBERERRER
WiTH I RIEZZFER TERER
TERLER AR MR E A SR HIHBIR S
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The total units of energy and water consumed by the Group and the HR_ZZE__
amount of total packaging material used for finished products in the Year
2022 are shown in the table below:

FE > AEBPTFEAE R KEEL
RS fn P R B A IR B HI TR ¢

Unit Year 2022 Year 2021
Total use of resources BERFEREE B “EEE T —FE
Purchased electricity consumed FIEERRENSE N kWh 263,517 796,411
FRE
Petrol consumed o ¥ FFEF S/ ey kWh 73,509 158,097
TR
Total energy consumed BERAEIES kWh 337,026 954,508
TR
Energy consumption intensity Vete2 FERERE () KWh 1.88 1.97
(per production
volume (kg))
TR
(BEEE (TR)
Natural gas consumed FrEERRAR m3 20,607 118,066
IR
Natural gas consumption intensity "2 Fr¥Ef XK AR % (i2) m3 0.11 0.24
(per production
volume (kg))
T K
(BEEZ (FTR)
Water consumption K m? 4,050 3,381
IR
Water consumption intensity e 2 KB E i) m? 0.02 0.007
(per production
volume (kg))
T K
(BEEE (FTn))
Total packaging material (paper) S RETAEEEME () 822 kg 951 3,770
used for finished products T
Total packaging material (plastic) W RPTAaEME ER) B2 kg 1,980 3,950
used for finished products T
Packaging material (paper) SHEMPBEMR @) w22 kg 0.005 0.008
used per unit produced &2 Fx
Packaging material (plastic) SHERNSEME (EBR) w2 kg 0.011 0.008
used per unit produced ™€ T
Note I:  The conversion factor used to convert data in other units to kWh is sourced from the  Az21 . BRGEM BRI SIEER AT B ENEREF

Energy Statistics Manual issued by the International Energy Agency.

Note 2: Energy consumption intensity, natural gas consumption intensity, water consumption

intensity and intensity of packaging material used in 2021 have been restated.
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The Group’s ability to use energy efficiently can be revealed by its
intention and measures for the reductions in energy consumption. Energy
consumption has a direct effect on the environmental footprint of the
Group, its operational costs, and exposure to certain risks (e.g. fluctuations
in energy supply and prices). The Group’s policies and measures specific
to managing energy use have been stated above. The Group considers
such policies had been adopted and measures had been achieved for the
Year 2022.

The Group’s ability to use water efficiently can be revealed by its
intention and measures for the reductions in water consumption. Water
consumption has a direct effect on the environmental footprint of the
Group, its operational costs, and exposure to certain risks (e.g. reliance
on sources of water that may be considered sensitive due to their relative
size or function; or status as a possibly rare, threatened, or endangered
system; or to their possible support of a particular endangered species of
plant or animal).

During the Year 2022, the Group has not experienced any difficulty in
sourcing water that is fit for the usage of the Group.

The Group's policies and measures regarding to use of water and
electricity are stated below:

Resources saving measure

BREE

Description and the result of measures

ﬁﬁrﬂi #&nﬂ

BB E R ERERE

KEEABWAAEREN T UEBHEZFERE
ROHFERN BRI RERIR  SERSFEE R
EXREENRIRRY EENARERE TRERE
(BIanse R At K BAR AR ED) - AEEFH H5E
TRE R BRI BRI B A LSt - A5
RR/N B _FEERMZ I BRI BRI
Hif o

AEEA WA BKBSE I BB E R K
ENEENERIER K EERTELER
AVERIR B B~ S A R B T LR (0 - 4k
5 0] AE R HARH AR AR S Th SE MRS 7% BURKBY 2K
R HEFERFERN ZEEBIREEHR
MBIARAS ; B H A A R — R e E =
;) ©

R FE ANEEEKREGE
BY7KIR T E I RS B IR 2 o

GAEEER

FEBARAKKABNBEREERET FX
Rt :

Energy saving

Variable-frequency drives are installed on some of the machineries that do not need to be run at

full speed, such installation can reduce energy consumption and energy costs.

a5 ok

B RE
Water saving

BIRRTENETEREREFNKES L ErlR e RHFE R AR

Open recirculating system is installed in Liaoning’s factory in order to absorb process heat from

machineries. This system uses the same water over and over again, it can reduce electricity

consumption for water processing.
ERFIFRIK
DIKERIBIBIZRIE JHFE

B T Rk B RV IR R4 A DUR U R 2 4 B 2AAE

oA R B ERARRIRIIK » RIR
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To better manage the Group’s material topics and its performance on
environmental aspect, the Group decides to set quantifiable targets for use
of resources over the Year 2024 as follows:

AHEEMEEAERENERZERATERIES
HRRR ZEFRERE S _NFEERME
FRREEERImT

Environmental indicators Reduction target Baseline Year Status
IRIRHEIR HHEE R BEFE N
Energy consumption intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2024 Year 2019 In progress
ERERE “EMEERRL3% “E-NEFE EITHR
Natural gas consumption intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2024 Year 2021 In progress
FIERRAREE — T UFEEATRL3% TRT-FE ETHR
Water consumption intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2024 Year 2019 In progress
EKBE “EMEEATRL3% “E-NEFE EITHR

The Group will continue to work for the target sets and review the status
annually prior to Year 2024.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Group is committed to reducing the operation impacts on
environment and natural resources. Policies are established to consider
the actual impacts on environment and natural resources and to reduce
such impacts. The Group encourages environmental education and
advocacy among employees to motivate environmentally responsible
behaviour which helps fulfil the Group’s commitment to minimising its
adverse impacts on the environment.

The Group understands that its performance in respect of emissions,
waste production and disposal, and use of resources impacts the
environment, the Group endeavours to minimise such impacts,
and communicate the Group’s environmental policies, measures,
performance, and achievements to the stakeholders. No significant impact
on the environment and natural resources was caused in view of the
Group’s business nature. Policies and/or measures adopted specific to
managing potential impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources are mentioned above.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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CLIMATE CHANGE

Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (the “TCFD”) provides
a reporting framework for companies to report their climate-related risks
to the stakeholders. TCFD divided climate-related risks into physical risks
and transition risks, the physical impacts of climate change and transition
risks brought by decarbonisation could have material impact to the
Group’s operation and development. The Group has raised its awareness
towards the risks and potential impacts on the Group due to climate
change. The Group has identified the climate-related risks that may
adversely impact the Group’s operations and development.

The Group understands that the climate change has posed existential
threats to the world and its operation, and the Group must put effective
measures in place to protect its operations from potential disruptions
and damages caused by them. Such risks include physical risks such
as typhoon and rainstorms potentially leading to loss of electrical power,
property and machinery damage and staff casualty as well as transition
risks such as policy and regulatory changes.

In response to these, the Group has created risk management system
and procedures to identify, monitor and control climate change impacts.
Particular measures to mitigate client change related impacts include
the enhancement and well maintenance of building design and structure
and facilities therein to strengthen endurance against extreme weathers.
Emergency plans including flexibility of working hour and location under
certain extreme weathers are also in place to maintain the Group’s day-to-
day operation in order and reduce risks of staff injuries when commuting.

The Group is also concerned about the exposure to relevant regulatory
requirement that would have potential cost implications or disruption of
operation due to failure to meet them by the then practices of operations.
Failure to comply with those limits would lead to a fine and or even
an order to suspend the operation for a certain period. The Group will
regularly review relevant policy updates and assess their potential impact
on the operation and stipulate relevant responsive measures to mitigate
the potential risks.

BBt & RS

SRR

RIZBRAMBRETIF)AE (TTCFD ) BAF
ARFNERSHRGRRERREHRSER-
TCFDFSRIFMER ARSI D R B R AR KB ER
% ECHRNREEHNERTERIEER
Rl AEBNEEREREMERT E L
EEEHHREREZCHTERTROARK
B BIREEH - AR B EHR Pl AERE
SEREREMAMEENRIEARERR

FEEPRRECEHERRHESEERE
FEB  MASEBEERRNEVIEHRELSER
RHILEMBEETIRKRIEE - ARREREER
FEERENRR MEREMBRRURETHT
PR R ZREBRIREAR  LURBERKREEEE
FEERER -

REHIEERE ~EEERUTRBEERTK
R MR B SRR R AR E R E o Bl
EREFRETENAREREE MR KRR

BERET BRI > UG SR IE SRR i K AT
SEN - AEETRBERL R (BEEETIER

KRR T LIER BRI BARVEE S 1) DU AN E
WEESE LU B T RS RGN R o

FEETRIEEEERENER AIEERE
R ZEEERAREmEAAEEREMELE
TER AT B EE T - NET I ERBIR SR
e EEmMLEEEE—RPE -AEERE
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group established Staff Handbook covering topics such as: (i)
compensation and dismissal; (ii) recruitment and promotion; (iii) working
hours; (iv) rest periods; (v) equal opportunity; (vi) diversity; (vii) anti-
discrimination; and (viii) other benefits and welfare.

The Group offers competitive remuneration to attract and retain talented
staff members. Remuneration packages are reviewed periodically to
ensure consistency with employment market. Laws and regulations on
minimum wage and statutory social benefits are required to be followed.
Dismissal is required to comply with employment laws and regulations,
and to follow the internal policies and procedures, including policy on
prevention of dismissal purely on employees’ gender, marital status,
disability, or family status.

The Group attracts talent through fair, flexible and transparent recruitment
strategy. Recruitment process includes application for recruitment,
description of position, collection of job applications, interview, selection,
approval, and job offering. Promotion is required to be based on
performance and suitability.

Employees’ working hours, rest periods, benefits and welfare, including
social security benefits and mandatory provident fund, are required to be
in compliance with employment or labour laws and regulations. Selected
benefit programs, including medical coverage, are also provided.

The Group is an equal opportunity employer. The Group endeavours to
provide a fair workplace for employees and follow the principles of equality
and non-discrimination. Recruitment, remuneration, promotion, and
benefits are required to be handled based on objective assessment, equal
opportunity and non-discrimination regardless of gender, race, or other
measures of diversity.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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The composition of the Group’s workforce by gender, employment type,
age group and geographical region as of 31 December 2022 is stated as

follows:

WORKFORCE BY GENDER
BERIE D

Female

# M 45%
Male
B

WORKFORCE BY AGE GROUP
BEaAR R 5

Under 30 years old
30 AT

Over 50 W

years old
BOMELLE 390,

55%

30-50 years old
305% £505%

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BB A g RS EI S

BE_Z__HF+_RA=+—H -&x&EEEH
A EEEE  FHER St ER DBV EE 18
RRIBERANT

WORKFORCE BY EMPLOYMENT TYPE
BEEERE S

Part time
I

8%

Full time

S

WORKFORCE BY GEOGRAPHICAL REGION
Bt EE S

Hong Kong
E
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During the Year 2022, the employee turnover rate of the Group by
categories is as follows:

RIZ-ZFE 7EERER B DHRE MK
EERynT -

Year 2022 Year 2021
Employee turnover rate by categories BB TIEERKILE “ECHE S HE
By gender el I RIE 5 D
— Male —B% 103% 13%
— Female —% 14% 13%
By age group Moe B AEE 5
— Under 30 years old — 30 LR 275% 26%
— 30— 50 years old — 30E505% 58% 14%
— Over 50 years old — 50 A 36% 3%
By geographical region e ) & 2| 4 @D
- PRC —mh 85% 15%
— Hong Kong —58 25% 7%
Note 1:  Employee turnover rate by categories is calculated by dividing the total number 3%l . $Z4BRIBI D HRE AR iRz @R RN ES

of employees departed in such category by the total number of employees in the
corresponding category.

The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure
the compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating to
employment during the course of operation. In the Year 2022, there was
no case of material non-compliance with the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China (FZE AR HEFES5EN/%), the Labour Contract Law
of the People’s Republic of China (FZEAREFMEZEEREE), the
Employment Ordinance ({f21&15&4)) and the relevant laws and regulations
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other benefits and welfare on the Group. In addition, there was no
report of significant fines or sanctions as a result of non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations in the Year 2022.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR

BRERLARIEERR R EEAHETH -

FEBBRREEAEFHNEE  LIRFRINEER
RPEST R ERREERNBE SR M E R AR
TR HFE BEREER(PEAREMN
B EE)  (PEARHKMEFZEHERE) (&
RBIRG) REXERNBEREE BELS
T TER B R FERE Z2Tib RIRR
RE BN ET A AR AR ROERBTT
Feltih M2 " FER - WHEEE RAER
ERRGERMIRRE AR SRS ES



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group has established Health and Safety Policies covering topics
such as: (i) providing safe working environment; (ii) protecting employees
from occupational hazards; and (iii) work-life balance. The Group is
committed to maintaining a healthy and safe workplace for employees,
and to preventing workplace injuries and illnesses.

The Group requires entities to establish and document policies and
procedures on safety for employees to follow, set targets for the safety of
employees, monitor the safety performance against the targets periodically
and report any safety incidents to management.

One of the key factors for successfully protecting employees from
occupational hazards is to train employees to protect themselves from
psychological and physical hazards. The Group encourages such training
to be delivered to employees.

During the Year 2022, the number and rate of work-related fatalities

BRI L@ R
BEEARZE
AEEEHERERZTE  EESBAIN

(HEftZ 2 TIFRE )RR SR B
= ; RiEE TG - A EER N AESRLRE
RERNTERERFEESSEHELEE
B

FEESREBERFIERIBREEEETZZ
EHRKRERF U REZZER EHHRE
ERERER TREEEEREAIZ2ER -

RIEEREBEHBEEREZHT—EMHER
millEERER SRR VERIREE A&
EzE s EERMARIE

N2 ZFE RISECABRSE TR UREA

occurred and the number of lost days due to work injury is as follows: TEBEENTELENT :
Year 2022 Year 2021 Year 2020
Work-related fatalities occurred EIET “ECCEE —E—FE —ETHEE
Number of work-related fatalities EATETAH - - -
Work-related fatalities rate (%) EIETE (%) - - -
Year 2022 Year 2021
Number of lost days due to work injury ~ BRI L{Ei8kIT{EEH ZEICFE ZEIFE
Lost days due to work injury ATHEEETEHE - 25
In response to the outbreak of the Coronavirus Disease 2019  #t¥—Z—H BT RFEEZIE (TCOVID-19.) BY

(“COVID-19") pandemic, the Group has taken certain actions to
strengthen the health and safety precautionary measures in factory and
offices in Liaoning, Beijing and Hong Kong to protect the health of its
employees. Employees are required to wear surgical face masks in factory
and office, apart from that, the Group has increased the frequency of
cleaning and sterilisation in working areas.

E%Iﬁ%lE%ﬂ%?ﬁ@MﬁL@Aﬁm&

B TR RIAZNRERZ 2 RS Ll

(RISIRE R o EETE TRRIAZ RS

SMRIOE IE5h A E E RN TR B E R
RN IR

Annual Report 2022
FER

_7__

53



5

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B & RIS

The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure the
compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating to health
and safety during the course of operation. In the Year 2022, there was no
case of material non-compliance with the Regulations on Work-Related
Injury Insurance of the People’s Republic of China ((FFZE A RHEFE
TE1RBR1EA)), the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance ({88
¥ 2R EEBEEA)) and the relevant laws and regulations relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards that have a significant impact. In addition, there was
no report of significant fines or sanctions as a result of non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations in the Year 2022.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group has established Development and Training Policies covering
topics such as: (i) vocational training; and (ii) training and resources
for the directors and senior management. The Group is committed to
providing adequate training to the employees to improve their knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work. Training includes vocational
training courses provided internally or externally.

The Group requires employees to attend internal and external training
courses including employee continuing education to improve employees’

knowledge and skills for their job positions.

During the Year 2022, the percentage of employees trained is as follows:

AEABEREHERNEE  LIRFRINEER
BT REE LT 2EMIBER RS LE
FER R IEIFE WERESEER (PE
ARHEME THEREEAG) (L2 R BREIE
B)) RERH 22 TIBRIERRERE R TR
EEMEENERER AR BEEATEZIT
Zolltsh RIEZZEER WERERER
R RS ER B E A S AR A AR S

%R R iEsl

KEECHIE R RAIFIEER  REZEEHIN
OBZEE ; RNEFRESREEBIIENIIRE
R AERR OB RERMHEMEI ZHES
FRIT TARB B BURI B Re b BE - s F NI BB A S
e ESEHlE e

FEBZREESNMAINBE IR 5 RS
FHEHE » LIRFHE SR TR B R AE

g — g [ T

Year 2022 Year 2021
Percentage of employees trained by categories RERNESHNZIEEE DL “ECCHEE —EC—EE
Percentage of employees trained 2 ZillEE B 7L W= 37% 53%
By gender (Note 2) ;ﬁtrﬂgﬂu guﬁ (Hitz)
— Male —Bt 71% 71%
— Female —LE 29% 29%
By employee category "2 REEHER o W)
— Senior level —=k 29% 8%
— Middle level —rhaR 29% 19%
— Entry level — 4 42% 73%
Note 1:  Percentage of employees trained is calculated by dividing the number of employees  Aif3t] - ZHBREM B D LIV R2MNEIRE A EGLUES

who took part in training by the number of employees.
Note 2:  Breakdown for employees trained by categories is calculated by dividing the number
of employees trained in such category by the number of employees who took part in
training.
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Training and development courses are offered throughout the Group to
upgrade employee skills and knowledge. During the year, all directors
participated in continuous professional development activities by reading
regulatory updates, and/or attending seminars or workshops relevant to
the business or directors’ duties.

During the Year 2022, average training hours completed per employee is
as follows:

BB E R ERERE

FEEP B RIS KRR LIETHER
ZRAERA# - FR 2REFRBREERE
MER R, B2 INE RN E EH BRI
eSS R ERE S REE

TR TFE BEEEEMTIOR IR
e

Year 2022 Year 2021
Average training hours by categories FREERI 81 2 B 39 8 R 2L T FE “EFE
Average training hours per employee 2 E BB T3 gy ) 1.7 11
Average training hours by gender ("2 %R 85 B F 15 5| R gy 2
- Male —B% 1.8 0.8
— Female M 13 18
Average training hours by employee category o2 REE1BR B0 IS5 R g i)
— Senior level —=iR 114 16
— Middle level —Hhik 19 16
— Entry level —4R 03 11
Note 1:  Average training hours per employee is calculated by dividing the total number of — Af5#1 . & EETFHZ IR IREZ IR H R UEE AR

training hours by the number of employees.

Note 2: Average training hours by categories is calculated by dividing the total number of
training hours for such category by the number of employees in the corresponding
category.

T8
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LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group has established Labour Standards Policies covering topics
such as: (i) preventing child and forced labour; and (i) preventing
workplace bullying. The Group is committed to avoiding child and forced
labour in the workplace. Besides, all employees are strongly encouraged
to report any bullying conduct they experience through the complaint
channel provided by the Group.

The Group prohibits child labour. It requires human resource department
and user departments work together to prevent or identify child labour,
and to ensure child labour is not in the workforce. The Group is committed
to protecting human rights, to prohibiting forced labours, and to creating a
workplace with respect, fairness, and free will for the employees.

The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure
the compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating
to labour standards during the course of operation. In the Year 2022,
there was no case of material non-compliance with the Labour Law
of the People’s Republic of China ({(FR#E ARIEFMEEENL)), the
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour ({22 1-fRE TR
TE)), the Employment Ordinance ({1@{E{&%)) and the relevant laws
and regulations relating to preventing child or forced labour that have
a significant impact. In addition, there was no report of significant fines
or sanctions as a result of non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations in the Year 2022.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Supply chain management is a key area of the Group’s business, which
includes managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
The Group requires suppliers to provide products and services for the
Group with up-to-standard quality, health and safety to ensure compliance
with environmental laws and regulations, and labour standards. The
contracting for procurement of products and services is required to be
based solely upon specification, quality, service, price, tendering, and
applicable environmental and social considerations.
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The Group requires impartial selection of suppliers and service providers,
maximisation of competition in tendering process, approval of contract
terms, compliance with laws and regulations, prevention and detection
of bribery or fraud in the tendering and procurement process, and
accomplishment of efficiency and cost saving in procurement.

The Group established Supply Chain Management Policies, including
(i) assessment; (i) selection; (iii) approval; (iv) procurement; and (v)
performance evaluation. Performance evaluation is based on quality,
service, cost, environmental protection, and social responsibilities.

During the Year 2022, the Group was not aware that any key suppliers
had any significant actual and potential negative impact on business
ethics, environmental protection, human rights and labour practices, nor
any of them had any non-compliance incident in respect of human rights
iSSues.

During the Year 2022, the number of suppliers by geographical region is
as follows:

BB E R ERERE

FERFENREEEHRRFRERRLAR

B BRAREFERREFNHSI N BHEH
1R TR ROER B L BAR AR R R ks
2R PRI EINGFI T2 RIRHE A RIB R K
A A o

FEECHICHERSIERR SRE ()57 )
PRIEE G 5 (V)RS 5 Re(FRIRETA o RITFT(L
BERNRE RS R BREAEEET

N TE T T EE AERBARNRE A EEHRE
B E IR R ARG T BREMEM
BAEBBRREBTEIEE TANREARER
ARBBAREENFAEREF-

RIZ-"FE @Ee s nnHERHE
LI

Year 2022 Year 2021
Geographical region IR @i TEBICEE “EC—FE
PRC ] 149 47
Hong Kong 58 11 8

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Product responsibility refers to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to services provided. The Group has
established Product Responsibility Policies to study the overall and actual
implementation of the Group’s sustainable procurement activities and
report directly to the director and company secretary.

The Group is fully responsible for its services and products. The Group
ensures health and safety relating to the services provided and products
produced.

EmafE
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The Group respects its customers’ rights and is committed to providing
accurate services and products information for customers in connection
with their purchase decision. The Group requires careful review of
advertising material to protect customers’ interest.

The Group is committed to protecting customer data and privacy
information and keeping business information confidential. Training to
employees in this regard and proper information system security are
required.

The Group attaches importance on protecting intellectual property rights
and has complied with all applicable legal requirements to prohibit
intellectual property infringement.

Although the Group ensures the quality of its services and products, at
the same time, the Group requires that services and products with quality,
safety, or health issues should be compensated in accordance with
terms of service and products contracts. Compensation is required to be
offered to all customers who are affected with consistent treatment and
procedures.

The Group’s trading business has a sales return policy whereby the
customers can lodge a complaint to the responsible sale person who
will get approval from the general manager for sales return due to minor
product defect in quality. Customers can submit complaint through social
media channel of the Group’s trading business where a post-sale service
staff will regularly respond and take follow-up actions for customers

enquiry.

During the Year 2022, the Group did not have any product recall for health
and safety reasons or receive any complaint on its service or product
quality from the customers.

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance ((fEAZE#} FABS) 15451)) and other
applicable laws and regulations that have a significant impact relating to
privacy matters in regard to products and services provided by the Group
in the Year 2022.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR

FEESERF RN REATPIRHAERRS
RERER HENEER2E - KAEBERF
MEEESME RETFEme

FEBRNHRER P BIBRALRER T EHE
WRMRE - AEFERERMIL S B EEHIK
TG EEMRMIRE

FEBERFENAERE W8
RE  BILRICAIHERE

STEBRERAR

BEAEERFRERS MEmmE  AEEFR
ERERRBRERENFRHBEFTEE %
2R ERENIIRGS R E MR - AEERELU—H
WA KREFRFMART &P ETHE

FEBNESEHRAREGER BRAEHE
BE AR BEEEA AR  EmDIREME
ERERRE -FF A BBAEREZEBHH
MR RIEETRI ERIRFA SR EHE
EE PRI RS BRI

R_E " " FE AERTARRERRT M E
Al AER TEREEFHERENERE
E0EARKFRo

R_T T FE AERSAERAEEPE
MEMMRFBHLREEARLBREATE
BVEREREERBEABR GARRD) RGO LU EAth
BRERRERBIER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group established Anti-Corruption Policies to prohibit employees from
receiving any advantages offered by customers, suppliers, colleagues, or
other parties, while they are performing employee duties, and prohibit any
activities involving conflicts of interest, bribery, extortion, fraud, and money
laundering. Staff Handbook lays out the Group’s expectation and certain
guiding provisions on code of conduct.

In Year 2022, The Group has provided anti-corruption education and
training materials to its directors and staff on a regular basis to raise their
awareness towards ethical and corruption issues.

The Group encourages employees, customers, suppliers, or other parties
to report incidents relating to any conflicts of interest, bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure the
compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating to anti-
corruption during the course of operation. In the Year 2022, there was
no case of any material non-compliance with the Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the People’s Republic of China ({ZE A RHFE K R IEE 7
%)), the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (B LEBABRIEA)) and
the relevant laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering that have a significant impact. In addition, there was no
report of significant fines or sanctions as a result of non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations in the Year 2022.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group endeavours to support the communities in which the Group
operates including community engagement to understand the needs of
communities, and to ensure the Group’s activities take into consideration
of the communities’ interest.

The Group strives to enlarge the business operation so that the Group can
hire more workers to utilize communities” available labour resources.

During the Year 2022, the Group participated in several community
events, driving its commitment to social welfare. For instance, the Group
joined a community event organized by a charity group to dispatch free
face masks, hand sanitizer gels and other necessary consumables to the
underprivileged to fight for the pandemic.

The Group encourages its employees to participate in community
activities, such as community health initiatives, sports, cultural activities,
volunteer work, and education donation. All employees of the Group are
encouraged to participate in environmental protection activities and raise
the environmental awareness of people in the communities.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) and the management of China
Ever Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are committed to achieving and maintaining
high standards of corporate governance, which they consider to be critical
in safeguarding the integrity of the Company’s operations and maintaining
investors’ trust in the Company. It is of utmost importance to conduct
business with accountability, transparency and fairness. The Group’s
interests as well as those of its shareholders will be maximized in the long
run by adhering to these principles. The management of the Group also
actively observes the latest corporate governance developments in Hong
Kong and overseas.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company had complied with all the code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, except the
following deviation:

Code Provision E.1.2

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee exclude review
of and making recommendations to the Board in relation to senior
management remuneration as in the Board’s opinion, it was more
appropriate for the executive directors to perform these duties.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EFERR S

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS =E5T

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors, one Non- ZBEZHRAAZAITES  —RIEHTESK
Executive Director and four Independent Non-Executive Directors PO BIrIEiTES (MBI IEMITES) 4B
(“INEDs”). The brief biographic details of and the relationship among EZEEMEZHEKEBMGACDHNESEES
Board members is set out in the Directors Profiles section on pages 78BEZ&EERENA -EREERI—EEEES
75 to 78. The Board has established three Board Committees, namely & EIEZEEE - RLEETAFNEE D -
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. #®HE-_ZE-_"F+_"HA=+—HIFE ' KE=
Attendance of the Board Meetings, the meetings of the Board Committees HFEZEEH EELE T MREAETH
and the General Meetings for the year ended 31 December 2022 is given ~REEHIW F - EEGLEELZE TS ENES
below. The respective responsibilities of the Board and Board Committees i ARSI B EIBTEHERBE ©

are discussed later in this report.

Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend

1R/ AERLREENRY
Independent
Board Annual
Board Audit  Nomination Remuneration ~ Committee General
Meeting  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting Meeting
Bigs &R
EX8g3 BHZAT RALZET HWZRE ZRE98R  BEAS
Executive Directors BIES
Mr. Wong Lik Ping INERE 710 12 n i
Mr. Lai Ka Fai REELE 10110 i
Mr. Tao Ke [ Ep 510 01
Mr. Qiao Weibing BEELE 0/10 01
Mr. Ng Tin Shui RRERE 210 o1
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Yip Man Vi Eflazt 8/10 n
Independent non-executive Directors BiFRiTEE
Mr. Goh Choo Hwee SERLE n n n
Mr. Ho Hin Yip ffTExE 10110 44 2R n n n
Mr. U Keng Tin REXRE 10110 4/4 n i
Mr. Leung Yiu Ming, David ZERLE 510 n n
Mr. Lo Tsun Yu ERFRE 88 33 17 17
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All Directors are regularly updated on governance and regulatory matters.
There is an established procedure for Directors to obtain independent
professional advice at the expense of the Company in discharge of their
duties.

The Board held meetings from time to time whenever necessary. Notice
of at least 14 days has been given to all Directors for all regular board
meetings and the Directors can include matters for discussion in the
agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying board papers in respect
of regular board meetings are sent out in full to all directors within
reasonable time before the meeting. Draft minutes of all board meetings
are circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable time prior to
confirmation.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of Board Committees are kept
by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and all Directors
have access to board papers and related materials, and are provided with
adequate information on a timely manner, which enable the Board to
make an informed decision on matters placed before it.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During 2022, Mr. Wong Lik Ping
served as the Chairman whereas Mr. Lai Ka Fai served as the CEO of
the Group. The Chairman provides leadership to management in respect
of operational issues. The CEO has overall chief executive responsibility
for the Group’s business development and day-to-day management
generally. The segregation of duties ensures a clear distinction between
the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the CEO's
responsibility to manage the Group’s business on behalf of the Board
in the operational management of the Company. With the support of
Executive Directors and Company Secretaries, the Chairman seeks to
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at board
meetings and receive adequate and reliable information in a timely
manner.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The Board has an non-executive Director, Ms. Yip Man Yi, who mainly
oversees the Company and its business issues in a broad perspective. Ms.
Yip has been appointed for one year term from 17 October 2022 and is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board currently has four INEDs, one of the INEDs hold appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. All INEDs of the Company
have been appointed for a specific term and are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association. The Composition of the Board complied with Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules that the INEDs represented at least one-third of the
Board.

Each of the INEDs has given the Company an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all INEDs are independent and meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution into the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Directors are committed to complying with the code provision C.1.4
on Directors’ training. All Directors have participated in continuous
professional development activities by reading regulatory updates, and/or
attending seminars/workshops relevant to the business/Directors’ duties.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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A record of training they received for the year ended 31 December 2022
was provided to the Company. The individual training record of each
Director received for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:

EEEREEE S F+A=+—HIt
FEBEZNIEIEZHRTEAT  FRETIEH
SEFERE_ZT__HF+_RA=+t—HLFE#E
SIFEIRYECER |

Attending
seminars/
workshops
Reading relevant to
Regulatory the business/
updates directors’ duties
HEmER
FREBREREZ ZEEHEFARZ
BEIER BE g
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Wong Lik Ping T HFgRE v v
Mr. Lai Ka Fai REWETE v v
Mr. Tao Ke pER] v v
Mr. Qiao Weibing sSHELE 4 v
Mr. Ng Tin Shui SREHRGE v/ v
Non-Executive Director ERITES
Ms. Yip Man Yi BHiae =L 4
Independent non-executive Directors BIJERITES
Mr. Lo Tsun Yu ERFRE RZEZZ v v
(appointed on 17 March 2022) FEZR+tHERD
Mr. Ho Hin Yip (CIERE i v v
Mr. U Keng Tin RERKE 4 4
Mr. Leung Yiu Ming, David RIRIBSTE v v
DELEGATION BY THE BOARD EFERE
The Board sets the Group’s objectives and strategies and monitors its BEHEEGFIVAEEBERFKITERERIE
performance. The Board also decides on matters such as annual and BB REEKRPEAES  HER S 12
interim results, merger & acquisition transactions, provision of loans, B EEHERRENGHEERFEREER
director appointments, and dividend and accounting policies and monitors & > W & Bs R A EE [ £ 7 = B NP BS I - BB

the internal controls of the Group’s business operation. The Board has
delegated the authority and responsibility of overseeing the Group’s day to
day operations to management executives.

When the Board delegates aspect of its management and administration
functions to management, clear directions would be given as to the power
of management, in particular, the circumstances where management
should report back to the Board before making decision or entering into
any commitments on behalf of the Group.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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Principal functions that are specifically delegated by the Board to the
management include (i) implementation of corporate strategy and policy
initiatives; (ii) provision of management reports to the Board in respect of
Group’s performance, financial position and prospects; and (iii) day-to-day
management of the Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Diversity of Board Members Policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) and discussed all measurable objectives set for
implementing the policy.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business. All Board appointments will be based on merit
and the candidates will be considered against measurable objectives,
taking into account the Company’s business and needs. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity criteria, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, knowledge,
professional experience and skills. Pursuant to the Amendments to
corporate governance requirements, the Company is required to have a
board with different gender by the end of 2024 and will aim to gradually
increase in the number of female board members thereafter. The
Company will also take into account factors based on its specific needs
from time to time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and the
contribution that the selected candidates may bring to the Board.

On 7 January 2022, the Nomination Committee reviewed the Nomination
Policy and the Board Diversity Policy, and considered that the said policies
were appropriate and effective.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Company adopted a director nomination policy (the “Director
Nomination Policy”) on 14 December 2018 which set out the criteria
and process in the appointment and nomination of directors, in order
to ensure the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company and ensure the Board continuity
and appropriate leadership.
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According to the Director Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee
will carry out evaluation on candidates by considering their skills,
professional qualification, experience, independence (for independent
non-executive directors), gender, time commitment and make
recommendation to the Board based on the nomination procedure. The
Director Nomination Policy will also be reviewed from time to time in order
to satisfy the business needs and ensure compliance with the regularity
requirements as well as maintain good corporate governance practice.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee to ensure that
there are formal and transparent procedures for setting policies on the
remuneration of Directors. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Remuneration Committee comprises the Board’s Chairman, Mr. Wong Lik
Ping, and two INEDs, namely Mr. Ho Hin Yip and Mr. Lo Tsun Yu. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Ho Hin Yip.

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. Pursuant to the
amendments to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules which will come into
effect on 1 January 2023, the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee were adopted, amended and approved by the Board on 30
December 2023.

During the year, three Remuneration Committee meetings were held to
review the remuneration packages of the Directors. The Remuneration
Committee ensures that no Director is involved in deciding his own
remuneration. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, a
copy of which is posted on the Company’s website, are consistent with the
terms set out in the relevant section of the CG Code and Report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Nomination Committee to ensure fair and
transparent procedures for the appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors to the Board. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Nomination Committee comprises the Board’'s Chairman, Mr. Wong Lik
Ping, and two INEDs, namely Mr. Ho Hin Yip and Mr. Lo Tsun Yu. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Wong Lik Ping.
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During the year, one of Nomination Committee meetings were held to
review the structure, size, composition of the Board, existing Nomination
Policy and discuss re-election of directors. In selecting and recommending
candidates for directorship, the Committee will consider the background,
experience, qualification and suitability of the candidates as well as the
Board Diversity Policy. The Board will approve the recommendations
based on the same criteria. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, a copy of which is posted on the Company's website, are
consistent with the terms set out in the relevant section of the CG Code
and Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee comprises
three INEDs, namely Mr. Ho Hin Yip, Mr. U Keng Tin and Mr. Lo Tsun Yu.
The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Ho Hin Yip.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to review and provide
supervision over the financial reporting process and internal controls of
the Group, and perform the corporate governance duties. During the year,
three Audit Committee meetings were held to review and approved the
interim and annual results of the Company, reviewed and recommended
risk management, internal control matters and internal audit function of
the Group, considered and recommended the reappointment and the
remuneration of the external auditors and discussed audit planning and
issues with the external auditors. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, a copy of which is posted on the Company's website, are
consistent with the terms set out in the relevant section of the CG Code
and Report.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the Directors. Having made specific enquiries, all directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.
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To comply with the code provision A.6.4 of the CG Code and Report
und er Appendix 10, the Company has also adopted the Model Code as
the code of conduct for securities transactions by Relevant Employees
to regulate the dealings in the securities of the Company by certain
employees of the Group who are considered to be likely in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information of the Company.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group’s performance, position and
prospects.

Management shall provide sufficient explanation and information to the
Board as will enable the Board to make an informed assessment of
the financial and other information presented before board meeting for
approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and ensuring that the preparation of
the Group’s consolidated financial statements is in accordance with the
relevant requirements and applicable standards.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 88 to 99 of this
annual report.

The Board will present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
to annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive announcements and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and reports
to regulators as well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls

The main features of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group are to provide a clear governance structure, policies and
procedures, as well as reporting mechanism to facilitate the Group to
manage its risks across business operations. The Group has established
a risk management framework, which consists of the Board, the Audit
Committee and the functional responsible management of the Group
(“Senior Management”). The Board determines the nature and extent of
risks that shall be taken in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and
has the overall responsibility for monitoring the design, implementation
and the overall effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems. The risk management and internal control systems of the Group
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. Its improvement is an
ongoing process and the Board maintains a continuing commitment to
strengthen the Company’s control environment and processes. The Board,
through the Audit Committee, conducts reviews of the effectiveness of
such systems once annually, covering all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls. The Group has formulated
and adopted risk management policy in providing directions in identifying,
evaluating and managing significant risks. At least on an annual basis,
the Senior Management identifies risks that would adversely affect the
achievement of the Group's objectives, and assesses and prioritizes the
identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation
plans and risk owners are then established for those risks considered
to be significant. In addition, the Group has engaged Zhonghui Anda
Risk Services Limited (“Zhonghui”) to assist the Board and the Audit
Committee in ongoing monitoring of risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and in performing the internal audit functions for the
Group. The annual review plan of the Group covers major activities and
material controls including operational, financial and compliance of the
Group’s business units. It also covers the changes, since the last annual
review, in the nature and extent of significant risks, and the Group’s ability
to respond to changes in its business and the external environment.
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A report on the result of risk management and internal control review
report from Zhonghui was provided to the Audit Committee and the
Board in March 2023. The Board, through the Audit Committee,
had performed annual review on the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems, including but not limited to
(i) the general compliances with the Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
and the disclosure requirements of the Corporate Governance Report, (ii)
corporate level controls (such as the independence, experience, roles and
responsibilities of the Board and composition of each committee as well as
management monitoring activities), (iii) certain operational level controls,
and (iv) financial reporting functions. In the course of internal audit
reviews, Zhonghui identified internal control deficiencies and weaknesses,
proposed recommendations for improvements and remedial actions with
management and process owners. The management has taken certain
remedial actions accordingly. The results of the internal control reviews
and the management's remedial actions have been reported to the Audit
Committee. One of the deficiencies were related to a delayed reporting
of a disclosable finance lease transaction due to an inadvertent overlook
by a PRC subsidiary. Details of the transaction refer to an announcement
dated 31 January 2022. Zhonghui has followed up with the remedial
measures proposed in the announcement and they were timely taken to
address any occurrence of similar incidents in the future. Other than this,
the Board concluded that there are no material irregularities nor areas of
concern that would have significant adverse impact on the Group's state of
affair, and that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
were effective and adequate (including the resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions) and, save as
discussed in elsewhere in this report, have complied with the CG code
provisions on risk management and internal control during the year. There
was also no material breach of procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information during the year. The
Company regularly reminds the directors and the relevant staff about due
compliance and latest regulatory updates with the insider information and
other relevant regulations.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the auditors of the Company,
Confucius International CPA Limited provided audit and non-audit services
to the Company and the Group, are set out as follows:

RFEE

Nature of services
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Fees paid/
payable
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HK$

HTT
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IEE LIRS

Audit services
Non-audit services

1,680,000.00

1,680,000.00

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 88 to 99.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring the Board
policies and procedures are followed and for facilitating information flows
and communications among Directors and its committees as well as with
shareholders and management, and between management and the non-
executive directors.

Mr. Li Chak Hung and Mr. Siu Wai Bun were resigned as joint company
secretaries and Mr. Lam Koon Fai was appointed as company secretary
of the Company on 7 November 2022. Mr. Lam is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He undertook over 15
hours of relevant professional training to update his skills and knowledge
during the year.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary General Meeting by shareholders

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’'s Articles of Association, any one
or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary at the Company’s office in Hong Kong at Room
2203, 22/F., Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, specifying the shareholding information of the shareholder, his/her
contact details and the proposal he/she intends to put forward at general
meeting regarding any specified transaction/business and its supporting
documents.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to
the procedures available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Making enquiry to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing to the company secretary at the Company’s office in Hong
Kong at Room 2203, 22/F., Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy for striking a right balance
between rewarding its shareholders by sharing a portion of the profits and
meeting adequate cash reserves for its working capital requirements and
future prospects of the Company. With reasonable but not pre-determined
dividend distribution ratio, the proposed amount of dividends will be
made at the discretion of the Board and will depend on the Company’s
operational results, cash flow situation, financial conditions, capital
expenditure requirements, general business conditions and strategies,
future economic environment, statutory and regulatory restrictions and
any other factors that the Board may deem relevant. The policy will be
reviewed from time to time so as to keep in line with the change of market
conditions and other factors as the Board may deem relevant.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
has established a range of communication channels between itself, its
shareholders and investors, including answering questions through the
annual general meeting, the publications of annual and interim reports,
notices, announcements and circulars on the website of the Company at
www.egichk.com.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

In compliance with code provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, the Board
adopted a Whistleblowing Policy on 31 March 2022. It provides
employees and the relevant third parties who deal with the Group (e.g.
customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors) with guidance and reporting
channels on reporting any suspected improprieties in any matters related
to the Group directly addressed to the designated person. An email
account (faith.lam@egichk.com.hk) has been set up for this purpose. All
reported matters will be investigated independently and, in the meantime,
all information received from a whistleblower and its identity will be kept
confidential. The Board and the Audit Committee will regularly review the
Whistleblowing Policy and mechanism to improve its effectiveness.
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ANTI-FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

In compliance with the new code provision D.2.7 of the CG Code, the
Board adopted an Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy on 31 March
2022. It outlines guidelines and the minimum standards of conducts, all
applicable laws and regulations in relation to the anti-corruption and anti-
bribery, the responsibilities of employees to resist fraud, to help the Group
defend against corrupt practices and to report any reasonably suspected
case of fraud and corruption or any attempts thereof, to the management
or through an appropriate reporting channel. The Group would not tolerate
all forms of fraud and corruption among all employees and those acting in
an agency or fiduciary capacity on behalf of the Group, and in its business
dealing with third parties. The Board and the Audit Committee will review
the Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy and mechanism periodically to
ensure its effectiveness and enforce the commitment of the Group to the
prevention, deterrence, detection and investigation of all forms of fraud
and corruption.

On behalf of the Board
Wong Lik Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Lik Ping, aged 62, is the Chairman of the Group. He joined
the Group in August 2012 and is responsible for overall leadership
strategic planning, business development and Board issues of the Group.
He was (i) an executive director and a vice-chairman of Shougang
Fushan Resources Group Limited (stock code: 639) from March 2009
to December 2015 and (i) an executive director and the chairman of
Theme International Holdings Limited (stock code: 990) from November
2009 to January 2016, both companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He is a director and the sole shareholder of Worldkin
Development Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”),
Mr. Wong is a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. He has extensive experience in trading
business, financial industry and investments in a wide range of businesses
in the PRC.

Mr. Lai Ka Fai, aged 53, joined the Group in June 2010 and was
appointed as an executive director and chief executive officer of the
Company in January 2012 and November 2017 respectively. Mr. Lai
is responsible for the corporate governance, administration and new
business development of the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in Laws
from The Manchester Metropolitan University in the United Kingdom, a
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The University of Hong Kong and a
Master degree of Business Administration from the University of Leicester
in the United Kingdom. He is a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region and has over 20 years of experience
in the legal field.

Mr. Tao Ke, aged 39, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 6 March 2015. Mr. Tao holds a Master of Social Science
degree from University of Glasgow and a Bachelor degree in Economics
from Beijing Institute of Technology. Mr. Tao has extensive experience
in corporate finance and overseas merger and acquisition. He worked
in international investment banks and responsible for clients’ project
management, project acquisition and various initial public offerings. Mr.
Tao is currently a general manager of a chemical production group in
Shandong.
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Mr. Qiao Weibing, aged 55, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 17 March 2016. Mr. Qiao holds a bachelor degree
from Shanxi University and a master degree in management engineering
from China University of Mining and Technology. Mr. Qiao has over 20
years' working experience in the government regulatory authorities and
financial institutions in the PRC. Mr. Qiao is currently the chief investment
officer of the Company and the chairman and CEO of Beijing Ever Grand
International Finance Lease Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company in the
PRC.

Mr. Ng Tin Shui, aged 67, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 9 September 2020. Mr. Ng holds a bachelor degree of
science in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Saskatchewan
in Canada. He was the chairman of Hong Kong Overseas Merchants
Association between 2008 and 2014. He is also the life time member of
the American Society of Mechanical Engineers. Mr. Ng has over 30 years
of experience in trading of a variety of pharmaceutical products, health
supplement, personal care and other healthcare products (collectively
“Pharmaceutical and Healthcare Products”). Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Ng was involved in sales and corporate management in the trading
of Pharmaceutical and Healthcare Products, including KT&G Ginseng
and Tiger Balm, which were first authorised products for distribution
in Hong Kong. Recently, his scope of work and experience expanded
to the investment in the research and development and production of
biotechnologies, including application of algae and marine ingredients,
plant stem cell and Car-T cell specialised in the cancer DNA reading and
implanting.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Yip Man Yi, aged 51, was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company in October 2019. Ms. Yip was graduated from Seneca
College of Applied Arts and Technology, Toronto, Canada and has over
23 years’ experience in financial market and money market. Ms. Yip has
been worked with HSBC Market (Asia) Limited for Global Markets and
companies listed on both the Main and the GEM Boards of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. She was actively involved in formulating
investment strategy and was responsible for overseeing the operation of
various investment projects. Ms. Yip was appointed as executive director
and chairman of Hephaestus Holdings Limited (stock code: 8173)
(formerly known as Union Asia Enterprise Holdings Limited), a company
listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange from December 2015 to
November 2019.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lo Tsun Yu, aged 38, has been appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee, a member of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
with effect from 17 March 2022. Mr. Lo obtained his Bachelor of
Arts degree in Economics from the University of Toronto in 2007 and
subsequently a Juris Doctor degree from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 2011. Mr. Lo is currently a practising solicitor at Messrs. P. C. Woo
& Co., a firm of solicitors and notaries in Hong Kong. Mr. Lo specializes
in corporate finance work including initial public offerings, mergers and
acquisitions and regulatory compliance. Mr. Lo was admitted as a solicitor
in Hong Kong in August 2014.

Mr. Ho Hin Yip, aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in December 2012. He is presently
the Financial Controller and Joint Company Secretary of Singapore-listed
Dukang Distillers Holdings Limited, where he is responsible for the finance
and accounting functions, statutory compliance and corporate governance
affairs. He has more than 20 years of financial and auditing experience.
He is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He also acts/has served as an independent
non-executive director of each of Jiyi Holdings Limited (stock code: 1495)
(formerly known as Jiyi Household International Holdings Limited), Hope
Life International Holdings Limited (stock code:1683) from August 2015
to February 2017 and from August 2018 to July 2019) and Xinhua News
Media Holdings Limited (stock code: 309) (from December 2014 to April
2020), all of which are companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. U Keng Tin, aged 72, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in May 2013. He holds the Bachelor’s
degree of Arts from York University, Canada and Master's degree of Arts
in International Economics from University of San Francisco, USA. He is
presently a director of an estate management company, Full Fill Services
Co., Limited. He has also acted as a non-executive director of Noble
Engineering Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8445) from September
2020 to June 2021. He has over 30 years of experience in the securities
industry.
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Mr. Leung Yiu Ming, David, aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Company on 9 September 2020. Mr. Leung
holds a Bachelor's degree of Pharmacy from National Defense Medical
Center, School of Pharmacy in Taipei Taiwan, and a master of Science
Clinical Pharmacy from University of Sunderland in the UK. He obtained
a pharmacist registration and practising certificate from Pharmacy &
Poisons Board of Hong Kong. Over 20 years, Mr. Leung has been working
as pharmacist and/or consultant in various dispensaries and medical
centers where he is responsible for operation, strategic planning and
execution of pharmaceutical business. He has been an adjunct lecturer
of Pharmaceuticals and Pharmacology in HKU SPACE. Mr. Leung has
extensive experience, qualifications and exposure in sales and supply
and business management of pharmaceutical and healthcare products in
Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC markets.
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The Board is pleased to present this Report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding.

Details of the activities and other particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's revenue and segment information for the
year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in note 5 and note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 100
and 101 of this annual report.

The directors do not recommend payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 236 of this annual report.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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HEGHRS

SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Under the Companies Act, Cap. 22(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman lIslands, the share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to
the provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of Association and provided
that immediately following the distribution of dividend the Company is able
to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

At 31 December 2022, in the opinion of the directors, the Company’s
share premium and reserves available for distribution to shareholders
amounted to HK$204,874,000.

Movement in the share premium and reserves of the Group during the
year are set out on page 104 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and five
largest customers represented 6% and 24% of the Group’s revenue in
2022 respectively.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and
five largest suppliers represented 26% and 75% of the Group’s purchases
in 2022 respectively.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital has any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions during the year are disclosed in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the financial year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Wong Lik Ping (Chairman)
Mr. Lai Ka Fai

Mr. Tao Ke

Mr. Qiao Weibing

Mr. Ng Tin Shui

Non-executive director
Ms. Yip Man Yi

Independence non-executive directors

Mr. Ho Hin Yip

Mr. U Keng Tin

Mr. Leung Yiu Ming, David

Mr. Lo Tsun Yu (appointed on 17 March 2022)
Mr. Goh Choo Hwee (resigned on 17 March 2022)

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Company's Articles of Association,
Mr. Tao Ke, Mr. Ng Tin Shui, Ms. Yip Man Yi and Mr. Leung Yiu Ming,
David shall retire from offices by rotation in the forthcoming annual general
meeting, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The biographic details of the existing directors are set out on pages 75 to
78 of this annual report.
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HEGHRS

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

The term of service as a Director is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the provisions of the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles”). Each of the Non-executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Director has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of one year subject
to re-election in the forthcoming AGM. None of the Directors who are
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract
with any member of the Group which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the directors have any interest in competing business to the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2022, the following directors and chief executive of
the Company have the following interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO and the Model Code:
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

HEGHRE

Long and short positions in the ordinary shares/underlying shares of the ~ RAVATIE @G, FBRARMND 2 IHFERKAE :
Company:
Number of share/underlying shares held
HERK /18RRI EE
Long (L) or
Total Short (S)  Percentage of
Nature of interest interests Position interests
FELH
Directors/chief executive 55 /TETBAE g Ly KBS  HEHESH
Wong Lik Ping ThHE Beneficial owner 46,600,000 S 2.76%
BaBEaA
Controlled corporation 145,500,000 S 8.62%
ZEHER (Note 1)
(Hiz1)
Ng Tin Shui RRE Interest of spouse 163,900,000 L 9.71%
Bk (Note 2)
(Hz22)
Controlled Corporation 56,570,000 L 3.35%
ZEHER (Note 3)
Hiz3)
Notes: g2
1. These interests are held by Worldkin Development Limited (“Worldkin”) which is 1. ZERTHEEEREBRAR (HE)) 55 > mitE)
wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Lik Ping. Mr. Wong is therefore deemed to be interested in HEAFREZERES ALt FRERRARHEE)
the shares held by Worldkin under the SFO. BB ZRDTHERE S EAERGIFTRE 2 s o
2. Ms. Chi Chin is the spouse of Mr. Ng Tin Shui, Mr. Ng is deemed to be interest in 2. TERTARKRELENR B  RAEREANE
163,900,000 shares held by his spouse under the SFO EofB1F A 2.163,900,0000 &7 A5 5 R HRE K
IR FRE 2 A o
3. These interests are held by China Food Safety Holding (Hong Kong) Company 3. ZERDHPRLER (&) BRAE (PR%R

Limited (“CFSH (HK) Co., Ltd"), which is wholly-owned by MR. Ng Tin Shui, Mr. Mg
is therefore deemed to be interested in the shares held by CFSH (HK) Co., Ltd under

the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executive and their
associated had any interests or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations,
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded in the register kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of

Part XV of the SFO and the Model Code.
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HEGHRS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S RIGHTS
TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

The directors and chief executive have been granted unlisted options
under the Company’s share option scheme, details of which are set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the directors, chief
executive of the Company nor their associates had or was deemed to
have any long positions or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which has been recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which
has been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code of the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2022, in accordance with the register of the
substantial shareholders kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO, or to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and the Listing Rules, the following persons were interest
(including short positions) in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

HEGHRE

Interest in the ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company: RASATE@AL, FRRAIRD Z %
Number of
Shares/ Long (L) or
underlying Short (S) Percentage
Nature of interest Notes Shares held positions holding
HERR/ FELH
Name of Shareholders RRAE,/ e s Mzt MHRERHHE HB(S) RRESIT
Worldkin Development Limited ~ tE1%EERAT Beneficial owner I 145,500,000 S 8.62%
BREAA
Mr. Wong Lik Ping ITHFERE Beneficial owner I 192,100,000 S 11.39%
BB
Funde Sino Life Insurance Co. Ltd. E2%m ASRE Beneficial owner 357,443,000 L 21.18%
RABRATF BB
Oshidori International Holdings  EEEREZRBIRAE  Security interest 3 192,100,000 L 11.39%
Limited ERED
Win Wind Capital Limited BREAERAT Security interest 3 192,100,000 L 11.39%
ERER
Win Wind Resources Limited BRERERAT Security interest 283 192,100,000 L 11.39%
ERER
Ms. Chi Chin TEZLLT Controlled corporation 5 163,900,000 L 9.71%
ZEGAE
Interest of spouse 5 56,570,000 L 3.35%
fofefEs
Heron Biomedical Limited EEREEYEE Beneficial owner 5 163,900,000 L 9.71%
BIRAT BREAA
CFSH (HK) Co. Ltd. HELER (&8 Beneficial owner 6 56,570,000 L 3.35%
BRAR BB
Expert Magic Limited Expert Magic Limited Beneficial owner 4 175,870,968 L 10.42%
BREAA
Lam Tsun On WEZ Beneficial owner 9,376,129 L 0.56%
BB
Controlled corporation 4 175,870,968 L 10.42%
ZEEAE
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HHEGRE
Notes:
1. Mr. Wong Lik Ping holds entire equity interest of Worldkin Development Limited

(“Worldkin”) and is accordingly deemed to have interest in 145,500,000 shares of
the Company that Worldkin has interests in. Mr. Wong personally owns 46,600,000
shares of the Company.

2. Win Wind Resources Limited has security interests in 192,100,000 shares.

3. Win Wind Resources Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Win Wind Capital
Limited, which in turn is wholly owned by Oshidori International Holdings Limited.
Accordingly, Oshidori International Holdings Limited is deemed to have interests in
192,100,000 shares held by Win Wind Resources Limited.

4, Mr. Lam Tsun On holds 65% equity interest of Expert Magic Limited (“Expert Magic”)
and is deemed to be a controlling shareholder of Expert Magic.

5. Out of the 220,470,000 shares which Ms. Chi Chin was interested in (i) 163,900,000
shares were held by Heron Biomedical Limited, a company wholly owned by her; and
(i) 56,570,000 shares were held by her spouse, Mr. Ng Tin Shui.

6. CFSH (HK) Co., is wholly-owned by Mr. Ng Tin Shui.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as having an interest or
a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as at
31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

THE Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 60 to 74 of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provides that each Director or other officer of the Company
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his or her office or otherwise in relation
thereto. In addition, the Company has maintained appropriate directors
and officers liability insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against
the Directors and officers of the Group.
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A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 467 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for the
benefit of the directors of the Group is currently in force and was in
force during the year. The Company has taken out insurance against the
liabilities and costs associated with proceedings which may be brought
against directors of the Group.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained the amount
of public float as approved by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and as
permitted under the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purposes of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the coming annual general meeting, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from 5 June 2023 to 8 June 2023 (both days
inclusive), during such period no transfer of shares in the Company will
be effected. In order to qualify for entittement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company Hong
Kong Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at 17/F., Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m., 2 June 2023.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 were audited by Messrs. Confucius International CPA Limited
(“Confucius”).

A resolution to re-appoint Confucius as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Wong Lik Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
o ST AZ AR

SAN-C/IVA

Confucius International

REEBRFHEIFHATARSS

CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE MEMBERS OF

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
FEEEMEHEERARAT

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Ever
Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd. (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 100
to 235, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

MBS EE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
RS AZ B

FRESSFE

RIREH FIERIBR RSN RE A A HE
RN BRENBH BABENEE LS

BRER M S AN RER AR S

BTN - PR S L IR (R

BR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBANAHARESFEETERE

Valuation of investment properties

REMEMLE

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
2R E M EIRERMFELS

The Group had investment properties held by subsidiaries of
approximately HK$147,670,000 as at 31 December 2022 for
which a gain arising on change in fair value was recognised
and presented as “Fair value change on investment
properties” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. The fair value was determined
by management with reference to the valuations performed
by independent professional property valuers (the “Valuers”)
engaged by the Group.

RNZT-_"HF+"A=+—H> SEEEEWBAERA
A EY)E49147,670,0008 70 HATELBEL 2 Wm
EERES Ut a R kAt EERERTIITS RE
MENTHEEE) A THEDHEEEZE SEEZEZ
BB ERD ((SERT)) PRETTRGEMEE -

Our key procedures to address the matter included:
HMREZEBETEREEE

° evaluating the competence, capabilities,
independence and objectivity of the Valuers;

° obtaining and reviewing the valuation reports prepared
by the Valuers;
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LRVA A LG ey

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

MEEAEE

FREFFE®

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN AREFFRETRE

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

REMEMLE (@

The valuations of investment properties involved significant
judgements and estimates including:

- the determination of valuation techniques, which
included direct comparison approach and income
capitalization approach;

- assumptions of market conditions; and

- the selection of different inputs in the models.

We found the key assumptions used in management’s

valuations of investment properties were supported by the

available evidence.

We have identified valuation of investment properties as a key

audit matter because of the significant amounts to the financial

position of the Group and the management judgement and
assumption.

KEMEMBEPTRAERFE R hET 615
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HPRREEENMRENEEEMAZERRRDERE
BESTHr o

MY SEEPBRRIZEER BEERFLFERT
Ba% > ISR E R GERD SRR ETF R

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR

discussing the valuations with management and the
Valuers and challenging the key estimates adopted
and inputs used in the valuations, including those
relating to market selling prices, market rents and
capitalisation rates, by comparing them with historical
rates and market observable data;

evaluating the valuation methodologies used and
the appropriateness of the key assumptions and
parameters based on our knowledge of other property
valuations for similar types of properties; and

checking the accuracy and relevance of the input data
used in the valuations on a sample basis.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
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FAREAEIE®

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HANESNAHRRES FHETRE

Impairment assessment of loan receivables

FEW S iR (E AT

Referring to notes 21 and 35 to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
had recognised impairment losses, net of reversal, on loan
receivables of HK$59,277,000.

Impairment assessment of loan receivables is a key area due
to the level of judgement exercised by the management in
determining the amount of allowance.

The balances of impairment allowance for the loan receivables
represent the management’s best estimates of expected credit
losses (“ECL”") at the reporting date under the ECL models.

BREBE"ET_"F+_A=-t+—HULEFEZGIYHR
KMIFE21/35° BEECHMEWRERESTRERE (%
##[8]) 59,277,000/ 7T ©

MR EERENEE R AT RRRFT R 2 HEKT BRE
FUR{E ST AR

W ERRERBERIEEEENTRREEHEEERE TR
HEEHBREERRE (FRREEER) Z&RE G5t

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

° assessing the design and operating effectiveness
of key controls from approval to recording and
monitoring of loan receivables, the credit assessment
process, the identification and timeliness of identifying
impairment indicators, continuous re-assessment
of the appropriateness of assumptions used and
the management’s specific provisions for individual
receivables;

° comparing the total balances of the receivables list,
which contain information used by management to
assess impairment losses for loan receivables with
the general ledger and comparing individual loans
information, on a sample basis, with the underlying
loan agreements and other related documentation;

FFIREZFR TEMEEE

. AU E A HE 2 A R BE 1 R IR BN RS2 42
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HEEAEE

FAREAEIE®

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN AREFFRETRE

Impairment assessment of loan receivables (Continued)

R ETRREE ()

The measurement models of ECL involves significant
management judgements and assumptions, primarily
including the following:

- Criteria for determining whether or not there was
a significant increase in credit risk, or a default or
impairment loss was incurred;

- Economic indicators for forward-looking measurement,
and applicable economic scenarios and weightings.

We have identified management’s impairment assessments
of the ECL of loan receivables as a key audit matter because
of the significant amounts of the receivables to the financial
position of the Group and the management judgement and
assumption.

B B Est SRE
BiE -

BIEEAEERBHERERR T2

- EEEERRRESEEEM BERREENME
IR IR

- AIREIEST 8 2 BT RBRE B IER RIEE -

MR EWTRIESN SEEUBRREEER hEEEF

HZ FIE R > R EEEH B ERTAIEEER
ZBEHEHR SRR ES R

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR

evaluating and assessing the consistency and
reasonableness of assumptions adopted in
management’s calculation of impairment losses
for loan receivables by critically assessing input
parameters involving subjective judgement, seeking
collaborative evidence from external sources and
comparing historical losses against the Group’s other
internal records and prior year records. We also
assessed the emergence period by tracing the life-
cycle of overdue accounts from the specific credit
events to downgrading the accounts to non-performing
receivables;

reviewing ageing analysis of the loan receivables
prepared by management of the Company and
discussing with the management of the Company
whether the amounts are recoverable on a sample
basis;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) FRESFE @
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
R T EIE BB AU RE S BIRETRIE
Impairment assessment of loan receivables (Continued)
FEWERR R EE (B
° examining the management’s estimation on the ECL of

individual balances on sample basis and the expected
loss rate of each category groups and evaluating
the basis and factors used in the estimation to the
appropriateness of the management’s identification of
significant increase in credit risk, defaults and credit
impaired receivables;

° recalculating the amount of impairment losses for loan
receivables; and

° checking subsequent settlements of loan receivables
on a sample basis.

. G EEREEERNENERET ZAIEE
R st R ERAER 2 TRHAR IR > W& {5 Fr
BRZEERAR L EERHEERREE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HEEAEE

AT EIE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HANESFWAHRRES FHETRE

Valuation of equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

BATESAEMEEKET IR ZERE ZGE
Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
amount to HK$93,204,000. The equity investments represent
investments in unlisted equity interest of private entities
established in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China.

2R E M BIREMEELS

RTECCEF+ A=+ —R BATEEBHMEERR
myERZ IR E 7 BREI(E 7393,204,00078 7t ° I IR Ei5
REBRPEARHEMBEIMRIIZMABRIF EHREZ K

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

° evaluating the independent professional valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

° checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
reasonableness of the input data provided by
management to the independent professional valuer,
to supporting evidence, such as market data;

BFIREZERZ T2 M2EE
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Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HANESFNAHRRES FHETRE

Valuation of equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (Continued)

BRATEEREMEEWETIRZ REREZGE (@

The equity investments are valued using different methods
from market approach. Valuation techniques for these
underlying investments can be subjective in nature and
require significant management estimates including financial
forecasts, discount factors, growth rates and market multiples
amongst others. The actual results could therefore differ from
the estimates.

Management has disclosed the judgments and estimates used
for the fair value assessment of investments in note 35 to the
financial statements.

Due to the significant judgments applied by management in
the fair value assessment, the valuation of equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income was
considered as a key audit matter.

RERBERANSEEFZLRBHEZETHE ZFHERE
ZEERMEFAE LEE TR T RESAEEREIFHE
At BREMHRA BRAX BRXEHHEHE-
It > BRERAIAEA R IEEF R -

EEECNMBREMESRBREAN
Eif Ko fii5t o

TSR A2 Y

HRNEEEBN AT ETGHEFER 2 EAHE 8UE AT
EBEEBEMEEW YR RERE 2 hEWNEAE—T8R
REETEIE

° reviewed the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology and models used, and whether they are
in line with generally acceptable valuation guidelines
and principles;

° challenged the key judgments by management with
reference to market data, our own expectations based
on our own industry knowledge and management'’s
strategic plans; and

° assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in relation
to the valuation of equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income, which included
in notes 18 and 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those statements on 31 March 2022.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence, that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
RS AZ B
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Confucius International CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

HO PAK TAT

Practising Certificate Number: P05215

Hong Kong
29 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

froiHm

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_ZE__F#+_HB=+—HILEE

2022 2021
—E-C B —F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
MizE FHET FET
Revenue A 5
Contracts with customers KERREH 62,632 109,604
Leases HE 4,699 5,713
Interest under effective interest method BREMELIETFE 10,455 8,313
Total revenue I gN 77,786 123,630
Cost of revenue NN (63,502) (127,439)
Gross profit/(loss) EH/ (FEB) 14,284 (3,809)
Other income =Rl N 7 4,520 3,391
Other expenses Hihfx (401) (21)
Other gains and losses Hith s R 518 7 160,522 (12,474)
Administrative expenses T (66,973) (65,955)
Impairment losses under expected credit ~ FBEAE BEEBEIE FEE
loss (“ECL") model, net of reversal 518 > {1 BRESE 8 (62,233) (963)
Impairment loss on inventories EFERERSE (7,196) -
Share of results of associates Pag: 3 L/N=IE 1,571 21,342
Finance costs SRR (15) (87)
Profit/(loss) before taxation R ENEF . (B518) 44,079 (58,576)
Income tax expense PR 10 (466) (4,132)
Profit/(loss) for the year TEERH (BB 11 43,613 (62,708)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: TS EREEREE TR,
(&518) :
Owners of the Company KABVHEB A 7,028 (40,619)
Non-controlling interests JEVERR IS Rt tR 36,585 (22,089)
43,613 (62,708)
HK cents HK cents
&l Xl
Earnings/(loss) per share = (k) 8 12
Basic 2K 0.42 (2.41)
Diluted #E 0.42 (2.41)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

BRI EE R % SR BB IR AR BIAE R ER 3

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

fan S HLAth T R AR

n\7|" (= j:

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_ZT__&+ _H=+—HIEEE

2022 2021
—z== T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFHET

Profit/(loss) for the year EEERH (E5B) 43,613 (62,708)
Other comprehensive income/(expense), Hth2EmWBA (k) » INRIRIE

net of tax
Itern that will not be reclassified subsequently to BB T ZEF HIEEEm o EH -

profit or loss:
Fair value changes on equity investment at fair R AT EFBEMEEIATIER

value through other comprehensive income (A FEEBEMEEmSA

(“FVTOCI") R ) Z BRI E 2 AT EEE) (6,735) (18,698)
ltem that are or may be reclassified subsequently B3 480 E £ A]55 & B 7 4EE

to profit or loss: EmZIEE
Exchange difference arising on translation to MWEEREBMEL ZERERE

presentation currency (15,926) 6,966
Share of other comprehensive income of D HhzmUkA

associates (39) (4)
Other comprehensive expense for the year, TEEHMPEBSZ GOMREIFR)

net of income tax (22,700) (11,736)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) TEEREBA S () 4258

for the year 20,913 (74,444)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) TEEZEWA S (%) 8%

for the year attributable to: THRIEREM, :

Owners of the Company KRB A (12,631) (52,352)

Non-controlling interests JEVERR IR B i i 33,544 (22,092)

20,913 (74,444)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR a BRI

At 31 December 2022 MR- __F#+_HF=+—H

2022 2021
B —E-—F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
MizE FAET TFHET
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment Y2~ B Bk 14 87,912 88,520
Prepayment for acquisition of property, BEYME BB
plant and equipment R 2 TR FIE 24 - 17,847
Investment properties KREYE 15 147,670 142,369
Goodwill S 16 25,556 25,556
Interests in associates = YN=1 P 17 98,526 99,608
Equity investments at FVTOCI BATESBEEMEE
WAFBRZ A E 18 93,204 108,762
Finance lease receivables BB BRI 20 4,116 30,580
Loan receivables ERER 21 9,332 61,030
Restricted bank deposits ZIREIRITIER 25 16,960 18,404
483,276 b92,676
Current assets MEMEE
Inventories 78 22 13,391 16,778
Finance lease receivables PEREREWGER 20 47,246 122,782
Loan receivables ERERR 21 = 97,539
Trade receivables B Z W 23 14,379 13,634
Other receivables, deposits and HEAEWER - & R FBI =
prepayments 15 24 48,425 54,121
Financial assets at fair value AT EEBE@YER
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) (BN FEEEBR
BIER)) 2 ERAEBE 19 123,258 147,069
Deposits placed with non-bank EFERRIFRITEREE
financial institutions T3 25 3,217 13,599
Short-term bank deposits THRIRITIERR 25 30,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents B KIBEEEY 25 38,143 23,299
318,059 488,821

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2022

AR e M B IR LR

R=ZE_—"F+_H=+—H

2022 2021
—s-= =
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
st FHET FET
Current liabilities Bk =R
Other payables and accruals HEA = e E A 26 73,633 89,687
Deposits received from customers Sl e =F: 20 2,262 12,268
Tax payables EZRNE 20,829 21,586
Borrowings &R 27 152,645 423,691
249,369 547,232
Net current assets/(liabilities) REEE, (AR FE 68,690 (58,411)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRHEE 551,966 534,265
Capital and reserve BRREE
Share capital &N 29 168,730 168,730
Reserves B 335,175 346,981
Equity attributable to owners of the KNBVEB AELELE
Company 503,905 515,711
Non-controlling interests JEVE GRS BRI o 32,754 35
Total equity R 536,659 515,746
Non-current liabilities ERHEE
Deposits received from customers Sl EY=F 20 13,510 16,478
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBEE 28 1,797 2,041
15,307 18,519
551,966 534,265

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
The consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to 235 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March
2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

WONG LIK PING

INFE
Director

EF

BRI h % R TR B AE A BB D o

HWNEI00EEE23H Y

REMBRENR %

C=EZ A A RBEEE I ERSRTI
TN FEEARE

LAI KA FAI
nEE
Director

EFE

Annual Report 2022
TEIEER

103



104

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AT R E)R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_ZE__F#+_HB=+—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRS AR
Share Investment Non-
Share Share  Translation options Other  revaluation Statutory ~ Accumulated Controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reverse losses Sub-total interests Total
117 REEf I
Rk RIYEE  EREE M Hfte M TR EHER Nt RRES 3t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000
Fhn Thn AR AR AR Thn Fhn Fhn Fhn Fhn Fhn
(Note b) (Note a)
() (s a)
At 1 January 2021 R-B--E-f-H 168,730 1,557,598 (1,664) 721 (15876) 1,603 6397 (1149452 568,063 6,55 574618
Loss for the year FEEFE - - - - - - - (40,619) (40,619) (22,080) (62,708)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) AEEEMAENA,/
for the year (53 - - 6,969 - - (18,702) - - (11,733) 8) (11,736)
Total comprehensive incomel(expense)  AEE2EUN/ @R
for the year 2 - - 6,969 - - (18,702) - (40619) (52,3%2) (22092) (74.444)
Share options lapsed %39%%& - - (721 - - - 727 - - -
Capialinjecton from NCI ARRERERTE - - - - - - - - - 15572 15572
Transfer of reserve upon disposal of Hj‘ﬁf NHEEBER
equity investment at FYTOCI SEMAGIR 2 R
REREREE - - - - (2514) - 2514 - - -
At 31 December 2021 and
1 January 2022
168,730 1,557,598 5305 - (15876) (19613) 6397 (1,186830) 515711 3% 515,746
Proftfor the year REERR - - - - - - - 7,028 7,028 36,585 43613
Other comprehensive expense REERMAERY
for the year - - (15,588) = = (4,071) - - (19,659) (3,041) (22,700)
Total comprehensive incomel(expense)  AEE2EUN/ B
for the year 4 - - (15,588) = = (4,071) - 7,028 (12,631) 33,544 20913
Transfer of resenee upon disposal of -~ HERATERBENM
equity investment at FVTOC ARG RE
RERBRER - - - - - (873) - 1,698 825 (825) -
At 31 December 2022 RIEE
+ZB=1-H 168,730 1,557,598 (10,283) - (15,876) (24,557) 6397  (1,178,104) 503,905 32,754 536,659
Notes: BT
(a) As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China  (a) IR EE A REME (THREL) BRI ARERRE »
(“PRC"), before distribution of the net profit each year, the subsidiaries established in EEEDRANED EPEMKIINM B AT BEE
the PRC shall set aside 10% of their net profit after taxation to the statutory reserve FRIRBATIFINI0NE AEHEE (IHEFECSENB AR
(except where the reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital). HMEAR0%ERIN - ZHEEESEIEEBRN
The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the directors of the relevant BRAEEERAMERBRIERS A BIERERE
subsidiaries and by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase BB INE A -
capital.
(b) Other reserve represents the value of the contingent consideration arrangement on  (b) HthEHIEREBEFENWERG R EARERE

the escrow shares subject to the profit guarantee requirement of the acquisition
agreement in prior years.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR

BISEERMD AN BZHIEE-



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘7|" = £ﬁ‘ji{ﬁ§%§

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_ZT__F+_B=+—HIEFE

2022 2021
g B
NOTES ~ HK$'000 HK$000
MizE FHET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEE)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRENER S (BB 44,079 (58,576)
Adjustments for: EHTYEEE -
Finance costs ISR 14,878 31,404
Depreciation of property, plant and ME--BEREHEZITE
equipment 14 5,879 5,175
Change in fair value of: TAEBZ A EEE !
— financial assets at FVTPL — A EBEBEIEEYER
ZEMEE 7 27,677 (17)
— investment properties —EYE 7 (16,923) 10,701
— contingent consideration receivables —EUREIA B 7 = 2,553
Dividend income S EURA 7 914) -
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate ~ fR{EHERHE AT Z W - (1,151)
Loss on disposal of equity investments at HERATESEBHEM
FVTOCI 2EBRATERZ g7
NE 2 518 7 1,594 -
Net gain on derecognition of financial TR IE R AN AR IEFERR S Al
assets and financial liabilities at BEEMTREENFRER
amortised cost 7 (169,425) -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEVE -BEREHEZ
equipment g 7 (3,700) -
Exchange loss/(gain), net FEREE (&) $58 7 255 (179)
Finance lease interest income MEEEHEWA 7 (6,020) (2,844)
Interest income B 7 (2,738) (3,363)
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment RIS IBERR 2 REEE
loss) recognised on: CREREEE)
— finance lease receivables — B EER 8 2,906 1,208
— trade receivables and other —E SRR EM
receivables PR =R 8 50 9,418
— loan receivables —EWER 8 59,277 (9,663)
Impairment loss on inventories ﬁ%—fi@ﬂﬁéﬂé 7,196 -
Write-off of inventories S 7 - 725
Share of results of associates DBEE AT L (1,571) (21,342)
Operating cash flows before movements in E.Lﬁ’\“@muzﬁ‘“ﬁfﬁfém
working capital (37,500) (35,951)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories ?_7? agm R (3,964) 1,557
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables, BB e RIEN A
deposits and prepayments e, () 4,494 (7,159)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 FEUSGRRIE N (745) (11,259)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and HT@TH R FESTE g,
accruals Gz 16,220 (26,686)
Decrease in deposits received from BWEREERH D
customers (11,623) -
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets at BN EEBIERYRS
FVTPL SREE 0gm R (13,692) 13,701
Increase in finance lease receivables REEEREWEIE M (2,803) (44,936)
Decrease in deposits placed with non-bank 2L JESRI T RbEAE >
financial institutions FRuE D 9,673 25,628
Cash used in operations KEFMEZIRS (39,940) (85,105)
Income tax paid BEATFTER (45) (1,326)
Finance lease interest income received BEWHEEBERER EWA 6,020 2,844
Interest paid BENFE (14,275) (2,577)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REEEFTAZIRE R4
ACTIVITIES (48,240) (86,164)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERemER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z - _"F+_A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
== —E-—F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
MizE FAET TFHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REES
Investment in equity investments at R AFTESBEMEE
FVTOCI WATRZ BRI E
B 35 (5,812) (36,930)
Addition of loan receivables FEW ERRIE (6,974) (86,182)
Repayment from loan receivables BERWER 91,272 45,063
Prepayment for acquisition of property, BEME -MBERREZ
plant and equipment FEFIA - (17,847)
Purchases of property, plant and BEYE - BRE R
equipment (1,741) (1,635)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant ~ HEYI2  BE KRR EFTE
and equipment FIE 12,403 832
Proceeds from disposal of equity HERAFEZBHEM
investments at FVTOCI SEINATERZ R E
Frig=1a 35 11,790 52,876
Increase in short-term bank deposits AR T ERRIE 10 (30,000) -
Dividend received B E 3,606 -
Interest received BUFIE 2,738 3,363
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED & & ;EENFR1S (FRA)
IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES REPER 77,282 (40,460)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES R IEE
Repayment of borrowings BEBR 36 (12,033) (1,204)
Capital injection from non-controlling IR IR R &
interests - 15,572
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED REEE (FTA) FriS
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REFEE (12,033) 14,368
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH IRERIRESHEWEM,
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS GrizL) 2% 17,009 (112,256)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FUNRERREEZEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 23,299 132,483
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE JSMEEZR# gz 2%
CHANGES (2,165) 3,072
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FREESRIFAEEZEEY
AT END OF THE YEAR 38,143 23,299
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash RERIFEEEMZERDH:
equivalents:
Bank balances and cash IRITHERRIRE 38,143 23,299

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
BEMIPEE A 5% S I SRR BV AR R EB 7 o

]O CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A e W sk b

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_T__&#+_HF=+—HILEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Ever Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd. (the
“Company”)is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section on the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are provision of finance
lease and related consulting services in the PRC, the trading of
equity securities, investment in properties, investment holdings,
sale of food additives, sale of medical and health products and
sale of daily necessities and hygiene products, and money lending
business.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") as the directors consider that it is a more
appropriate presentation for a company listed on the Stock
Exchange and for the convenience of the shareholders.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment -
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKFRS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-
2021

1.
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EmiE HRakEEERURBE
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rREMBERERL LGB T (Tt 29
REERS IR LM AR EE
Rz 257530 B ERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2. BRAERVHRSER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING (FEEMBHRESEN) 2
STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs”) (Continued) (CEIRC)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Continued)

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group's financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the October
2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Insurance Contracts!

FEERFERNEEBITERMBR
HEA (&)

FEERAEBYHREENETY
FEBAFERBEFENMBRITR
KRR/ NZERAVHRRATEIRE
NESENZ -

EAEME H R ERZ M REIETE
AMBREER

AEERTERAERUTERMERE
FERZ T AMES] BB R G ZR]

EAMBREEYELS
(BEZZ°25+HAK
"R TETRHEAME
REEBIFITSEZE5)

RREH

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between EAUBREENFIONR REFHEBENFY
HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint EAGHER B8 RErEZBNEE
Venture? p4 ) HEFIE
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in Sale and Leaseback? ERAVBRSENEGS  EROATNHEESE
23]
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or EATHENEISVE] aENEAREY
Non-current and related amendments FRBRHEERE
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)2 E(CEITH 2
TaRET?
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies! EEDHENSITREE  DHEGERE
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 HBREENBRRS
EYsivA )
Amendments to HKAS 8 Disclosure of Accounting Estimates! EROERESR B Dt RE
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and TAGEREIN B HAB-RBEEZ
Liabilities arising from a Single BEERGRIERN
Transaction! EXHE
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. ! RIE-_=F—F—AsizBRENEE
HRRSAERS o
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. 2 RIZEZNFE—B—HRZEBFEENEE
RAAERL e
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined. 3 @ﬁﬁéi BHEAz BHENFEERBE
o

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
these new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, leasing transactions
that are account for in accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or
value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

3.
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R A BB PIES LR AE
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WIS X P8 E ST BURFT IR [RIREY)
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TR T AN REHBRRDIZELNL
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FE 2 Bl A —MRAIRIR BV R AR TS SHAPR 1S
REZ ¥ EAE

ANHERTH2RENSEAREAR
REPHEEER SIS EEA R
FEZ B TaRZEREEEER
RORBAERS —EEET G o fE
STEENARZAFER FEEEE
THB2RECTERMAZEENE
RETEBRRFEEBNEENERSE
B EZEROMBRRPAER N
KB ATEHDTUIER EFLURETE
WEBYHBRESER B2 UM AHE
BEZ 7R ER Z RO U B ER R
X5 RBEBYBHIREEAF165E E
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WIFAFERIEE BIa FEE 2R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable input is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so that
at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique equal the
transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line
with the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
relevant components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries, including reattribution of relevant reserves between
the Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (i) the carrying amounts of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to
the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary, that is reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs. The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income
Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are measured
in accordance with that standard; and

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as defined
in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new leases
at the acquisition date, except for leases for which (a) the
lease term ending within 12 months of the acquisition
date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low value. Right-
of-use assets are recognised and measured at the same
amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect
favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease when
compared with market terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against
goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Other contingent
consideration is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair
value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at
the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration that
do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value at
subsequent reporting dates, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date, that is the date when the
Group obtains control, and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as
appropriate. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income and measured under HKFRS 9 would
be accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to the financial assets and
financial liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the other
individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their
relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction
does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

HAEMBHRRZERNEE
EZI#E D'H-ESIEE (48)

FTEEFHE (@
EBCHAETENE (7
EF SO (B

HEB A D RERIER  AEBLUERR
?%E’J?&Hﬂzﬁﬁﬁ It RE B AR B A& H
SEGRER) HATEENE R
EEE’JEJEE @A) iEm e E 2 E W
WNEA) RS - A EEEERNE
SRR A Z IR RRIEREMEEUR
SO IRIE B B IR S 2R o5t st
EE’JTH&%EIHHHUEA%&H&E%HE’H& aFfr
EEZ T8 RRRIEREZE AR

HEBEHZDTGRENGHEE
ZHREFRERTR  AEERBZ2HA
TREEERECEESR - ZEY
ELERRENFEE (R L0 NR% I
HESBERINEENEE LIRMRFTESAE
FRWBEE AR EENERRER
EZHOFEIEENEFAFERERZ
WEr o

WS FE I T 18 B 2 FS BI Y /8B A A

EXREREWBIEMEREBN—HEE
RaER AEEZBREAREB QT
BERBEEBTEREERERNEEZH
DEc ARBEENEMGRTEAEME
AA#EpEERAERRBEEBRRE
R AT EET D EC TR KRB FT UL
E%E’JM%'J—JD&B‘Jé%&ﬁ@ﬁéﬁ’]ﬁfa0.%/<
R WA EEHENRERE R

Annual Report 2022
TEIEER

L1V



1l

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and the
ability to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there

may be a change in any of these elements of control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the Company has the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee
without holding the majority of the voting rights. In determining
whether de-facto control exists the Company considers all relevant

facts and circumstances, including:

° The size of the Company’s voting rights relative to both the
size and dispersion of other parties who hold voting rights;

° Substantive potential voting rights held by the Company

and other parties who hold voting rights;

° Other contractual arrangements; and

° Historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the

basis of dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Gooadwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the
end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On the disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on the disposal (or any of the cash-
generating unit within a group of cash-generating unit in which the
Group monitors goodwill).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but not control or joint

control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby
they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying
amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
change in the associates’ net assets except that losses in excess
of the Group's interest in the associate are not recognised unless
there is an obligation to make good those losses. Any premium
paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group's share
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying amount of the
associate. Where there is objective evidence that the investment
in an associate has been impaired, the carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in the same way as other non-

financial assets.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in the associate. The investor's share in the
associate’s profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the asset

transferred, they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate. When the
Group retains an interest in the former associate and the retained
interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its

fair value on initial recognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

The difference between the carrying amount of the associate at the
date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing a part interest
in the associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate. In addition, all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate are recognised on the same basis as would be required
if that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest it that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
associates are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any. The
results of associates are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable during the year.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Executive Directors that
make strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fok e A S AR T o

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply
to the contract, control of the goods or service may be transferred
over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods or service is
transferred over time if the Group'’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, that
is only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

EXxistence of significant financing component

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For contracts where
the period between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component, using
the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
and their income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of the translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and are translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs which are not eligible for capitalization to
qualifying assets are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are

recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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12

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax, as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary differences arise from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary differences and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets
and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether
the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation
on right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the principal
portion of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Current and Deferred taxation for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Leasing
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZRHBHmRZEREE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)
The Group as a lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or finance
leases) are required to be capitalised in the statement of financial
position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting
policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i)
leases which are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which
the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has elected not
to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value
assets and leases for which at the commencement date have a
lease term less than 12 months. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and would
comprise:

(i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability
(see below for the accounting policy to account for lease
liability);

(i) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

(iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of
the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

3. FREMBERRZEREE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BREEZEHEE @

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
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Right-of-use assets (Continued) FREEE (@

The Group measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost REBKBRAENFTE2FEHEEE
model. Under the cost model, the Group measures the right- RIEM AR REBIZAABRERR
to-use at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any FHTERERREREFTEEEE ) I
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease M EEEIME A ERFTEEHRE
liability.

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings which is AEBBFHEEL N EREBEFREEAS
held for own use under HKAS 16 and are carried at its cost less RS 16 ET 5T ER IR > W 3% A AR
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment FERRFITERTRRHERET]
losses. BRo

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant and REBR MBS ek B 25 ERE
equipment”, the same line item within which the corresponding BE HEREEEREE ARE—1E
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned. ElnE2UE

Lease liabilities GER==RE|

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the lease HEaERIIFNEERBRBPS T
payments that are not paid at the date of commencement of the AENFZNIRERER - BENTUIXEM
lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate BRI ZEIR (AR K5 E
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that ) o MZAEELIRGET AIAER
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s RAREE L SERRFER

incremental borrowing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement
date of the lease are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option and (v)
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring
the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments arising
from change in an index or rate, a change in the lease term, a
change in the in substance fixed lease payments or a change in
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group has leased out its investment properties to a number
of tenants. Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Sale and leaseback transactions

As a buyer-lessor, the Group applies the requirements of HKFRS
15 to assess whether sale and leaseback transactions constitutes
as sale. For a transfer that does not satisfy the requirements as
sale, the Group accounts for the transfer proceeds within the
scope of HKFRS 9.

MR RZEHEE
REEGFEE ®

FTEEFHE (@
ME (7

FEFERS AN
HENDERE

FEBRFRBHBAANEESBAREN
KEHE EHERRREREERE
FEP #5 BUAB A B0 0 B e [l ¥R A% 2 7K
AR SN BEAMERE FTAEEM
HERFREREEHEE

FEBCREREMEETFETER-
RERE AW AR BRBEERRR
BRZENEmER - AER R T HEE
HEPTSI 2P BRMARSABH
THE E 2 AREE N % E S AU ERERE
oAt

FEWEF AR EFR TR A E BN E
PR PR E T RRME DS FEURARTR - Bl
ERNBAZE GBI DA UERBR
AEBRBBINRENFIRENEEE
HAE =

FEEQEEFBIETEENFNE KA
TUWAZSBIA

EREERS

FEBFRES - HBEABREBMH
HEERBISKZEE > sERLEMER
P m BRI EITIE o BURBEEA
HERENEEMS  FAEBRRER
AT e S HE R BOSR AV EE B MR SRR 1S
FIAARR

Annual Report 2022
“ECCEER

133



13

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and leasehold
land held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on their costs less
their residual values on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Right-of-use assets
Leasehold improvements,
furniture and fixtures
Plant, machinery and

equipment
Motor vehicles

10 to 50 years

3 to 5 years or over lease term,
whichever is shorter

510 10 years

3 to 8 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR

EAEMBHRRZEUEE
REEGFHEE @®

TEEFEE (B
HE BERRE

WD~ BB Rkt BLAE IS AR EE AR
BEmIR% TR ENERAZZ
REEE L THIRpARRE R 2 R5t
TEKRRETRERE WA) MGG
RIS °

RGEHERFE LB EMIEYZE K
R sk T B By A R R SR B R B AT
E N EERSHRERASHERFER
BERITE L WEAREE ARG E
EliNZ

Y~ R R s B UL AR S R ER B
BERREANEMS AERFERRT
BT

EREEE 10E506F
HEYERE 3ESFINIERR
BREMEE ClBraE » %)

ps s vt SEI0F

8 38

ME - -BERRERENHERNETR
R BERZEEN G HAARREEF
AR LR o B SRR  BUE K
REEENEE DRSS TRREME
HEERBEZ ZREE LN B iRE

500



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

3. FREMBERRZEREE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BREEZEHEE @

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

FTEEFHE (@

Investment property REYE

Investment property is property held either to earn rentals or for KREYEAFEREBFE NI ENEZ
capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale in the ordinary MIBARMIEN B & E£HBEREPIFIEH
course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or E -AREESMES RIRBIIET
services or for administrative purposes. Investment property is BARBRINYZ - REYERV T HERR
measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently at fair BN R ERE AT EFE MAEH
value with any change therein recognised in profit or loss. EH B MR

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when KREMENHE  AREMEXKATE
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and WHER NFEAHEFFGELEREL
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any R R B4R IERESD o (R (R AAR IEFESRE
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as EMEENWGRIEE (ZHERFEIE
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying FEREEENREE EZBE) RIER
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in 4R EHESRRARIET AT o

which the item is derecognition.

Impairment losses on assets (other than financial assets) BE (BHEERI) ZHEFRE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying REBPREIARER TS EZRE
amounts of the following to determine whether there is any B BURAERTERANNRETZSE
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss or BEHIRBEREIETEER ZRE
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may IR ABEFENASEE R

have decreased:

. property, plant and equipment; . L EN =Yk

o right-of-use assets; and o EREEE; &

. investments in subsidiaries and associates. . RIB AR KEE B ZE
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an ERABERMF—EEENYWEIESEE
asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount B AEEEEHZEENBREESE
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a BApA W ElEEE BB 52—
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, NDREER ABBETE D EE
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating AIREEEEMNTDEEHFSE—
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash- RAREENR/REES B4R

generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation

basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on assets (other than financial assets)
(Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand,
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require the delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary

course of business are presented as revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of
an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

MR RZEHEE
REEGFEE ®

FTEEFHE (@
EHMTR (&
EHEE (&

TRMEENDERERSE (8

HaE MR EREERRRATE
BRAEMEEWASIIREE

. NHEREBENREERERE
WZEBRATHEZERMEA
=R

. GRIFRNIEE AEEZ RS
MEBAIRD N RERAEER
EZHB

FRrERMEMEERBRRATERER
myIRET 8 M SRR E W IR
FEERRREBLINEBMBRESE
AIBREB A HITERZ EH A HhE
OBV AUE » RIS B R A6 RS
TMEEZ BRI REtEER HtE
ERZT27EaRENRENTEER
o

Annual Report 2022
“ECCEER

139



14

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(M

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).
For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(ii)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
Revaluation Reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to accumulated
losses. Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group's right to receive the dividends is established, unless
the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the
“Other income, gains and losses” line item in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(Continued)

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. Financial assets at FVTPL
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the

financial asset and is included in the “other gains and

losses” line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
on financial assets which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on trade
receivables, finance lease receivables, loan receivables, and
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The ECLs are
measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs:
these are ECLs that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade
receivables and finance lease receivables using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime
ECLs. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment. For finance lease receivables relating to customers
with known financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection of
receivables are assessed individually for provision for impairment
allowance.

For loan receivables and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost, the ECLs are based on the 12-months ECLs. The
12-months ECLs is the portion of the lifetime ECLs that results
from default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

0)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis, based
on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past
due.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.

Definition of default

The Group considers an event of default occurs when
information obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment

under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (2) the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-

impaired when:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or being
more than 90 days past due;

o the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

o it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy

or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for a

security because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment

under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over 1 years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default that is the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default, and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL
on trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, for which the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in “FVTOCI reserve (recycling)”.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.
For non credit-impaired financial assets interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of
its continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the revaluation
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

(i) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group
entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

(i) Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

(iii) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including borrowings,
trade payables and other payables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method. The related interest expense is recognised in profit
or loss.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain financial
asset hosts within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated. The
entire hybrid contract is classified and subsequently measured in
its entirety as either amortised cost or fair value as appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are
not financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative,
their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Generally, multiple embedded derivatives in a single instrument
that are separated from the host contracts are treated as a
single compound embedded derivative unless those derivatives
relate to different risk exposures and are readily separable and
independent of each other.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(i) Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve). At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment
of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share options reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)

(i) Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred
to share capital and share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BREEZEHEE @

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

3. FREMBERRZEREE

nE

FTESHEE (@

R EAEERAAREE (7

(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits WHAEMHEER BRI REME AR A
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, BRERER REFR FERZETHE
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless BERNEaE EEEN @R ETIEE
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, MEERRIN A SEEEERF—18
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or REIEARREEEZESEETERERS
nonoccurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as B TEREANEAE ERHNE
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote. BEMEIREE BRI o

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events WAREEABTEHEEZJREEE
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence HEAEREFFIEF —BRLIER
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not EEBASEEG 2 R RAEE ST
wholly within the control of the Group. A contingent asset is HE c ERENmBEAIERAR  AE
not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated EATHESD BNV ERTELRSMHER
financial statements, where necessary, when an inflow of R EE IR E BENEREESE
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an 7 A BRFREST

asset is recognised.

Related parties

Ly

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is @ HWEBUT AL Bl ALTHZA
related to the Group if that person:

0)

(ii)

(iii)

TR EE A R

has control or joint control over the Group; 0] P S EEFIARERE

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
the Group or of a parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued) FEFHEE B
Related parties (Continued) FBs (&)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) fidmEUL MMEMELE BIzZER

conditions applies:

0)

(i)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

SAREE AR

@

(ii)

ZERETEEBR—£
B ERE BIREA
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—EERAS—EEEN
MEATHGERE (N
S—EBRSNERENE

member). EETREABNHEA
BHEERZE) o
(iiy  both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i MEEEHEAE—%F=H
party. HaEhEo

(iv)

(v)

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself

(iv)

—BERAS=AHEEN
HEtE - MB—BEA
ZEZHERBNEEA

alo

EA BRI ES T
m 5 AL B BE R R AR A 5t

such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also S oA EB XS BER
related to the Group. FHED RHEZEETR
EAAEE B B R o
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a V)  EERESOFTHEBIALE
person identified in (i). S EE o

(vii)

(viii)

a person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personal
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group'’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Significant influence over associate

Note 17 describes that Simagi Finance Limited (“Simagi”), in
which the Group has 7.46% (2021:7.46%) ownership interest
and voting rights, is an associate of the Group as the Group has
the right to appoint at least one director in the board of Simagi.
As at 31 December 2022, the Group considers it has the power
to exercise significant influence over Simagi by virtue of its
contractual right appointed one out of two directors in the board of
Simagi.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment loss on goodwill

The value in use is determined based on the cash flow projection
for the cash generating units (“CGUs”), discounted to their present
values and requires the use of key assumptions, including the
discount rate, terminal growth rate, budgeted sales and gross
margin, taking into account the financial budget approved by the
directors based on the management's experience from the trading
business and also management’s expectations for the market
development. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the carrying
amount of goodwill was HK$25,556,000 and no impairment loss
on goodwill has been recognised to consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 16.

Provision of ECL

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 across
all categories of financial assets requires significant judgment and
estimation, in particular, the assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk and credit-impaired financial assets as well as the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment losses. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which
can result in different levels of allowances. At each reporting date,
the Group assesses whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk for exposures since initial recognition by comparing
the risk of default occurring over the expected life between the
reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This
includes quantitative and qualitative information and also forward-
looking analysis. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimate of fair value of equity investments at FVTOCI

The fair value of equity investments at FVTOCI that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques.
The Group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods
(such as market approach) and makes assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at each statement of
financial position date. The key assumptions adopted on valuation
techniques and key inputs are based on management's best
estimates.

Fair values of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers. The
determination of the fair value involves certain assumptions of
market conditions which are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the Company
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the current market conditions.
Changes to these assumptions, including the potential risk of
market violation, policy, geopolitical and social changes or other
unexpected incidents as a result of change in macroeconomic
environment, would result in changes in the fair values of the
Group’s investment properties and the corresponding adjustments
to the amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The directors of the Company have performed internal assessment
on the risks of change in macroeconomic environment through
performing sensitivity analysis in relation to the Group’s investment
properties.

As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties is HK$147,670,000 (2021: HK$142,369,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

5. REVENUE 5. WA
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows: REEREFBADTTAOT :
2022 2021
—E-= s
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers: ZTESHUWA :
Asset management advisory service fee EEEEBHRBEIRA
income 28 370
Sale of: HE :
— food additives —B AN 2,130 5,732
— medical and health products —BERREES 15,767 71,669
— medical, health and hygiene products —BERAEREEESR 44,707 31,833
62,632 109,604
Interest under effective interest method: BREFIKZETHE :
Interest income from B A
—finance lease receivables —RhEETH B UG 6,020 2,844
— loan receivables —ERER 4,435 5,469
10,455 8,313
Leases HE
Rental income A 4,699 5,713
Total revenue BT A 77,786 123,630

The revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 is
disaggregated as follows:

BBVHREERFISRBERN T RE
BEREMRWADERNT

Timing of revenue recognition: U A &SRB -
At a point in time PE—F2L 62,604 109,234
Over time R—ER R 28 370
Revenue from contracts with customers  REZBESAUKA 62,632 109,604

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

REVENUE (continued)

Performance obligation for contracts with customers:

0)

(ii)

Revenue for the provision of asset management advisory
services is recognised over time on time apportionment
basis as those services are provided throughout the
contract period at fixed consideration. Invoices are issued
according to the agreed payment schedule and are usually
payable within O-5 days.

Revenue for the sale of food additives and sales of daily
necessities, hygiene, medical and health products is
recognized at a point in time when customers obtain
control of the goods at the goods are delivered to and have
been accepted. Revenue is thus recognised upon when
the customers accepted the products. There is generally
only one performance obligation. Invoices are usually
payable within 0-60 days.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Informa

tion reported to the executive directors of the Company,

being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) of the Group,
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on the nature of the operations of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments under

HKFRS

Financial leasing

8 Operating segments are as follows:

provision of finance lease consulting
services and financing services in the
PRC (“Financial Leasing Segment”)

Investment — investment properties in the PRC and

Trading

Others

Hong Kong, investments in securities
and money lending business in Hong
Kong

— sale of medical, health, hygiene products
and daily necessities (“Trading
Segment”)

— research and development,
manufacturing and sale of food
additives, new food ingredients and
nutritional enhancers in the PRC
(“Food Additives Business”)

5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE
. =52\ s
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. FEEH @
Segment revenues and results DEUA T EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by UTAAREEZTT 2R EE D 2 WA
reportable segments. KB DT
For the year ended 31 December BEF-A=+—HULFE
Finance leasing Investment Trading Others Total
HMERE kg g5 Het fazt
2022 w1 2022 201 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 21
k-t E-F Z%-C it S 2% B "Z_-F ZBIZE Z_-F
HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HK$000
Fen  TEr TR TAn  TER  TEn  TER  TEn TR TEn
SEGMENT REVENUE AHBA
Ata paint in time HE—F - - - - 60,474 103,502 2,130 5732 62,604 109,234
Over time H—EEER 28 370 - - = - = - 28 370
From other source BEMKR 6,020 284 9,134 11,18 - - - - 15,154 14026
6,048 3014 9,134 11182 60,474 103,502 2,130 5732 71,786 123630
SEGMENT RESULTS DR 75,111 (42,154) 11977 2467 (7,147) 6,551 (7,588) (11,628) 72,353 (44,764)
Unallocated other income, gains and losses RABZEAMITA +
Wi RAsE (741) (1,219
Unallocated corporate expenses FAARCEER (29,024) (33,786)
Unallocated other expenses and FOREMEARR
finance costs HHBMA (80) (149
Share of results of associates NEHMENTEE 1,571 21,342
Profi/(loss) before taxation BRAER/ (68 44,079 (58,576)

All of the segment revenues reported above are from external
customers.

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment results
represent the profit earned or loss incurred by each segment
without allocation of certain other income, certain other gains and
losses (including change in fair value on contingent consideration
receivables, gain or loss on deemed disposal/derecognition of
an associate/a subsidiary), share of results of associates and
corporate expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by
reportable segments.

At 31 December 2022

Finance leasing Investment
HERE RE
2022 2021 2022 2021

kSt 2T ZBCC B ZBCC

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000

DEPE K @)

STHEERAE
U BAEEBRAZRDEEI D ZEE
KRa@Enire
A CE__HF+-HA=1+—H
Others Total
Hftr ot
2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

“F-—% ZBIZE "I B “TT-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000

THR Thn FhR FhR FhR FAR FAr FAR FAn
SEGMENT ASSETS AHEE 266,158 505,604 227,809 295,080 76,484 55,773 62,034 616,649 939,002
Interest in associates REEAR 2 S 98,526 99,608
Unallocated corporate assets A ATES -] 86,160 42687
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS BAEE 801,335 1081497
SEGMENT LIABILITIES HipafE 211,330 519,541 15,132 5% 1857 391 3780 227,986 55,734
Unallocated corporate liabilities FAWZLEEE 36,690 40017
CONSOLIDATED LIABILITIES Baaf 264,676 565,751

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources among segments:

- all assets are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than an office premise for administrative
purpose, certain other receivables, certain deposits placed
in non-bank financial institutions and certain cash and
cash equivalents; and

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than certain other payables, certain tax
payables and deferred tax liabilities.

REIEDERIBRIEDBZENEER

FR—RARTTHENNRAEY)
F B THMBWR BT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December

6.

DERE R @)
HihHEE

BEF+-_HA=1+—HIFE

Finance leasing Investment Trading Others Total
HMERE RE g5 Hitt a5t
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
- B ZE¥E-C B_-F CZ¥CC B_-F C¥CC B_-F Z¥CC 2%
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TER Thn TER Thn FAR Thr FAR FEr TET FEn
Amounts charged/(credited) in the R EHIEFITSE
measure of segment profit or loss or ANWEENR/
segment assefs: (A 89708
Addtions to property, plant and RENE BERRE
equipment 18,206 726 - - - - 442 909 18,648 1635
Depreciation of property, plant and W BERREINE
equipment 1,499 751 1310 - - - 3,070 3104 53879 3861
Wite-0ff of inventories et - - - - - - - 725 - 725
Impairment loss on inventories HFEAERR - - - - 7,196 - - - 7,19 -
Loss on disposal of equity instruments ~ HERATEER
at FvToct Hth2ERAIIRZ
RAREZER 1,59 - - - - - - - 1,594 -
Net gain on derecognition of financial ESIR: S =7
asset and financial liabilftes at SENEHEER
amortised cost SHEBEzNEFE (169,425) - - - - - - - (169,425) -
Change in fai value of NTEES
— financial assets at FVTPL —HATERBEG
Nz EREE 12,883 5706 14,794 (5723) - - - - 21671 17)
—investment properties -RENE - - (16,923) 10,701 - - - - (16,923) 10,701
Interest income from FISHA
- loan receivables ~[EWES (2,394) (3099) (4,435) (5,469) - - = - (6,829) (8,568)
~finance lease receivables -REHERER (6,020) (2844) - - - - - - (6,020) (2,884)
Interest expenses (included in PSR GIABARA)
cost of revenue) 16,026 31317 - - - 87 - - 16,026 31404
Impairment loss(reversal of EHR2NAESE/
impairment loss) recognised on: (AEFREED)
- loan receivables —[EUER 59,277 9,663) - - - - = - 59,277 9663)
~finance lease receivables -REHERER 2,906 1,208 - - - - - - 2,906 1208
- trade receivables and other ~BRRIESR
receivables HitFEwE - 8817 50 - = 601 = - 50 9418
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM ~ R AT BRERRE
but not included in the measure of REEREE
segment profitor loss: Rt ENEERR
BRmE:
Income tax expense/(credi) AR/ (8% (151) 3288 - (255) 617 1,09 - - 466 4132

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.

FEEEREREEEARAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the financial leasing segment and
trading segment of both years contributing over 10% of total sales
of the Group are as follows:

6.

DEPE K @)
BEMTEREEY
N AEERERERESBRESS

BEMRAEERBIHERAIONZERZ
WA

2022 2021
—s-= —Eo—E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET

Trading segment: B57E0
Customer A! ERAA N/A FiEH 48,252
Customer B ZFB = 21,942

! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of revenue from
the trading segments for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Geographical information

The Group’s financial leasing and food additives business are
located in the PRC. Trading division is located in Hong Kong.
Investment division comprises of investment properties and
leasing business in the PRC and Hong Kong, while its money
lending and investment in securities businesses are carried out
in Hong Kong. Investment and trading division is located in Hong
Kong. Locations are determined according to principal place of
operating the businesses.

! BE_T__HF+_A=+—HLEFE
WAL E 5 08U A Z LB T 88
10%°

i B
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R ARE - EZ D EANRE R - REDE
BREUNRTEREBNREYENREE
F5 MARBHFEBIBRERKER]
URER - RERZZDEBANEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Geographical information (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from
external customers based on the locations of operations and
information about its non-current assets other than finance lease
receivables, other financial instruments and deferred tax assets by
geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

Revenue from external customers

DERE R @)

HIHE R (68)

TR TEBRBEEIHN IR
WA Z DT FeFRRAEFR B R ~ HoAth
TRt TERIEIERIBEEEINIIEREE
EREEPIEMBI DRESEFMNT

Non-current assets

SNBEEIBA ERBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-CF —E—fF —E-CF —E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET AT TET AT
PRC HE 12,877 14659 216,804 228,649
Hong Kong &5 64,909 108,971 142,859 145,251
77,786 123,630 359,663 373,900
7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HA W= kiEE
2022 2021
=S =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other income Hthgg A
Interest income from: FEUA -
— Bank and non-bank financial institutons ~ —2& BIR1T & IEERI TS RIS 344 264
— Other loan receivables —HthEWwE™® 2,394 3,099
Dividend income R E WA 914 -
Government subsidies BT 488 By 624 -
Sundry income HEIBUWA 244 28
4,520 3,391

]6 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HEA-BR=ZkEE @
(Continued)
2022 2021
-z T —fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Other gains and (losses) Hi s K (§518)
Fair value change on: N EEE)

— Financial assets at FVTPL — AT EEBBRYRY

TRIBE (27,677) 17

— Contingent consideration receivables —FEURE A B - (2,553)

— Investment properties —EYE 16,923 (10,701)
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate ~ fREHE—FREE N T Z WH = 1,151
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYZE - BEREE 2 W

equipment 3,700 -
Loss on disposal of equity investment at HERATEBEEMEZEmITA

FVTOCI TR Z PRI E 2 E518 (1,594) -
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain ER (518 W358 (255) 179
Write-off of inventories FE M - (725)
Net gain on derecognition of financial asset 4% IEMEERIG N A A5t E /Y

and financial liabilities at amortised cost TREERTHEBES

(Note) Wz B AR () 169,425 -
Others Hi - 158

160,522 (12,474)

Note:  For the year ended 31 December 2021, there was a litigation in the PRC e HEZ—F+ZB=+—HLFE>

about an alleged breach of loan contract brought by The Export-Import
Bank of China (“EXIM Bank”) against Beijing Ever Grand International
Financial Leasing Co. Limited (“BJEG”"), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company in the PRC.

A court hearing was held in late April 2021 for the loan contract related to
Qinghai Pingan High-precision Aluminum Industry Co., Ltd (“Qinghai”),
and its terms and amount of loan proceeds were back-to-back with those of
the finance lease agreement with Qinghai. In this appeal, EXIM Bank as an
appellant appealed to overturn the judgement at the first instance handed
down by the Intermediate People’s Court of Xi'an City, Shaanxi Province
which dismissed EXIM Bank's claims brought against BJEG regarding the
alleged breach of loan contract in December 2020.

FREDE H MERTT (REH O3RTT)) EPESt
HIRERERREREERAR (IR
8% ARBE—HKTERIEZENBAR)
R IEEHER ERMGH

TR —FMOBTEAMERSNRITARE
BES ZEMSNEBSBTZSRHRE
ARAR (58 B/ HERRETE
IR AR B ST LR ERE REN
R ERFISRES RS H A - RER
EERT ERORTER LeR A ZREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

7.

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

(Continued)

Note:

(Continued)

In September 2022, BJEG received the second trial civil judgement of the
appeal case, which is a final judgement, pursuant to which the Higher
People’s Court of the Shaanxi Province of the PRC dismissed the appeal
brought by EXIM Bank.

The directors of the Company, after taking into account the legal advice,
determined that BJEG does not retained any contractual rights to the cash
flows from the finance lease receivables of Qinghai, which carrying amounts
net of impairment allowance as at 31 December 2021 was RMB&2 million;
and the associated obligations due to EXIM Bank, and the respective
borrowing and other payable as at 31 December 2021 of RMB200 million
and RMB27.8 million respectively. Taking all these into accounts, net gain
of RMB145.8 million (HK$ 169.4 million) was resulted during the year.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER ECL
MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL

HMUA ~ U m R B8 @

M3E

\I\

&

—ECENR RIEEWE LR
“ERFHRE BEBHR B PE
PEE AR AR SRRt IR |
ifio

RATEENERARERB BEILR
BRARERET ERERERIGRN
REReNEmMa@n RS -—F
+ZRA=+—8 ZaEmMERERKEZN
IREES ARIEE BT (NFRBIERME) ;
RIZZ—F+ZHA=+—8 > EITEH
OSRATRAMHETS B BT R L FE(S FRIE
ABARBE200EETRARE27.8EE
TLSE RFTBERRR  AFEEE W
BARKE14BSEE T (1604FEETT) ©

SEGEENETHRE

SR MR RE

2022 2021
g T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment loss) B HEsE N5 & IB 2 BE K18
recognised on: (REEE#EE)
— Trade receivables and other receivables — — & 5 FEUS UK ELfhFEWER (B
(Note 23 and 24) £¥23324) 50 9,418
— Loan receivables (Note 21) —EWRER (EE21) 59,277 (9,663)
— Finance lease receivables (Note 20) —FREREREWER (5E20) 2,906 1,208
62,233 963

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR

BE EFBEHN GRS

350

MR



9.

DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_Z__F+_A=+—HIEE

EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emolument paid or payable to each of the directors
and chief executives were as follows:

9.

SR

EFEREFETHASHM

(a)

ES-FETHAERE

ENREMSESERIETH
ABZHEINT

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-Z-ZH+-A=1-HLEE

Salaries, Retirement
allowance benefits
and other  Discretionary  Share-based scheme
Fees henefits bonus payments  contributions Total
A
2R WUigirm  BER
fg  HMEN BB BRzGR B ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#n Tin THn T#n THEn T#n
(Note (1))
(iE0)
Executive Directors BnEzE
Mr. Wong Lik Ping IHREE - 6,930 - - 18 6,948
Mr. Lai Ka Fai PEELE - 2,503 - - 18 2,521
Mr. Tao Ke Pm] - 1,200 - - 18 1,218
Mr. Qiao Weibing BEakt = 1,751 = = 18 1,769
Mr. Ng Tin Shui SRELE - 650 - - = 650
Sub-total INE - 13,034 - - 72 13,106
Non-executive Directors ~ JEHTES
Ms. Yip Man Yi Elaut 120 - - - - 120
Independent non-executive BIFEHITES
Directors
Mr. Goh Choo Hwee RERLE
(Note (i) (b)) 38 - - - - 38
Mr. U Keng Tin FEXLE 180 - - - - 180
Mr. Ho Hin Yip (EE i 180 - - - - 180
Mr. Leung You Ming, David Z2EME 54 180 - - - - 180
Mr. Lo Tsun Yu (Note (i) B F 524 (ki) 142 - - - - 142
Sub-total IhEr 720 - - - - 720
Total Hast 840 13,034 - - 72 13,946
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

9. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND 9. EF - FEITHAERE
EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS (Continued) S
(@)  Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued) (a) EBEERFETHABSHM @

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z -+ B-+-HILEE

Salaries, Retirement
allowance benefits
and other ~ Discretionary  Share-based scheme
Fees bengfits bonus payments  contributions Total
N
5 W% RIKER
g HfhEAN REED  ERz6R SEMR Mt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TAT TAR TAR TAR TAR TAR

(Note (1))

(BzE0)
Executive Directors nTESE
Mr. Wong Lik Ping THRESE - 6,930 800 - 18 7,748
Mr. Lai Ka Fai RE@mELE - 2599 500 - 18 3117
Mr. Tao Ke e - 1,200 - - 18 1218
Mr. Qiao Weibing BEaLE - 1433 725 - 18 2,176
Mr. Ng Tin Shui RRELEE - 650 - - 3 653
Sub-total INgt - 12812 2,025 - 75 14912
Non-executive Directors ~ JFHITES
Ms. Yip Man Yi EHlsut 120 - - - - 120
Independent non- BiFHTES

executive Directors

Mr. Goh Choo Hwee REREE 180 - 50 - - 230
Mr. U Keng Tin SEREE 180 - 50 - - 230
Mr. Ho Hin Yip (ERIE St 180 - 50 - - 230
Mr. Leung You Ming, David 21BIS %4 180 - - - - 180
Sub-total NGt 720 - 150 - - 870
Total st 840 12812 2,175 - 75 15902

]7 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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9.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

ES-FETHAERE

DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND
EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The discretionary bonus are based on operating appraisal
results and basic salary of each director with reference to the
contribution to the Group for the annual operating results and the
individual performance.

(ii) Mr. Goh Choo Hwee was resigned as independent non-executive
director on 17 March 2022.

(iii) Mr. Lo Tsun Yu was appointed as independent non-executive
director on 17 March 2022.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.
The non-executive director's and the independent non-
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: Nil). In addition, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors as an inducement to join, or
upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of
office for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

The Company did not pay consideration to any third
parties for making available directors’ services during the
year (2021: Nil).

9.

S @

(a)

EERTBITHASHMN (&)
M5E

0] BYIETEALT S IRIBE B HBA R K
BREFZEAHD 2RYEEKE
B2 FEREEEZTRMKRMEA
RIFEETE

(ii) SEREEN_Z__F=1
+HBEHMEEIIEITES

(i BERFERENR_B-__F=1
TEtHEZERBULIFENITE
=o

EXFRIIZBITESFHINEE
RNENEREAT RAERE
BEBRHEMNRSS - LXXFRHZ
IFRTEFRBUIFITESH
M EEBRERERERTE
SRMARES

BE_Z__F+-A=+—H
IFFE TEEBFNEZTHA
ERFEIFEREREAMEIZ
BCE—F 1) ot BE
“ECCHF"A=+—HIEE
B AERMEDERNESSY
EAFHEREMAZMALE
B&z HE S ERRERmE (O

T F o

HBIEREFRFEMAE=FLE
RegH1E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

17

9. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND 9. EF - FEITHAERE
EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS (Continued) EHEHM @
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued) (a) EERTIETHAEHM (@)

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporates and
connected entities with such directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour
of the directors of the Company, body corporate controlled
by such directors or entities connected with such directors
that were entered into or subsisted during the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or conftracts

The directors are of the opinion that no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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9.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND 9. ESF -FEITHAEKIE
EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS (Continued) S @
(b)  Employee emoluments (b) EEHM
The five highest paid employees of the Group during FRoAEBRAREHEES
the year included four directors (2021: four), details of FENEES (CE_—F 1 1m04)
whose remuneration are set out above. Details of the WEFNEE BRI L iR T —5
remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2021: (CEZ—F . —4%) LIERAT
one) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor EEFRFETHAENRSHE
a chief executive of the Company are as follows: BEERNEMFBNT
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Salaries, allowances and other e R R E A EFR
benefits 901 1,048
Discretionary bonus IBTEAL 69 150
Retirement benefit scheme BRRREF) ET B HR
contributions 18 18
988 1,216
The number of the highest paid employees who are not WIERRNBEFEREZITHA
the directors and chief executive of the Company whose E -HiE BN TN BENNE
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follow: S EEANBUWT :
2022 2021
—s-= =
No. of No. of
employees employees
BE A BEAE
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 2% ]1,000,00078 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7521,500,0007%8 75 - 1
1 1

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to any of the highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2021:
Nil). There were no arrangements under which any of the
highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: Nil).

RBE_Z__F+"A=+—
HIEFE  AEESERE IR
BHIINA T ERFHIERE
MAZMARERE R Z ZZB T
HERBE CT T —F 18 -
BE_ZE__F+"-_A=+—H
IEFE TEEARSHFMAL
WEHREREEAFHIZHE
“ETF e

==
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

10. TAXATION . I8
2022 2021
—Es-= -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax: BIHATRIS -

Hong Kong Profits Tax e IES S5 782 1,099

(Over)/under provision in prior years: BREEE BEREB BETE
Hong Kong Profits Tax HEFEMR (165) -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRl ZEPTER - 453
Deferred tax (credit)/charge for current year ZNFEEIEIEIRIE (K%) B (151) 2,580
466 4,132

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong Profits
tax, the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits of a
qualifying corporation will be taxed at 8.25%, and the estimated
assessable profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
two-tiered profits tax rates regime was applicable to the Group
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. The profits
of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at the rate of 16.5%.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) is calculated at the applicable
rates based on estimated taxable income earned by the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group with certain tax concession, based on
existing legislation, interpretation and practice in respect thereof.
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprises Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
applicable PRC EIT rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is 25%
for both years.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR

RIEEBFFRZ G MR HIE
BE R EE R E2,000,000 7T 2 fh 5T
SR F 128,25 % IR R AN IR IE - T8
#82,000,00078 70 Z 5t FERR IR s A 42
16.5% 1 R AR TR IR o RIS 0w AR U S
BE_Z__FRIFZ—F+°A
=+ —HLEFERARAER S
FIISIR MAR S~ SEBERE 2B i A8
1216.5% 2 TN ©

rREITRZRPRISIR (TR ZEPRISIRI) THIRMR
HIRFZG) 2R REFRBENTEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

10. TAXATION (Continued) 10. IRIE @@
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit/(loss) FeEmk 2 AFERBREFRRADEH
before tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows: / (B518) HERIOT ¢
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
Profit/(loss) before tax for the year RNEERRATEF S (E5E) 44,079 (58,576)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate (Note)  IZEIRFrEMMKAE 21018
(M55 11,454 (14,851)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for PMBEMS AR H
tax purpose N 14,096 8,058
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax TRTEM S BEZFHRWAZ
purpose MBETE (33,934) (130)
Statutory tax concession EEMRIBIRR (165) (165)
Tax effect of share of result of an associate D #—KEE AT EE
REE (259) (3,521)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not A SoRI R IESR 2 M IEES 1R
recognised (777) (1,354)
(Over)/under provision in prior year BRAEE BERS
BETE (165) 453
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RESBRIEBIBEZRB T E 10,216 12,877
Other HAth - 2,765
Income tax expense for the year KEEFSRES 466 4,132
Note:  The domestic tax rate applicable to profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned e REBEAREMRBERER N ZERR
is used. o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

11. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 11. XEEFEF  (E518)

AEEEN (BB NG TI8E

Profit/(loss) for the year has been arrived at after charging the

17

following items: BIER
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Auditor’s remuneration ZEENEN & 1,680 1,500
Depreciation of property, plant and M BB R EITE
equipment 817 385
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 5,062 4,790
Total depreciation HTEE4BRE 5,879 5,175
Interest expenses (included in cost of MBS G AWARA)
revenue) 14,863 31,404
Cost of inventories sold (included in cost of BERZERZS (51 AW A B Z)
revenue) 47,476 96,736
Write-off of inventories FE M - 725
Short-term lease expenses HAFRERS 3,514 2,726
Staff costs: BT
Directors’ and chief executive's BEERTETHAEHN
emoluments 13,946 15,902
Other staff costs HtBE TR
— Salaries and other benefits — e R EMEF 17,080 20,107
— Discretionary bonus —IBTEAL 1,729 2,144
— Retirement benefits scheme —RIREBFI BT
contributions 1,519 1,955
Total staff costs BT A4E%8 34,274 40,108

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR




12.

13.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

12.

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

SREFN (HGi8)
AATEE NS RER R EEF
/ (548) b T et -

2022 2021
—E_C BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) wH), (B518)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to NNBHEE ANEEREE G,
owners of the Company (§518) 7,028 (40,619)
2022 2021
EIZE T —F
'000 '000
TFh& F 5
Number of shares e E
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose ¥t EGRE AR R E#ERT]
of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per (B518) v E@ERE e
share 1,687,303 1,687,303

The Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
during the current and prior year and, therefore, the diluted
earnings/(loss) per share is the same as basic earnings/(loss) per
share for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

DIVIDENDS

13.

No dividend was paid, declared or proposed during the year
ended 31 December 2022, nor had any dividend been declared
or proposed since the end of the reporting period (2021: Nil).

RABRAFERIBEFFEN FHE#EE
FEER R BE— TS —ERTE
T—F+IZA=+—HLEFE SKR#%
SBERA (B8 REREEART] (B8
GEIEE

=2

BHE_Z_"_F+B=+—HI*F
> R s EIRSEIREMRRE 1
REHRB T ESIRSEZRSEAR
BECEZ_—F: 8-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R A TS IRER MR
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE
s]7, =,
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ME-BEKRSZE
(1)  Reconciliation of carrying amount (1) EREEZHIER
Leasehold Plant,
improvements, machinery
Right-of-use furniture and and Motor
assets fixtures equipment vehicles Total
HEmE
R RE BN
EREEE REE RikfE HE far
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TER TiEn TR TR TR
cost o
At 1 January 2021 RZ2--&£—A—H %,376 71 12,268 1375 110,090
Exchange realignment ERHE 2322 - 129 75 2526
Additions AE 759 - 150 726 1,635
Disposal HE - - - (222) (222)
At31 December 2021and  RZE_—F+"F=+—H
1 January 2022 RZEBZZF-F— 99,457 71 12,547 1,954 114,029
Exchange realignment ERAR (5,027) - (781) (249) (6,057)
Additions E 16,546 - 154 1,948 18,648
Disposal HE (13,126) - (2,335) = (15,461)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_&+-A=+-H 97,850 71 9,585 3,653 111,159
DEPRECIATION AND ERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2021 RZ2--&£—FA—H 9,718 57 9,019 1,184 19978
Exchange alignment ERHE 217 - 29 5 564
Charge for the year KEETH 4790 2 367 16 5,175
Eliminated on disposal & il - - - (208) (208)
At31 December 2021and  RZE_—F+"F=+—H
1 January 2022 RZEBZZF-F— 14,725 59 9,681 1,044 25,509
Exchange alignment ERHE (647) 5 (633) (162) (1,437)
Charge for the year FEERH 5,062 2 282 533 5,879
Eliminated on disposal HE R (4,768) = (1,936) = (6,704)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_&+-A=+-H 14,372 66 7,3% 1,415 23,247
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+-A=1+—-H 83,478 5 2,191 2,238 87,912
At 31 December 2021 R_E_—&F+"F=+-H 84,732 12 2,866 910 88,520

]7 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. YE -BERSE @

(Continued)

(2)  Right-of-use assets 2) FRESBE

RIERMEEER B DN EREER
ERRREFEZDWT !

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
class of underlying asset is as follows:

2022 2021
—E-— —=——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Ownership interests in leasehold land IZITERATIRZIFEERZ
and buildings held for own use, et RIETF 2 A EER
carried at the depreciated cost 83,478 84,732

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building held
for own use represent the Group’s land use rights and
leasehold interests on leasehold land and building located
in Hong Kong and the PRC. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire these leasehold land and building
in the PRC and Hong Kong and the lump sum payments
cannot be allocated to the leasehold land and buildings
portions. Accordingly, the whole lump sum payments are
classified as right-of-use assets.

The analysis of expense item in relation to leases

FABRZEEIMRIET 2
BREDEAERUNER RS
BIAYE & 13 KA E T By LR
EREER AREEERFH—
RIEEFRARRERRALI B K
EBNZFHEHELHRIETF - —
REZBENRTEDEEREL
R AEF B o AL - 2 E—RIE
ERENTRBESEREEE

BB RN 2 HE A R

recognised in profit or loss is as follows: SIEENAIT
2022 2021
=S T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Expense relating to short-term lease AR EATAE 2 B 2,713 2,127
Expense relating to leases of low- ~ EREBEZSEZMS
value assets excluding short-term  FEIEEEBEEEMNEHEE
leases of low-value assets 801 599
Total cash outflow for lease HERESRHEEE 3,514 2726
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14

(Continued)
(2) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group has obtained the land use right certificates for
all leasehold lands.

As at 31 December 2022, the portfolio of short-term leases
is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the
short-term lease expense disclosed above.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not enter into any
lease that is not yet commenced (2021: Nil).

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15.

The Group leases out industrial properties under operating leases
with rental receivable monthly. The lease typically run for an initial
period of 2 to 3 years, with unilateral rights to extend the lease
beyond initial period held by lessee only.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of group entity. The lease
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s
option to purchase the property at the end of lease term.

ME- -BERERE®

(2) EREEE (@

AERERSHREHREL AL
HhEFERE -

RTETTF+RA=+—8"
FEEAEEAE A B SO R AR A
BRI EESAL

STECCE+TR=+—R
A ST LA E R AR EY
HECT—F 8-

REYZE

AERRBEESHAEHATEY XA
58 WE - HEMVIEIR—RA M
E=F EAEABRESEERTIE
GEEER

A S H A R A & 2 HEm E iR I R
b ARFAERESUERERS B0
EEERSHE - HESHN T ERERERE
BEERE/SABAREREREEE
ERYEPA===2

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Fair value NEE

Balance at beginning of the year FE) 2 458k 142,369 148,331
Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments AT EFE > W~ (8518) 7$48 16,923 (10,701)
Exchange realignment bE R aE %L (11,622) 4,739
Balance at end of the year FERZ R 147,670 142,369

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2022 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that date by Peak Vision Appraisal Limited,
independent qualified professional valuers not connected to the
Group.

]8 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

REYE @

AEBERE =7 ERMGEMETT
hE - ARFEEEESERINEEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group engages third party qualified valuer to perform the
valuation. The management of the Company works closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. In determining the fair value
of the relevant properties, the management of the Company have
determined the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for fair value measurements. In estimating the fair value of the
relevant properties, the highest and best use of the properties are
their current use.

During the year, there was a change of valuation technique from
Market comparison approach to Investment method and Market
comparison approach to reflect the higher and best use of the
properties.

15.

MRS

1B HREREBE 2 EER

MRBMABER -REEEBYEZAT
ER AR EEBECBERANATE
STEZAERMRBAERR - R{E5H1E
RYMEZ A TER  YEZESRRE
RiEnHBR AR

F HERMTEANZEREBERR
BERMGHEE MR ENES
RERERR-

Significant Relationship of unobservable
Valuation technique(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
FHRRBARRHE
hEAZE BEAFTHRRBARE KT ERRE
Industrial units 2022: Investment method i) Reversionary yield at 7.00%  An increase in the
located in and Market comparison reversionary yield would
Shanghai approach result in a decrease in
market value, and vice
versa.
fiInt EEm TEICEIREERTE ) EREE% Fir A BRI e 1B N 50
TEEEBAL EEBOE ERLD > RZIRARe

i) Market rental unit rate,
taking into account the
recent transaction prices for
similar properties adjusted
for the nature, location and
conditions of the property,
which ranged from RMB39
to RMBb54 per square feet.

i) THIBHEEEE FRELY) PTRBAHMEEINEER
ERLHAR Z B WY
FEME BRI E S
BEoNFPETARARYE
39T EAREATT

An increase in the market
unit rate used would result
in increase in fair value,
and vice versa.

NEEEN RZTRFR e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

15.

Valuation technique(s)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

15. REYE @

Significant
unobservable input(s)

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

AR R A SR
hEHZE BEAFIERRBARE NTENRRE
2021: Market comparison Discount on buildings market unit The higher the discount ratio,
approach rate ranging from 2% to 12% the lower the fair value,

—F I HIBLEBA

2022: Investment method
and Market comparison

Industrial units
located in Liaoning

Province approach
INEZEENTE T _F . KEEEMH
B EEBOE

2021: Market comparison
approach

——F I HBLEE

The fair value measurement is categorised into Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy and there were no transfers into or out of Level 3

during the years end 31 December 2022 and 2021.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR

18

BFHSBEUERITENT

and vice versa.
MEXEES > AT ERE
R 2 TRER

BFHSEUBEITENT
2%ZE12%

An increase in the
reversionary yield would
result in a decrease in
market value, and vice
versa.

Ffr RS BB U e IG N X 5L
MERLD > RZIFARe

i) Reversionary yield at 5.25%

) fEERUNE5.25%

An increase in the market
unit rate used would result

i) Market rental unit rate,
taking into account the
recent transaction prices for
similar properties adjusted
for the nature, location and
conditions of the property,
which ranged from RMB5 to
RMBS8 per square feet.

i) HIZHEEEE FRELY) PTRBAHMEEINEER
LR ZER WiY)  ATEEI RZIRA
EME BRI
BNFETARARES
TTEANREST

in increase in fair value,
and versa.

Discount on buildings market unit The higher the discount ratio,
rate ranging from 6% to 69% the lower the fair value,
and vice versa.

rEEds > A EEE

6% E69% RZ IR

ATEFERAANTEZERFIEZSE3

BARBE_E__HRFE_—F

+ZA=+—BLFE > FE34RAL

AT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

16. GOODWILL 16. HE
2022 2021
—g-— -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Carrying amount IREE
Balance at beginning and end of the year — FE4) RE KR 45 6% 25,556 25,556

(1)

Impairment testing of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying
amounts of goodwill allocated to a subsidiary in the trading
segment (the “Trading CGU”). The management of the
Group determined that no impairment loss (2021: Nil)
arose in relation to goodwill allocated to the Trading CGU
with reference to the professional valuation performed by
the independent valuer. There were no material changes in
the methodology and sources of market data applied in the
valuation between 2022 and 2021.

The recoverable amount of CGU is determined based
on a value-in-use calculation with the assistance of the
independent professional qualified valuers not connected
with the Group. The calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the management.

(1) BERENR

ﬁﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁévﬁgmﬁﬁﬁ
NEEEZHBIKBAR (TE
SIREELEBEN) - AERBE

B2 EE U EMETNEZE
HE BELEMDEEE SRR
SELBEMUNEEELRERE
(CEBE-—F fF) B &
ETERT—HHEMRBNGE
i #iRRR L A E AL o

REEFBUNAWEIEERTHE
BAERERNBUSERSER
LEMHE TRIZEREESE
HEE -EREERAENEEE
PRt B B TRERIRERETRR
et o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE
16. GOODWILL (continued)

(1) Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation
of the CGU. The major underlying assumptions on which
management has based in the preparation of cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill are
summarised below:

o Discount rate per annum — the discount rates used
are before tax and reflect specific risks relating to
the respective industries.

o Budgeted revenue and budgeted gross margins —
management determined budgeted gross margins
based on past performance and its expectations of
market development.

° Terminal growth rate — the rate used is based
on the average projected inflation rate of the
geographical area in which the business of the
CGU operates.

The recoverable amount of Trading CGU uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management on a five-year financial budget and a pre-tax
discount rate of 14.0% (2021: 15.5%). Cash flows beyond
the five year period were extrapolated at a growth rate of
2.5% (2021: 2%) per annum.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&R

R e B R T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

aE £

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 17. RS AR Z2ER
2022 2021
—E-= - S 3
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Unlisted investments at cost BRASTEZIE LTS 104,754 104,754
Share of accumulated post-acquisition loss ~ fE{S Rt BE % B R EHih 2 E
and other comprehensive expense, netof x> KRB U R
dividend received (6,228) (5,146)
98,526 99,608

The following is the particulars of the associates, which are

LFRIE L AR ER AN EDIGRE

unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market price is not ZHE N BEIRIEEE

available:

Details of the Company's associate at the end of the reporting RABRRERZBE ABFFIBNT !

period are as follows:

Nominal
Place of value of Proportion of
incorporation registered ownership interest
Name and operation Capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
ALK AMmERZ AT
L& EEME HfE FrE#EREE Z Ll TEEH
2022 2021
—BC-C &

Simagi (Note a) Hong Kong HK$107,300,000 7.46% 746%  Licensed money lender and is
engaged in money lending
business

Simagi (Fizta) B 107,300,000 7 7.46% 746%  FEREATREWEER

Top Insight Holding Limited  British Virgin Islands US$1,000 35.00% 35.00%  Investment holding whose

(“Top Insight”) (“BVI") subsidiaries are engaged in
investment property holding
businesses

Top Insight Holding Limited HEBRZEE 1,000E 7T 35.00% 30.00% REER HNBARAUERE

(Mop Insight 1) (= aeed=)) MEERER

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity FTE U LBE AR R BERENRS

method in the consolidated financial statements. FIFsERR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (cContinued) 17.
Note:
(a) Pursuant to the subscription agreement entered into between the Group’s

subsidiary and Simagi, the Group was entitled to have contractual right to
appoint director on the board and involved in participation in the financial
and operating policies decisions of Simagi. Accordingly the Directors
considered that the Group could exercise significant influence over Simagi

ar
B

24

B=E QT ZH

ull

(@ TRAR A5 I B A B) BaSimagiz T IZRYB 58
ek AEBRZA SN BJREEEM
ASimagfEE T > W2 BHB B RASE R
oAt > DR ANEE P HSimagh T
EARE BRRABARIABER

and this investment has been accounted for as associates. Fle
Summarised financial information of the associates BEATZHMBERNBE
Simagi Simagi
As at 31 December
W+=-—B=+—8
2022 2021
g =BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current assets REEE 274,129 448 255
Non-current assets JERENEE 4,875 4,350
Current liabilities REas (1,333) (193,903)
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in the BAREENREEAC R R -
associate:
Net assets of Simagi Simagify 2 & E 277,671 258,702
Proportion of the Group's effective interest {5 Z<E2 B 55 P& A 25 A EL 431 7.46% 7.46%
Carrying amount in the consolidated R EHFERRZEEE
financial statement 20,714 19,299

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2022 2021

—E-= -

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FET

Revenue I'PN 12,610 8,193

Reversal of impairment loss/ FEUR & TR E RS 185E],

(impairment loss) on loan receivables CRIEETE) 7,238 (3,377)
Profit and total comprehensive income KREE RN REEWEAEEE

for the year 18,444 3,670

]8 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR



17.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summarised financial information of the associates (Continued)

Top Insight

17.

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

R E AT ZEmw @&
WEARZHBEREE @)

Top Insight

As at 31 December

B+=ZB=+—H
2022 2021
-z T —fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Current assets MEEE 96,786 95,082
Non-current assets ERBMEE 221,553 225,877
Current liabilities mENER (96,019) (92,404)
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in the BREEPRBE TR LHR
associate:
Net assets of Top Insight Top Insightf;F & E 222,320 229,455
Proportion of the Group’s effective interest {52~ 82 BB PR 2 LL B 35.00% 35.00%
Carrying amount in the consolidated RixE MRz ZREE
financial statement 77,812 80,309

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEFE

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAT FAET

Revenue A 9,832 9,748

Change in fair value of investment property 3B Y%A T {E&E S (3,900) 47,969
Profit and total comprehensive income KREE RN RE2EWEAEEE

for the year 2,414 53,686
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

18. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FVTOCI 18. BAFEEZBHMZEW
AFBRZIRHERE
2022 2021
—E-C BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAEIT
Unlisted investments: FELrHKE
— Equity securities - e AR5 S 93,204 108,762

Particulars of investments in unlisted equity securities held by the
Group are as follows:

FAEEFAIF LMRAEFRENFE
LI

Place of

Name &g incorporation 2022 2021 2022 2021
sEeginE  ZB-”F ZBI-F ZBIZE  IBI-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#x TR
Imagi Brokerage Limited Imagi Brokerage Limited Hong Kong &7 9.69% 9.69% 54,944 55,700
Era Bright Limited RIEERAT Hong Kong &7 17.20% 1855% 17,418 18,000

Unlisted equity investrents in ENEGYN{E e 3% t0 99% 3% 1099%
different private entities BE PRCH# 3%ZE99% 3%E9% 20,842 35,062
93,204 108,762

The above unlisted equity investments represent investments in
unlisted equity securities issued by private entities established in
Hong Kong and the PRC. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, they were designated as equity investments at FVTOCI
as the investments are held for long term strategic purposes and
not expected to be realised within one year from the end of the
year.

The details of fair value measurement are disclosed in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR

LHIE L REREIEREREART
BRI 2 AN B EEPT 81T 2 IF LR
BFANRBEFIN HNKREFFR
HEKEERN  ZEFF LHRARERSE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_Z__F+_A=+—HIEE

19.

20.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 19. B AFEEBRERIIKRZ
ETRBEE
2022 2021
- T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Listed equity and debt securities: TR KREFRES
— Hong Kong —&58 7,708 21,777
- PRC —rHE 51,131 53,068
58,839 74,845
Unlisted fund investments: FLEPEETRE
-PRC —E 64,419 72,224
123,258 147,069
The balance of HK$64,419,000 (2021: HK$72,224,000) 64,419,000/ 7T (Z&E——14F : 72,224,000

represents the Group’s interest in privately-offered unlisted
fund investments established in the PRC. During the year,
the Group redeemed certain investments and received cash
of RMB7,210,000 (approximately HK$8,380,000) (2021:
RMB46,500,000 (approximately HK$56,163,000)).

The details of fair value measurement are disclosed in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS

RECEIVED FROM CUSTOMERS

20.

) 2ERErERRTELEIF L
mEEREZ B -FN AEFEERE
FRERKEIRE AR7,210,0007T *9
8,380,000 7T) (Z2=Z—%F : AR#
46,500,0007T (#956,163,000787T)) °

AT BHIBRER G ARBREN
4350

MEHESEKRES BWE

F#E

2022 2021
- BT —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Finance lease receivables REHEER 58,712 303,044
Less: Impairment allowance BB EEE (7,350) (149,682)
51,362 153,362
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEBEENDNS
Current assets REEE 47,246 122,782
Non-current assets EMBNEE 4,116 30,580
51,362 153,362
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

20. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS 20.

RECEIVED FROM CUSTOMERS (Continued)

MEAERKES BWE
BT ®

Minimum Present value of
lease payments lease payments
RIEAEI®R HEMRZBRE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E_C 2% ZEZZ BT &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FAET TFHET
Not later than one year RiBiE—F 57,350 273,806 53,126 268,783
Later than one year and not later BB —FBFBBME
than two years 5,900 31,219 5,586 28,200
Later than two years and not later BBBMEENBBRE
than five years - 6,402 - 6,061
63,250 311,427 58,712 303,044
Less: unearned finance income & © REREXERE UL A (4,538) (8,383) - -
58,712 303,044 58,712 303,044
Less: impairment allowance B RER (7,350) (149,682) (7,350) (149,682)
51,362 153,362 51,362 153,362

The Group's finance lease receivables are denominated in
RMB. The effective interest rates of the finance leases as at 31
December 2022 range from 6.69% to 11.15% (2021: 4.75% to
11.15%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2022, finance lease receivables amounting
to HK$35,826,000 (2021: HK$144,774,000) were guaranteed
by related parties of customers and/or customers’ deposits.
No finance lease receivables (2021: carrying amounts of
HK$100,606,000) were pledged as security for the Group'’s
borrowings.

As at 31 December 2021, finance lease receivable net of
impairment allowance amounting to RMB82,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately to HK$100,606,000), relates to a finance
lease lessee is under a reorganisation process, a provisional
restructuring plan of which had been approved by its creditors
and a provincial court but still subject to selections of different
compensation schemes by some common creditors before
execution. As disclosed in note 7, in September 2022, BJEG
received a final judgement from the Higher People’s Court
of the Shanxi Province of the PRC and the directors of the
Company, after taking into account the legal advice, determined
that the Company does not retained any contractual rights
to the cash flows from that finance lease receivables and
hence derecognised the finance lease receivable with gross
amount of RMB200,000,000 and impairment allowance of
RMB118,000,000.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR

NEBEZHEHEEEKRHUARE ST

B-RIEZTHF+ZHA=1+—H &t

BB BRFMNENT6.60%E11.15%
BT 475%E11.15%) °

R_E__F+_"_B=+—H B&MA
EREINER35,826,000/8 7T (B —4F :
144,774,000 70) HEE Z BB H K~
NEF 2 FAIER R E R E IR
(ZE=—% : BRE(E100,606,0007#7T)
EAREREARERMER TR

NS - —F+_H=+—H 81
REHEEREAREAEARER BEH
BEREAR—RE oAb & BRbsE4E
FED EERITRINERE TS EER
NEERRME SR BRI HERERE
Wk GOBRBEZER) A ARE82,000,000
7T (BB 49100,606,000587T) © ANzt
Vit R =St == W= R | ==V |-
B E PR B AR A R ARV AR B
FORNBEENEREEERE BT
RABRFRERBmMEHEEWREIIR
ERENEAESHRER] > WAL -
784 A\ R #§200,000,0007tHIRI B H & FE
IR A R #5118,000,0007 TR {E 15 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS
RECEIVED FROM CUSTOMERS (continued)

There was no unguaranteed residual value in connection with
finance lease arrangements or contingent lease arrangements that
was needed to be recorded as at the end of the reporting period.

The movements in impairment allowance on finance lease
receivables are as follows:

20.

MEESRWR BKE
BEEE @

R A It WA A S R
RATEZH 2 KB RBEAEDR
o

RRERERERZREREESNT

2022 2021

—E-C BT —F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAT TFAT

At the beginning of the year REH] 149,682 143,700
Amounts recognised during the year, net FREREEEFEE 2,906 4,831

Amounts written off/derecognised ERlsY, 4R IR

during the year (137,151) (3,623)
Exchange realignment FER AR (8,087) 4,774
At the end of the year REXR 7,350 149,682

Security deposits received from customers at the end of the
reporting period represent finance lease deposits received from
customers which are repayable by end of the lease period of the
respective finance leases.

As at 31 December 2022, deposits of HK$15,772,000 (2021:
HK$28,746,000) have been received by the Group to secure
certain finance lease receivables and classified into current or
non-current liabilities based on the final lease instalment due date
stipulated in the finance lease agreements. The deposits are non-
interest bearing, carried effective interest rate ranged from 4.75%
to 11.15% (2021: 4.75% to 11.15%) per annum. In addition,
the finance lease receivables are secured over the leased assets,
mainly plant and machinery leased, at the end of the reporting
period. The Group is not permitted to sell, or repledge the
collateral of the finance lease receivables without consent from the
lessee in the absence of default by the lessee.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk
exposure arising from finance lease receivables are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements.

REBEHA ERERFRERENIED
WEFMEEERS ANERERE
T EHAAE RS IR o

ATETTE+ZA=+—H > AEE
B4 415,772,000 7T (ZE2EZ—F
28,746,000 70) 1EAE TREHEREIX
R TR ERE RS AE]
Bz REAEDBANHEEBE 2 EAR
EIEEIE U=k 52}??%2%7%%#%’
RN TF475%E11.15% (CBZ—F .
475%i1115%)z§[5ﬂfﬁu =Ll
b RIREHAAR > RE R EEUEUAEE
BE GFEAMEEZ ME MR 7FL
o EAMANMBBLYZ BN T REHK
AARE ZERFAEBHERBREH
RS E R IR

E%ﬁﬁ%%‘ﬁﬂ”&ﬁﬁﬁé%ﬂ‘*ﬁ‘ﬂ&
MEEZ EERREZE—FFIBRINIT
BRI BIRARMIEES5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z - _F+_HB=+—HILFEE

21. LOAN RECEIVABLES FEWE R
2022 2021
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FA&T FET
Receivable from a sale-leaseback transaction £ & [E1F0 32 5 FEWER (Mizta)

(Note a) 152,645 165,631
Trust loan receivables (Note b) FEUEEER (Fskb) 11,593 42451
Other loan receivables (Note c) HhEWwER (skc) - 56,000

164,238 264,082
Less: Impairment allowance BB (154,906) (105,513)
9,332 158,569

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MREENDINSE
Current assets REEE = 97,539
Non-current assets JERENEE 9,332 61,030
9,332 158,569

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered into a sale-
leaseback transaction agreement with a lessee, an independent third party,
with gross amount of RMB135,000,000 (approximately HK$152,645,000)
(2021: RMB135,000,000, approximately HK$165,631,000) which was
guaranteed by related parties of the lessee and secured by the leased
assets with interest bearing at a fixed interest rate of 9% per annum, and
the loan became default on 8 January 2020.

The lessee from a sale-leaseback transaction was under a reorganisation
process, a final restructuring plan of which had been approved by its
creditors and a provincial court and was in process of execution.

As at 31 December 2022, the receivable from sale-leaseback transaction
was fully impaired (2021: impairment allowance of HK$103,059,000)
as the restructuring plan is still in process, the directors assessed the
credit risk of the receivables from sale-leaseback transaction and made
an impairment loss on lifetime ECLs of RMB51,000,000 (approximately
HK$59,277,000) (2021: reversal of impairment loss on lifetime ECLs of
RMB7,000,000 (approximately HK$8,454,600)) recognised in profit or loss
during the year.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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Fd5E

(a)

HE_Z-NF+B=+—HILFE>
ZK?E@ﬁ—fﬁ%I%EE%%E)\aTi%@ﬁ
# AR 1135,000,0007T (49152,645,000377)
(Z=-—& : AR#135,000,0007T > 48
E12#49165,631,000/870) 2 EREIHEZZ 1%
& AR AZEB S EREUEEEE
EIRIR > BB EFFITI%:T R ZE
MERZZEF—A/\BEEEN-

EROARZABAEAEEESF CEH
BEAR—RERERIEL EEARIT
MEER 2 RASEMESTE) ©

RIZ2-HF+-"A=+—H EEHAF
LT EROARZ EWEEER
BE (T Z—4F R {ER#5103,059,000
B0 > BERCHMEERLAR ZEWE
SRR FEANRIEmERsHEFEARTE
HRIE B 518 2 B E k518 A R 551,000,000
7T (#959.277,000%87t) (ZE_—45 | £
RIEHREEEEZ R AERBEELE AR
7,000,0007T (438 454,60077T) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_Z__F+_A=+—HIEE

. EIRE™R @

21. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

()

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s subsidiary has provided loan
receivables with total principal amount of RMB10,253,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$11,593,000) (2021: RMB34,600,000 equivalent to
approximately HK$42,451,000) to certain sizeable corporations in the PRC
through financial institutions in the PRC. Such loan receivables carried fixed
interest rates ranging from 6.7% to 7.5% (2021: 5.2% to 8.2%) per annum
with specified date of maturities in January to June 2024 (2021: in June
2022 to June 2024).

On 12 January 2021, the Group's subsidiary entered into a loan agreement
with an individual borrower (the “Borrower”) who is an independent third
party. The loan of HK$56,000,000 is secured by share charge deed and
charging of shares of Newgate International Limited, a private company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The interest bearing at a fixed interest rate of
10% per annum, repayable on 12 January 2022. On 30 December 2021,
the Group entered into a loan extension agreement with the Borrower,
pursuant to which agreed to extend the repayment date by 12 months
to 11 January 2023. The Borrower served a letter on 1 March 2022 and
confirmed to make an early repayment of a loan receivable amounting to
HK$56,000,000 by 1 July 2022. The Borrower had settled the loan during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

The movements in impairment allowance of loan receivables are
as follows:

Mk © 6@

(b)

(©

RIZ2ZZH+ZA=+—8 > x&£&KH
BAIEBTREREEETEZETK
B REIR AR AREE A AR 1510,253,0007T
(HBER#911,593,000/87m) (CE_—£F:
AE534,600,0007T > #8E 1 4342,451 000‘7%
70) Z RN ER - ZERINEREFEN
67%ETS% (T _—4F: 5.2%j:8.2%) ’
Eishae ﬁHElﬁ%_;ﬁ_EfE—)ﬂ ERACE
TE I BT TERAEETNEN
A) e

RIZZ—F—B+8 > AEEZWE
NEIE—BEAERA (ERAL > AL
F=7) s Bt 056,000,000?57—52
EXBRRMITIRZRIRERER mikER
BzERE (—RNEBEMARIL ZFAAR
B)) ZB1p o B EEFEI0%TE > B
TECCF—B+HEBE - RNZ—
FE+ZA=1+8 AEBSRERATIE
MRS B AEEREREERE
ERIBEEZZE-=F—A+—H-&
PAR B —E£=A—HARERESY
Téujﬁﬁﬁamﬁﬁﬁ’\\f§iifﬁtﬁ—ﬁﬁﬁ%
BIEIEFE U E7156,000,0007 7T » (A B
REE_S__HF+-F=+—HIEFE

A=
EEZEN

RERZRERFEESNT

2022 2021
—E_C T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAETT

Balance at beginning of the year FA) 2 458F 105,513 137,142
Amounts recognised/(reversed) FERRERD (E0) £5EF5E

during the year, net 59,277 (9,663)
Amounts written-off during the year FRMitEEER - (25,509)
Exchange realignment bE R aEEE (9,884) 3,543
Balance at end of the year FRZ R 154,906 105,513

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk
exposure arising from loan receivables are set out in note 35 to the

consolidated financial statements.

ARAEERBREREEZ EEBER
RIEERBRZ FIBHE IR E M HREN

5350
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

22. INVENTORIES 22. 78
2022 2021
—Es-= -
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FA&T FET
Raw materials R 4,635 192
Finished goods SER 8,756 16,586
13,391 16,778
At 31 December 2022, HK$9,900,000 inventories of the Group NWIEZZF+ZRA=1+—H > &~%H
were written down to their net realisable values. During the year, a 9,900,000 Tt E EMURE H o] #17%
write-down of inventories of HK$7,293,000 were recognised. B N EERRHUBFE7,293,000/8 7T
23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. BRI
2022 2021
—gs-— —=-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Trade receivables from trading business FEEZEREZER 15,131 14,386
Less: Impairment allowance BB (752) (752)
14,379 13,634

The credit period granted to customers ranged from O to 60 days. BEFEANFOEORZ(EEHAR

REREHIRIDEZR AR EZEUGR 30
PREUER ) 2 IRELDITINT

An ageing analysis of trade receivables net of impairment
allowance as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
invoice date, is as follows:

2022 2021

g BT

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FAT FET

0-30 days 0-30H 5,427 13,271
31-90 days 31-90H 2,474 302
91-270 days 91-270H 2,191 61
Over 270 days 2708 4,287 -
14,379 13,634

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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23.

24.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movements in impairment allowance on trade receivables are

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

23. BEEWEH @

REZRWH HERFEESNT

as follows:
2022 2021
- =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Balance at beginning of the year FA) 2 455F 752 151
Amounts recognised during the year FAMERDTEE - 601
Balance at end of the year FRZ R 752 752
Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk BRAEBREERRNAE FENEE
exposure arising from trade receivables are set out in note 35 to 2 EERBZE—SEBERN GG
the consolidated financial statements. PRERFRMIEE35

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 24. HthEWR - mERTAM
PREPAYMENTS TRIH
2022 2021
—s-— =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Other receivables (Note a) HahrE sk (fsa) 41,131 23,185
Prepayments FE(IRRIE 4,918 9,245
Prepayment for acquisition of property Y iEY 2 2 B IE (MisEb)
(Note b) - 17,847
Prepayments for purchases of goods EEERZAMNRIE (f5kc)
(Note c) 9,716 17,412
Deposits (Note d) %% (MIsEd) 965 13,236
56,730 80,925
Less: Impairment allowance JB BB B (8,305) (8,957)
Total other receivables, deposits and HnEWER - e RTE (I mIB4EEE
prepayments 48,425 71,968
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEBEENDTS
Current assets MENEE 48,425 54,121
Non-current assets IEMBIE E - 17,847
48,425 71,968
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

24. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

An amount due from an individual third party RMB12,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately to HK$13,568,000), net of impairment allowance of
RMB7,300,000 (equivalent to approximately to HK$8,254,000) (2021:
RMB14,000,000 (equivalent to approximately to HK$17,176,000), net of
impairment allowance of RMB7,300,000 (equivalent to approximately to
HK$8,957,000)), is unsecured, interest-free and repayable within twelve
months after the end of reporting period.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group made prepayment
of approximately RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$11,307,000) to a
supplier for plant and equipment. In December 2022, as the supplier
was unable to deliver the plant and equipment as originally planned, the
Group have entered into a supplemental agreement with the supplier for
cancellation of the purchase and request for the refund. Up to the date of
this report, the Group has received the full refund.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group made
prepayment of approximately HK$22,954,000 to a supplier of goods and
has received HK$6,700,000 in cash for refund and HK$2,200,000 was
settled by inventories. Up to the date of this report, the Group and the
supplier entered into a deed of settlement, and the balance is repayable in
the coming twelve months from the date of this report.

As at 31 December 2021, the amount represents a prepayment for
acquisition of property, including the leasehold land and building and
its respective leasehold improvement, of RMB14,546,000 (equivalent
to HK$17,847,000). During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
ownership of the leasehold land and building was transferred to the Group
and the leasehold improvement was completed and the amount was
transferred to property, plant and equipment.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group made prepayment of
approximately HK$17,412,000 to a supplier for order of goods. Due to
the shortage of the supply, the supplier was unable to deliver the goods as
originally planned. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has
received refund amounted to HK$6,700,000 and the supplier delivered
other goods with value of HK$5,289,000. The remaining balance will be
settled/offset either in cash or by subsequent purchases of other goods.

As at 31 December 2021, deposits mainly represented an amount of
HK$12,269,000 in a non-bank financial institution which was backed by
a deposit of the same amount received from a customer for the underlying
finance lease arrangements pursuant to the requirement from the non-
bank financial institution.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.

FEEEREREEEARAR

24. HthEWE - e KR Fa
I8 (@)

MEE

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

FEU— 1B A 5 = A B A R#12,000,000
7T (FEER 491356800058 7T) » HIFREE RS
5 N ER17,300,0007T (FEE 72 498,254,000748
7o) (T4 AR#14,000,000/87T (12
E14917,176,000787T) > MBRFEREA
F2£7,300,0007T (FHEF2498,957,000/7T))
AEIEE - R B RPREHRETZEA

HE_E-__#+_B=+—HILEE"
KEBEREE KR ER—BEEFIEL
B MIBAY A R %10,000,0007t GEE
11,307,000 7t) s R _BE-__F+"4>
B ERE A R R E T BRI BB K a%
&> AEECRREmT B R IUEX
JHEERAERKER - HERNREH A&
EEZERIERMN

HE_Z__FK_FE-_—F+°-A4
=t+—HIEFE AEREE—HEREE
8 5219 4922,954,00078 7Tt B Ut BN6, 700,000
HBITIRE IR 2,200,000 TUEE
BHE - HEARSESHE AEERAHER
SIS E R RN AR E BEAER R
+EBNEE

RIZEZ—F+ZRB=+—0 ZEHi5
WEMEZFAMRE SFEEEL MR
BFEURAEEEZHEMEREARE
14,546,0007T (tHHE1217,847,00077T) < B E
T _H+-A=+—HULEEE BE
MR T A REET A ERAREE
MEEES TR BERSEEEEYE K
BRgfe

HE_Z-_—F+"H=1+—HILEEE>
REEMEY ] BE— R EREHIENT
TIEXY17,412,000787T A FERRER > it
EEEIEREHERNER - BELT
I+ ZA=+—HILEE AEEE
JEIRTR6,700,0008 T R B R (TEES
5,289,000/ 7t 2 ELAN & 5 o BR T 45 BRI L
RERHEBEEEMEREE 1Ko

RIZ2Z—F+"A=1+—H8 &2FE
BN —RIFRI TR RIS 2~ £3812,269,000
B RIBEZIERITERISBZRE HE
FESE AR EHEE T HRTRE
HEREB e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

24. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 24, HMEWH e RFEM

25.

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

I (&)

The movements in impairment allowance on other receivables and R EMEWE R IZE 2 REEEEEN
deposits are as follows: T
2022 2021
- T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FEIT
Balance at beginning of the year FE 2 45 ER 8,957 800
Amounts recognised during the year FREREEE 50 8,817
Amounts written-off during the year FAMEEEE - (800)
Exchange realignment FER AR (702) 140
Balance at end of the year FERZEEER 8,305 8,957
Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk BRAEBREERRRAEMERE R
exposure arising from other receivables and deposits are set out in REESZEERBZFFHNGEE
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. TRERFRMIEE35
DEPOSITS PLACED WITH NON-BANK 25. FRHRIERITEREEZ
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, RESTRICTED EFM - ZRFRITER
BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT-TERM BANK FRHARITE MU KR E R
DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH REEEY
EQUIVALENTS
Deposits placed with non-bank financial institutions are for trading GHRIFRITERIEE 2 ERBIEE
in securities and interest bearing at prevailing market rates ranging SEEMRRITMBMEGFE  FF)
from 0% to 0.03% (2021: 0% to 0.23%) per annum. ENF0%E003% (ZEZ—F 1 0%E
0.23%) ©
Restricted bank deposits were pledged to banks to secure ZRGIRITER BRI TIRIT  LUEE
bank borrowings granted to the Group and interest bearing at a REBERZIBITER WIRRITHES
prevailing market rates ranging from 0% to 0.3% (2021: 0% to MEF S FHENF0%E03% (ZF

0.38%) per annum.

T 1 0%ZE0.38%) °

Short-term bank deposits with maturity of more than three months FEAREBE = B8 2 ek iFaE™
carry interest at market rate ranging from 4.85% to 5.35% (2021 BEMNERNF485%FEH35% (CFE_—

Nil) per annum.

F BB

Bank balances (including bank deposits with maturity of less than IR1T4EER (BIERIEAR AR =@ B Z1R1T
three months) carry interest at prevailing market rates which is 0% ER) BIRTHIEHEFTE > FHENTF

t0 4.70% (2021: 0% to 0.3%) per annum.

0%ZEAT0% (ZEZ—F | 0%ZE03%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. HithEtH KR EsE&R
2022 2021
—E-= - S 3
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT TFAET
Accruals fEstE&ER 11,643 14,645
Interest payables (Note a) FESF)E (isEa) 41,138 63,799
Receipt in advance (Note b) FEU R IE (Fizkb) 14,957 4,127
Other payables HAuhFEI =k 5,895 7,116
Total other payables and accruals HhEI R & et E R 4REE 73,633 89,687
Notes: BT
(a) As at 31 December 2022, the balances mainly represent accrued (a) N CECCE+R=+—R A&REE
interest cost of one borrowings (2021: two) in which the leveraged lease EERHER BN —EBR(CE—
transactions were defaulted. F I ME) ZFESTRE A
(b) As at 31 December 2022, the balances mainly represent rental payment (b) RIZZZF+A=+—HB &EHFE
received in advance from leasee for a lease of a 3 years period as stated in AN R BN E R R PTE T BB = 4540
the agreement of RMB12,767,000 (equivalent to HK$14,435,000). B FE(HFES AR 12,767,000 FRER
14,435, 0007T) °
27. BORROWINGS 27. &8
2022 2021
—E-C TR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Secured (Note a): HIEW (FfisFa)
Bank borrowings RAITIER 152,645 411,011
Other borrowings EHihfEmx = 12,269
152,645 423,280
Unsecured (Note b): EIEIR (PfsEDp) -
Bank borrowings IRTTE™R - 411
152,645 423,691

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all bank and other
borrowings are repayable within one year.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

27. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a) The bank borrowing as at 31 December 2022 is interest bearing at
9.00% per annum, secured by a loan receivable and guaranteed by the
related parties of the Group’s customer (2021: bank and other borrowings
at floating rates ranged from 4.75% to 9.00% per annum, secured by
machinery and equipment leased to customers under finance lease,
restricted banks deposits and/or finance lease receivables of the Group, of
which approximately HK$165,631,000 was also guaranteed by the related
parties of the Group’s customer).

(b) The unsecured bank borrowings as at 31 December 2021 were interest
bearing at fixed rates of 4.92% per annum.

. B @

3T

(a)

(b)

RIEZZF+Z"B=+—81"RITEN
THIREFZI.00%5T 8 » LU E T FIRIA
RERAERT R 2B A FRER CE-—
F L IRIT R EMERIES T F4.75%F9.00%
REBEF X R LIRBRERERT
FRZMBRRE  AEENZRGIRT
ERR/ AR ERE R FRR H
#9165,631,000/8 T /R AR S HI = = 2 RS
FEER)

RIZ2Z—F+"A=+—H  BKIFR
ITERRTHREH | A RBIE EFZETS 0

28. DEFERRED TAX EFEFR T
Imputed
interest on Undistributed
deposits profits of
received from subsidiaries Unused
customers and associate tax losses Total
HEARR
BlEREE BERT REA
ZEERAE ZRAEER RIERE fact
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T FHET TR
At 1 January 2021 RIEZ—F—F—H 1,389 794 (2,541) (358)
Debited to profit or loss REmINR 184 - 239% 2,580
Exchange realignment ERRE (326) - 145 (181)
At 31 December 2021 and RIE_—F+_A=1+—-HK
1 January 2022 2 —%-F-H 1,247 794 - 2,041
Credited to profit or loss RIERETA (151) - - (151)
Exchange realignment FERAE (93) - - (93)
At 31 December 2022 RZE__F#+-A=+-H 1,003 79 - 1,797
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

28. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$582,736,000 (2021: HK$536,725,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the unused tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Except for an amount of
HK$360,702,000 (2021: HK$338,471,000) which can be carried
forward for 5 years, the remaining unused tax losses may be

carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC group
entities from 1 January 2008 onwards. Withholding tax has been
fully provided at 5% (2021: 5%) on the distributable profits, if
any, of the Group’s PRC group entities and included in deferred

taxation.

IRIEMRIA )

REREHR  ZAEBERTARE
[B518582,736,0008 75 (ZE - —4 ¢
536,725,000 7T) A] A 5 38 8 oK 2
FJ o B HA ok 2 E ) 7 6 DATERI > Bt
EMABARBEEERDIELERIES
EE ° [£360,702,0008 7T (T _—4F :
338,471,000/ 7T) 2 £RERAEE R EIN
BN ARBRRIBEIE N MR RS

RIBFPEEEFEREZ BTN\ F
—RB—RiE s EEE B RIS
MBIk Z kS ABAITRING - AR TS
BRAEETRERSREEH DT
WA) z5% (ZZEZ—14F : 5%) st
> Wt ATRIEFR IR

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. R
Number
of ordinary
shares of Nominal
HK$0.1 each value
SRmE
0.187T2Z
EER%E EE
'000 HK$'000
T FAET
Authorised: VERE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREEC1IE T ZER
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, i\_v_—i H—H~
1 January 2022 and 31 December T —HF+ZHA=+—8~
2022 2T —HF—HBk
T F+"A=+—H 4,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BETREE -
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, C:;‘_—E H—B-
1 January 2022 and 31 December —E—F+"_A=+—H"
2022 - —A—HK
BT HF+"H=+—H 1,687,303 168,730

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_Z__F+_A=+—HIEE

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 30. UG ABERZHHX S

As the Share Option Scheme has lapsed on 29 July 2021, no new HRERESIEN S —FtAH
share options are available for issue after the lapse of the Share THABEKR RERE AN ER
Option Scheme and as at the date of this report. RARE BER > B REAE nl (s T o
31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT 31. REHEKIE
The Group’s investment properties are leased to a number of REEE 7 KBV L FIFREBE09FE46
tenants for the remaining period of 0.9 years to 4.6 years (2021: F(CEZ—F  05EWMF) WIAARAF
0.5 10 2 years). aTiee
The minimum rent receivables under non-cancellable operating TR EREBE T 2 REEKES
leases are as follows: wmr
2022 2021
—E=-= B —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Within one year —FR 5,991 5,100
In the second year B 6,647 3,111
In the third year BE=F 6,709 -
In the fourth year ke 6,474 -
In the fifth year EHE 1,721 -
27,542 8,211
32. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 32. EARKIE
2022 2021
—E-= s
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of the MW B = - BEREREZ
acquisition of property, plant and [SHENEES = Eip e
equipment contracted for but not provided — 3 > B4R
in the consolidated financial statements - 75

gz 20



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

33. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 33. EEEH®
Assets with the following carrying amounts, net of impairment THEREECEE GIRRERE B
allowance have been pledged to secure general banking facilities TR UIERETAERZ —RIRTTR
granted to the Group: 5
2022 2021
—g-= -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Restricted bank deposit ZIREIRITER 16,960 18,404
Finance lease receivables B ETH E RN - 100,605
Loan receivables from sales and lease-back &% [EFE 7 EWE R
transaction - 62,572
16,960 181,581
As at 31 December 2022, no finance lease receivables was ATE T TEFE+_RA=+—H  IEFH
pledged (2021: gross amount of HK$245,380,000 and ERERUGEESR CE T4 | 4258
impairment allowance of HK$144,775,000). 245,380,00078 7t K B (B 5 144,775,000
BT °
As at 31 December 2022, loan receivables from sales and lease- RN E - —F+_-_A=+—H &E%[O
back transaction with gross amount of HK$152,645,000 and TR W E 48 ER73152,645,0007%8 7T
impairment allowance of HK$152,645,000 was pledged (2021: F2152,645 00080 RBEEFEEL IR (T
gross amount of HK$165,632,000 and impairment allowance of T —4F | 48%A165,632,00058 7T KR E
HK$103,060,000). $55103,060,000787T) ©
34. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 34. EAREFIEE
The operating subsidiaries in Hong Kong joined the mandatory KEBREBKE ZWBARAMES
provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all employees in BEESEHABGIMAEEE (el
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory &) AT FTEI T IRIRRGIE AR
Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory ZENEAIR ARG ATBETRIEIER
Provident Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the scheme are held BB estBI 2 EERBIITIEA
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of DESFEAEE wHAEEEED
an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, A - RiBERBEETE K6 BE
the employer and its employees are each required to make EEH B EE R MM 25%ma%E
contributions at 5% of the relevant payroll of the employees to the EHEEHER BREEEBRREA
MPF Scheme, capped at HK$1,500 per employee per month. The 1,50078 7T o AL B R IR R FE & 518 P
obligation of the Group with respect of MPF Scheme is to make 2z BEEARERREE ST S (EHPAEH
the required contribution under the MPF Scheme. The retirement R R B EmERPAT Z RIREH
benefits cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss KigAERFARERHEENTENZ
represent contributions paid and payable to the MPF Scheme by He

the Group.

ZO CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no forfeited contribution
in respect of the defined contribution retirement plans were
utilised by the Group to reduce its contribution to the retirement
benefit schemes (2021: Nil).

As at 31 December 2022, no forfeited contribution under
contribution retirement plans is available to reduce future
contribution (2021: Nil).

The PRC employees of each subsidiary in the PRC are members
of the pension scheme operated by the PRC local government.
The subsidiary is required to the Fund Scheme Authority under
the Mandatory Provident Scheme 16% (2021: 16%) of the
relevant payroll of these employees to the pension scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation for the Group with respect to the
pension scheme is the required contributions under the pension
scheme.

During the year, the Group made retirement benefits scheme
contributions of approximately HK$1,591,000 (2021:
HK$2,030,000).

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consists of
debts, which include the bank and other borrowings and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital,
reviews the capital structure by considering the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. In view of this,

reserves and accumulated losses. The management

the Group will balance its overall capital structure through new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
throughout the year.

34.

35.

BRIABAEE @

BE_S__F+_H=t+t—HLF
B AEEIEE B HR A EF)
FRHOR WA LUR D R IR a5 81
PR CEZ—F 18 -
REZZBZ-F+"RB=+—0 #H&KER
PRETEITE I EROR U R R A RIEL
RIRHRCEZ—F 8]
PEESWEARZPHEEEE2EAT
B & BT 5% 3L 2 SRR 518 o 5L R
NE)RIRFIEATBEAHEEERET
MRt EIR S RER M Z16%
2T 1 16%) MRIRE ST BIHRR
MR mE - A ER N R R E 58
TRraZE—SEREHRAREETEIR
EZ R

REBMPNAFEFLHRAREN 5 EIHR
#91,591,0008 7t (ZZ=—4 : 2,030,000
BT °

TR T H

BEREKRERE

REFEEBEEN UREAEEZE
BRAFELE TEBEIEEHKE
mASERA IR R R AR - AN EE 2
EAEREIREE (BERTRAEME
) RAABEAE ANEEED (BED#
1ThRA - RE R ReE) - EREBR
EREAMARAEERERERZE
fEMmEBRE RS - B IENIL  AEER
BEBITHREGME B REORE R
BT EHEREAEE  NBEFE
AR 2 FERERBRHER N o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

ERITH @

Categories of financial instruments ERMITAZEER
2022 2021
—E-= s
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost BB AT B SHEE 197,184 396,062
Equity investments at FVTOCI BATEZEBEMEEmBATIR
ZRRERE 93,204 108,762
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEEEBEmY R EHEE 123,258 147,069
Financial liabilities EMasE

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

REBHEATHAENERER

227,093 537,997

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, financial assets
at amortised cost (including trade receivables, finance lease
receivables, loan receivables, other receivables and deposits,
restricted bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, deposits
placed with non-bank financial institutions and short-term bank
deposits) and financial liabilities at amortised cost (including other
payables and accruals, borrowings and deposits received from
customers). Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in

the respective notes.

The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group’s fair value interest

rate risk relates primarily to its loan receivables.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group is exposed to
cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate borrowings,
finance lease receivables, all deposits and balances with non-bank
financial institutions and banks.

The Group currently does not have a cash flow interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management closely monitors its
exposure to future cash flow risk as a result of change on market
interest rate and will consider hedging changes in market interest
rates should the need arise. A 100 basis points (2021: 100 basis
points) change represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of People’s Bank of China Rate arising from the
Group’s variable interest rate bank borrowings and finance lease
receivables.

Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the Group’s exposure to future
cash flow risk on certain variable-rate deposits and balances with
non-bank financial institutions and banks as a result of the change
of market interest rate is insignificant and thus those variable-rate
deposits and balances with non-bank financial institutions and
banks are not included in the sensitivity analysis.

The sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the relevant financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. If the interest rate of borrowings, a
loan from sale-leaseback transaction and finance lease receivables
had been 100 basis points (2021: 100 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 would have
decreased/increased by HK$440,000 (2021: post-tax loss would
have increased/decreased by HK$337,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable
rate borrowings, sale-leaseback transaction and finance lease
receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Currency risk

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were no significant
foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities.
Therefore the management considers that the Group was not
exposed to significant currency risk.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk through its investments in listed
equity securities and unlisted fund investments. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risks. The Group’s price risk is mainly concentrated
on equity instruments listed in The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Shanghai Stock Exchange and Shenzhen Stock
Exchange and unlisted fund and equity investments. In addition,
the Group has appointed a special team to monitor the price risk
and will consider hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to price risk of listed equity and unlisted fund and
equity investments at the reporting date. The analysis is based
on the assumption that the relevant index had changed by 10%
with all other variables held constant and all the listed equity and
debt securities move according to the historical correlation with the
index. If the prices of the respective instruments had been 10%
higher/lower, and held other variables constant, their impacts on
the post-tax loss for the years are as follow:

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Other price risk (Continued)

FMT A @
HEEKEEEBEREBR (&)

At ER%EE (&)

2022 2021
- S 3
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Listed equity securities LA ES

Increase/decrease =, 4,479 5,798

Unlisted fund and equity investments FELrTFEEREREKRE
Increase/decrease o, m 4,831 5,417

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables,
loan receivables, other receivables and deposits, finance lease
receivables, deposits placed with non-bank financial institutions,
restricted bank deposits, and cash and cash equivalents.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31
December 2022 and 2021 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Finance lease receivables and receivables from sales-leaseback
transactions

The Group has closely monitored the recoverability and ensured
adequate collaterals are received from these customers. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

Estimates of fair value of collateral are made during the credit
approval process. These estimates of valuations are made at
the inception of finance lease, and generally not updated except
when the receivable is individually impaired. When a finance lease
receivable is identified as impaired, the corresponding fair value
of collateral of that receivable is updated by reference to market
value such as recent transaction price of the assets.

Loan receivables (except for receivables from sale-leaseback
transactions)

The Group has closely monitored the recoverability of loan
receivables from the loan borrowers, including but not limited
to timely review loan borrower’s financial performance, follow
up action if become default, etc. In this regards, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

Trade receivables

The Group measures impairment loss of trade receivables based
on HKFRS 9 simplified approach at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs. Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed regularly.
The Group has establish a provision matrix that is based on
the Group’s historical credit losses experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Other receivables and deposits (other than deposit at bank)

allowance was recognised.

Concentration of credit risk

the aggregate carrying amount of finance lease receivables are

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. EMT A w

BHHERREEBRREEK (@)

15 B /m 2 R Bt 1B 5F 1 (42)

B BN ABRIEE (R1TEAFIN)

Other receivables and deposits (other than deposit at bank) is HMEWFIER IS GRITEBRIN b
classified as financial asset at amortised cost. For other receivables
and deposits, the management of the Group makes periodic HMERZRIEREEMES  ~EEEIE

collective assessment as well as individual assessment on the EBiRRERENER e TR S E
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based on historical TﬂFEH&*”IE&ﬁ%E’J—MﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁLﬁ

settlement records and past experience. For the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group assessed the ECL for E&_gi—fﬁ—f— B=+—HIE%
other receivables and deposits were insignificant and thus no loss &> A S B H A B I FUIB Ko 32 B AR 5

Bank balances and deposited with non-bank financial institutions IRITHEBF R 7 7k T2 I B FEARTT % F0 1%

and non-bank financial institutions in Hong Kong and the PRC FRERVERTT R FEERIT RIS R AR S @

counterparties are banks and non-bank financial institution with BEERFEEFRIIRITRIERTT

good credit-rating.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had certain concentration N_E_"F+"A=+—H > H#@iRk

due care in granting credit and checking the background of Tffé’naﬁﬂff?ﬁﬁtfﬂ%'iﬁﬂ’]ﬁ%“/z

DEAREHER A ENEMEE T
FaERER G- BE S
HFERRE B IE I A B A > Bl F ST
E1EREE -
vt
The Group’s bank balances and deposits are deposited with banks REBNRITER TR ERRE AR
and the Group has limited the exposure to any single financial AZEAE—ErREBINERE R R
institution. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the HEENEEREBR EHHﬁAMﬁ?E
FhiE o
EEETRK
of credit risk as 36% and 100% (2021: 66% and 100%) of BB B ARAREE 236%&%100%
TET—F I 66%K%100%) DRIZRE R
due from the Group’s largest and the five largest customers EERANAEATE EFEAFEEB R
respectively, which are mainly state-owned enterprises or sizeable FXWARBENREE L) » AEERILX
private owned enterprises in the PRC. The management exercises SETEEETEE BEEHERH
these counterparties on a regular basis and closely monitors e R PNRERE BRI &R
the subsequent settlement of the customers. In this regard, the T%%.:?%ZK?EIZTD SRR EREER

directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is T 0
significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Measurement of ECL

The Group measures loss allowance for finance lease receivables
and trade receivables based on lifetime ECLs. For other financial
assets, the Group assessed the loss allowance for receivables that
are not credit-impaired collectively based on 12 months ECL and
lifetime ECL, and assessed receivables that are credit-impaired
individually based on lifetime ECL.

The Group has conducted an assessment of ECLs according to
forward-looking information and used appropriate models and
a large number of assumptions in its expected measurement of
credit losses. These model and assumptions related to the future
macroeconomic conditions and borrower’s creditworthiness (e.g.,
the likelihood of default by lessees/customers and corresponding
losses). The Group has adopted judgement, assumptions and
estimation techniques in order to measure ECLs according to the
requirements of accounting standard such as criteria for judging
significant increases in credit risk, definition of credit-impaired
financial asset, parameters for measuring ECLs and forward-
looking information.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. ERITH @

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) BHERKREEREREE (&)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERERBEFG (E)
Measurement of ECL (Continued) ST ETEHIIEEREE (8

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the REBPAIEES R TR HEEU
following categories: THER

Finance lease and

Internal credit rating Description trade receivables Other financial assets
RNEEETR Hit RMEHERE 7 RS HittEREE
Stage 1 The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not Lifetime ECL - not credit- 12-month ECL
credit risk since initial recognition and that are not impaired
credit-impaired upon origination.
F—H HFFNENERBRENSEICUREERR FHNBHEEFE-EE 1EARBEESSA
EREERIREEAE. EhE
Stage 2 There has been a significant increase in credit risk since  Lifetime ECL - not credit- Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired
initial recognition through information developed impaired
internally or external resources.
EHR BEACHENSRIMIERNERDSRILE FHARBEEHE-BE FHNBBEESE-EEE
EERRTEEEMIEMo EHfE HfE
Stage 3 There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired ~ Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired  Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired
=1 BRBETEEAERAG FHNEHEESE-EE FENEREEEE-RBES
EHME FifE
Stage 4 There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery.
FOR BREENERADRREMBRE A£EIRE  FUBETHE TIEET
EE RS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. EM T A w

HHERREEBRREK (@)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

15 B /@ 2 R Bt 1B 5F 1 (42)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

2022
—E”C

Expected Gross carrying Loss

Trade receivables: loss rate amount allowance

B 5 TEHARSIE R EREARE E51EEE

% HK$'000 HK$'000

TAET TFHET

Neither past due nor impaired RN ERE 1.74 6,161 107

Past due less than 30 days #HR/ D308 1.91 889 17
Past due for 30 days or more but  JEHA30R ZLA £

less than 90 days {B/D5290H 3.86 2,487 96
Past due for 91 days or more but  #1HA91H 8L

less than 270 days {B/0F5270H 5.35 823 44

Past due for 271 days or more wER271HEU 10.23 4,771 488

15,131 752

2021
B4

Expected Gross carrying Loss

Trade receivables: loss rate amount allowance

B SRR TEHARSIEX IRE4A2EE ESIERE

% HK$'000 HK$'000

% TAET TFET

Neither past due nor impaired AT E 5.66 12,714 719

Past due less than 30 days #HA/ D HA30H 1.24 1,292 16
Past due for 30 days or more but  3HA30H T LA

less than 90 days B8/05290H 3.83 313 12
Past due for 91 days or more but ~ #iHA91 H &l L

less than 270 days {B/0F2270H 7.46 67 5

14,386 752

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE
EMIA®

MHERREERRKREE (&

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

15 B /m 2 R Bt 1B 5F 1 (42)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
BRAEER Fha £

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

As at 31 December 2022

KZE-Z%+-B=+—H

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
12 months not credit credit Simplified

ECL impaired impaired approach Total

kEEREZ BiREEREZ

128  FHATEE  FERESR
BHEERE =885 =855 [ iast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAERT THERT TERT TR
Finance lease receivables RERERES - - - 58,712 58,712
Loan receivables FEER 11,593 - 152,645 = 164,238
Trade receivables EEle - - - 15,131 15,131
Other receivables and deposits E=uAle e 42,096 - - = 42,096
Restricted bank deposits ZRREIRITER 16,960 - - - 16,960

Deposits placed with non-bank financial - AR IERITE RIS
institutions 2ET 3,217 - - = 3,217
Short-term bank deposits SRR 30,000 - - = 30,000
Cash and cash equivalents REREEEY 38,143 - - - 38,143
142,009 - 152,645 73,843 368,497
As at 31 December 2021
RZEZ—H+"A=1+—H
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12 months not credit credit Simplified

ECL impaired impaired approach Total

FEERE2 EEEREZ

12{88 FHRNESR  FHENES
FRHEEHE EEFE FEHE ({073 fast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FER TEr FTEn FER T
Finance lease receivables BETRERKT - - - 303,044 303,044
Loan receivables L ER 98451 - 165,631 - 264,082
Trade receivables BN - - - 14,386 14,386
Other receivables and deposits HittE Kz 21481 - - - 21481
Restricted bank deposits RIRFIRITER 18,404 - - - 18,404

Deposits placed with non-bank financial - ZA JESRITE RIS

institutions &S 13,599 - - - 13,599
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFE2ZEY 23,299 - - - 23299
175,234 - 165,631 317,430 658,295
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z - _"F+_A=+—HILFE
EMIA®

MHERREERRREE (&

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35.
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERERBEFG (&

TREHERAEEN S "FKT
- —F+_A=t+—HHREaaE
W~ B R FEW E R EERR

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for finance lease receivables,
trade receivables and loan receivables as at 31 December 2022

21

and 2021; EERRATEHEERENER
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Written-off
F—4R B F=4 st HHsH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FiET FiET TR TR
At 31 December 2022 KZEZZ&+-B=+—H
Finance lease receivables B
Lifetime ECL not credit impaired FEEREZERN
= EEE
Expected loss rate TREARS B 12.52% - - 12.52% -
Provision B 7,350 = = 7,350 =
Collectively assessed gross receivables &4z &L FE IR FAAZE 58,712 - - 58,712 =
Loan receivables FEWERR
12-month ECL 12{BRTEfRfE ER51E
Expected loss rate TREARS B 19.50% - - 19.50% -
Provision B 2,261 = = 2,261 =
Individually assessed gross receivables  &MERFHERIFEU T AB%E 11,593 - - 11.593 -
Lifetime ECL credit impaired EBiEEREZEHREREE
[}
Expected loss rate TREARS B - - 100% 100% -
Provision B - = 152,645 152,645 =
Individually assessed gross receivables 4R EHERIFEU N AEEE - - 152,645 152,645 =
Trade receivables BRREkH
Lifetime ECL not credit impaired FEEREZERREREE
A
Expected loss rate TEREIEE 1.76% 3.86% 9.51% 4.97% =
Provision &E 124 96 532 752 -
Collectively assessed gross receivables 4R &L EIRZAA%E 7,050 2,487 5,594 15,131 -

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. EM T A w
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) BHERKREEREREE (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= BB R B EFF G (&)
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Written-off
F—4 EH E=4 4ast iG]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET T
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F+-A=+—H
Finance lease receivables RETRERRR
Lifetime ECL not credit impaired FEEREZERR
8RS
Expected loss rate B IEE 851% - - 851% -
Provision s 4908 - - 4,980 -
Collectively assessed gross receivables & HMERRE G 4R 2E 57 664 - - 57,664 -
Lifetime ECL credit impaired BEEREZEHR
8RS
Expected loss rate B IEE - - 59% 59% -
Provision i - - 144774 144,774 -
Individually assessed gross receivables AR FHERIPE G 4R %E - - 245,380 245,380 -
Loan receivables FEER
12-month ECL 12ERFEEEHE
Expected loss rate B IEE 2.49% - - 2.49% -
Provision s 2,454 - - 2,454 -
Collectively assessed gross receivables & HMERE G 4R 2E 98,451 - - 98,451 -
Lifetime ECL credit impaired BEEREZEFHR
8RS
Expected loss rate B IEE - - 67.26% 67.26% 100%
Provision i - - 103,059 103,059 25,509
Individually assessed gross receivables AR ERIPE G 4R %E - - 165,631 165,631 25,509
Trade receivables 2B lidb e
Lifetime ECL not credit impaired HEEREZESRN
S EEE
Expected loss rate TEHAESIEE 5.25% 383% 7.46% 5.23% -
Provision i 735 12 5 752 -
Collectively assessed gross receivables A THMhBIEG AR %E 14,006 313 67 14,386 -
Liquidity risk BB LR

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance with

loan covenants.

EEERBETRRR  AEEEER
HEEEEGATEN—EKFHERE
RBEEEY) WEEAEBREERH

ZIRE RSB
ENFBRBRETER

TE BEEERE

TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. ERIT A @
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) HBHERKRETEREREE &)
Liquidity risk (Continued) TEEZ R (B)
The management considers that liquidity risk is limited after EEREAEER AR KRR
considering the future cash flows of the Group in the foreseeable e BIERTEREERBR @
future, including the repayment schedule of bank borrowings as XA BB R EREEARIE=1E 8 E
discussed above and the short-term liabilities which are required ENEaER EEERAMPES
to be repaid within three months from the end of the reporting Bl AR AEEGBRHEEREIR
period. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate ERRERENNCHETHEEREEE
reserves by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash R RHRREzHEMEERSES
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and Bz o
liabilities.
As at 31 December 2022 RZE_”“#+"H=+—8H
Weighted
average Total
effective Within More than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-2 years 3-5 years 5 year cash flows amount
MEFY FEFHE
BRI 1R 1524 3E54 BBSE BN REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T T Fhn T T
Other payables and accruals BEARRESER - 73,633 - - - 73,633 73,633
Borrowings 115?}1 9.00 152,645 - - - 152,645 152,645
Deposits received from customers ~ ERES#E 575 2,262 565 - 16,961 19,788 15,772
228,540 565 - 16,961 246,066 242,050
As at 31 December 2021 A _E—HF+"H=+—H
Weighted
average Total
effective Within More than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-2 years 35 years 5 year cash flows amount
IET FEFERS
LGl 1£R e 3E5E BEE  RENE REE
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
THT THT TER FAT THr TER
Other payables and accruals Ht R ER - 89,687 - - - 89,687 89,687
Borrowings 1151%'}1 6.82 465,785 - - - 465,785 423691
Deposits received from customers  ENE P& 535 13,143 3328 1,488 15,781 33,740 28,746
568,615 3328 1,483 15,781 589212 542,124

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. EM T A w
Fair value measurements of financial instruments EMITANQTEHNE
This note provides information about how the Group determines IEEH R A ERNAEESBEETME
fair values of various financial assets. EZAFEZER -
Fair values of financial assets that are measured at fair value on HEEMBEUL FEMEZEHE
a recurring basis EZATFE
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value REBEIBOEREENSREPREZR
at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives FEFE PRIBHUMEETZSE SR
information about how the fair values of these financial assets are BEZAFEZER G 2FHERZ M
determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs BT R A B ©
used).
Significant Relationship of Sensitivity of
Fair value  Valuation techniques unobservable unobservable input(s)  fair value to
Fair value as at hierarchy  and key inputs input(s) to fair value the input(s)
HERATR EART FOUBZHAREE ATEHBAUEZ
AFE ATERG FERARE BERANE RTEZFE HEE
2022 2021
ZECCE “Z-E
NOTES HK$'000 HK$000
WE  FER Tan
1. Financial assets at FVTPL:
L BRATEERBESRZEM
BE
- Traded on stock exchanges 19 58,839 74,845 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in N/A N/A N/A
active market
- ESERBMRA F-h EERTENEARE TER TEH TEH
- Unlisted fund investments in 19 64,419 69,157 level 3 Basedonthenetasset  Third party valuationof ~ The higher the NAV, the 5% increase/(decrease) in
the PRC values (“NAV") of underlying investment higher the fair value third party valuation of
the fund investment underlying investment
portfolio determined portfolio would
with reference to third result in increase/
party valuation of (decrease) in fair
underlying investment value of approximately
portfolio and HK$3,464,000
adjustments of related (2021:HK$3,458,000)
expenses
- HEBFLTEERE FoH ERESREMAN OELEEANESF ZEIEURRATE EERERANE=S
BETE (877 4 ) B/ () 5%
&) RIS E BERATEEN/
RERBEHEZS (BiL) 493,464,000
ENE=HEEE BT (CEI-F!
E 3458,000%7T)
- Unlisted fund investment in 19 - 3,067 level 3 Based onthe investee’s  N/A N/A N/A
the PRC financial postion,
performance and
using NAV
- HEEETEERE F=H  ERRREEVBRK TER TER TER
R RARFEREE
M@
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE
35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair values of financial assets that are measured at fair value on

35. EMT A ®w

TRMIANAFEFAE (B

EEMBEULFEFEZZHE

a recurring basis (Continued) EZRFE (B)
Significant Relationship of Sensitivity of
Fair value  Valuation techniques unobservable unobservable input(s)  fair value to
Fair value as at hierarchy  and key inputs input(s) to fair value the input(s)
BT EARH FOBREARER ATEHBAMEZ
ATE ATERR  TEEARR BREAYR ATEZRR HEE
2022 2021
ZE-CF &
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Mizk TEr TEL
2. Equity investments at FVTOCI
2. BATEBBEMEZERAN
RZRERE
- Unlisted equity investment 18 54,944 55,700 Level 3 Market approach Price to book ratio: 0.84  The higher the ratio, 5% increase/(decrease)
which principally engaged in (2021:0.78) and the higher the fair in price to book ratio
money lending business in discount for lack of value; the higher the would result in increase/
Hong Kong marketabilty: 20% discount rate, the (decrease) in fair
(2021: 158%) lower the fair value value of approximately
HK$2,747,000
(2021:HK$2,700,000)
- IEREREBEINE F=H WEA TRE 084 (C32— hXUBAATEYE  BREEN/ (RL) 5%
LRI LPRERE F.078) REEZ B BREMEAL  BERATELEN/
TETEEE TEHE (B1:0) #92,747,000
0% (CEZ-F! B (CEB-F:
158%) 2,700,0007%7c)

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR

5% increase/(decrease)
in discount for lack of
marketability would
result in increase/
(decrease) in fair
value of approximately
HK$687,000
(2021:HK$600,000)

Bz mE R RREN
/ (B/Y) 5% EHA
B/ (L) 4
6870007 (5=~
£ 16000008 7)



35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair values of financial assets that are measured at fair value on

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &=

35. EMT A w

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BRI T

—=— —

—_—

F+-RA=T—HLFE

ETRMIANAFEFE (@)

BEEEBELULFEFEZEZHE

a recurring basis (Continued) EZRTFE (&
Significant Relationship of Sensitivity of
Fair value  Valuation techniques unobservable unobservable input(s)  fair value to
Fair value as at hierarchy  and key inputs input(s) to fair value the input(s)
HERATR EART FOBREARER ATEHBAMEZ
ATHE ATERR  TEEARR BREAYR ATEZRR HRE
2022 2021
ZE-CE I -E
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Mizk TEr TER
2. Equity investments at FVTOCI
(Continuea)
2. BATEBEEMEZERAT

R2RERE (B)

- Unlisted equity investment 18 17,418 18,000 level 3 Market approach Price to earning ratio: The higher the ratio, the 5% increase/(decrease) in
which principally engaged in 598and 6.78 higher the fair value; price to eaming ratio
licensed money lending and, (2021:7.37 and the higher discount would result in increase/
manufacturing and sales of 9.67) for difference rate, the lower the fair (decrease) in fair
packaging products in Hong business and value value of approximately
Kong and in the PRC discount for lack of HK$853,000

marketability: 20% (2021:HK$500,000)
(2021:15.8%)

- IEREERTENER F=H WHA TRE SBREMB(C LEURHATEE  HEREEM/ (L) 5%
BEBURRERHES ST-E73TR B ERRMEALA  BERATELEN/
HERNELTRERE 967) [(AEHRE TEHUE (7)) #9853,000

METER) 72 BT (C3I-F!
TEMERE 500,000%7c)

0% (CEZ-F!

158%)

5% increase/(decrease)
in discount for lack of
marketability would
result in increase/
(decrease) in fair
value of approximately
HK$165,000
(2021:HK$131,000)

BREmEREERREN
/ (B) D% EHA
FEEI/ (AL &
165,000%7 (2=~
4 1131,000%7T)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE
35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair values of financial assets that are measured at fair value on

35. EMT A ®w

TRMIANAFEFAE (B

EEMBEULFEFEZZHE

a recurring basis (Continued) EZRFE (B)
Significant Relationship of Sensitivity of
Fair value  Valuation techniques unobservable unobservable input(s)  fair value to
Fair value as at hierarchy  and key inputs input(s) to fair value the input(s)
BT EARH FOBREARER ATEHBAMEZ
ATE ATERR  TEEARR BREAYR ATEZRR HRE
2022 2021
ZE-CF &
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Mizk TEr TEL
2. Equity investments at FVTOCI
(Continuea)
2. BATEZEEMEZERAT
RZRERE (B)
- Unlisted equity investment 18 9,181 10,456 level 3 Market approach Price to sales ratio: 349 The higher the ratio, 5% increase/(decrease)
which principally invests in (2021:7.47) and the higher the fair in price to sales ratio
a target with operations of discount for lack of value; the higher the would result in increase/
manufacturing and sales of marketability :20% discount rate, the (decrease) in fair
medical device and sales lower the fair value value of approximately
of genetic testing service HK$458,000
providers in the PRC (2021:HK$522,000)
- IEREGTENERR F=R WHA MK 30T LEUSAIATES  HHEEEN/ (HD) 5%

BIRNE HERARRA
HELBNRBREEZ
FEmRERE

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR

1747 Rz
BRBIRR 20%

B BREURAA

TFlEHE

BERATEEN ()
) #9458 0003 TT (=
BT 1520005

7

5% increase/(decrease)
in discount for lack of
marketability would
result in increase/
(decrease) in fair
value of approximately
HK$115,000
(2021:HK$130,000)

Rz A REERIEM
/ (B) D% EHA
TEE/ (AL 4
115000%7 (Z2=—
4 1130000 7T)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

35. EMT A w

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair values of financial assets that are measured at fair value on

ETRMIANAFEFE (@)

BEEEBELULFEFEZEZHE

a recurring basis (Continued) EZRTFE (&
Significant Relationship of Sensitivity of
Fair value  Valuation techniques unobservable unobservable input(s)  fair value to
Fair value as at hierarchy  and key inputs input(s) to fair value the input(s)
HERATR EART FOBREARER ATEHBAMEZ
ATHE ATERR  TEEARR BREAYR ATEZRR HRE
2022 2021
ZE-CE I -E
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Mizk TEr TER
2. Equity investments at FVTOCI
(Continuea)
2. BATEBEEMEZERAT
R2RERE (B)
- Unlisted equity investment 18 5,531 7498 level 3 Market approach 2022: Price to book ratio: ~ The higher the ratio, 5% increase/(decrease)
which principally invests in 5,03 and discount for the higher the fair in price to book ratio
a target with operations of lack of marketability: value; the higher the would result in increase/
manufacturing and sales of 20% discount rate, the (decrease) in fair
aerospace related equipment lower the fair value value of approximately
inthe PRC HK$276,000
- IERENTTENER F=H WHA TECCEIHRE. HEUSHATEE  BREEM/ (R 5%
ERREERERERS 503RBZMIAR B ERRMEALA  BERATELEN/
ELBNIE LTRERE BRI 1 20% TEHMA () #9276, 000% T
5% increase/(decrease)
in discount for lack of
marketability would
result in increase/
(decrease) in fair
value of approximately
HK$69,000
BREmEREERREN
/ (B) D% EHA
FEEI/ (AL &
69,0007T
2021: Discount of 8.1%  The higher the discount 5% increase/(decrease) in

off for the market
capitalization change

R
AR 1%

rate, the lower the fair

value

discount for the market
capitalization change
would result in increase/
(decrease) in fair

value of approximately
HK$37,000

BREUBAIATEY TREEXCEPEREN

[

/(D) S%REBA
TN/ (B &
37,000% 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. EM T A w

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair values of financial assets that are measured at fair value on

TRMIANAFEFAE (B

EEMBEULFEFEZZHE

a recurring basis (Continued) EZRTFE B
Significant Relationship of Sensitivity of
Fair value  Valuation techniques unobservable unobservable input(s)  fair value to
Fair value as at hierarchy  and key inputs input(s) to fair value the input(s)
BT EARH FOBREARER ATEHBAMEZ
ATE ATERR  TEEARR BREAYR ATEZRR HRE
2022 2021
ZE-CF &
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Mizk TEr TEL
2. Equity investments at FVTOCI
(Continuea)
2. BATEZEEMEZERAT

RZRERE (B)

- Unlisted equity investment 18 611 704 level 3 Market approach Price to book ratio: The higher the ratio, the 5% increase/(decrease)
which principally invests in 181 (2021: higher the fair value; in price to book ratio
a target with operation of 23.50) and lack of the higher discount would result in increase/
developing manufacturing marketability:20% rate, the lower the fair (decrease) in fair
and sales of automobile value value of approximately
related equipment and HK$29,000
accessories in the PRC (2021:HK$9,000)

- IERENETERET F=R WHA mIRE 181 (CFZ— LEUSAIATES  HEREEM/ (B 5%
RIERERERHES FIB0)RkEZH B RERERIL  BERATAEEN/
R LRERE EREE  20% TEHE (BiL) 4729,000% 7

(ZEZ-F 1900
%)

5% increase/(decrease)
in discount for lack of
marketability would
result in increase/
(decrease) in fair value of
approximately HK$8,000
(2021:HK$1,000)

Bz mE R RREN
/ (B/Y) 5% EHA
B/ (L) #
8000%TT (C2Z—
£ :1,000%7)

- Unlisted equity investment 18 - 10,270 Level 3 Market approach Discount of Nil off for the  The higher the discount 5% increase/(decrease)
which principally invests in market capitalization rate, the lower the fair in discount for
a target with operations of change value market capitalization
developing manufacturing change would
and sales of power batteries in result in (decrease)/
the PRC increase in fair value

of approximately
(HK$555,000)/
HK$983,000
- IERENETERE F=R WHA MEEACERERT ERTUSIATEY TREALEEEN/
B WERHES ia (B2 5%REH
HRREZ JF LR DFE (A /%
& 1049(555,000% 7T
/98300087

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair values of financial assets that are measured at fair value on

35. TR @
SHMTANATENE (&)

BEEEBELULFEFEZEZHE

a recurring basis (Continued) EZRTFE (&
Significant Relationship of Sensitivity of
Fair value  Valuation techniques unobservable unobservable input(s)  fair value to
Fair value as at hierarchy  and key inputs input(s) to fair value the input(s)
HERATR EART FOBREARER ATEHBAMEZ
ATHE ATERR  TEEARR BREAYR ATEZRR HRE
2022 2021
ZE-CE I -E
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Mizk TEr TER
2. Equity investments at FVTOCI
(Continuea)
2. BATEBEEMEZERAT

R2RERE (B)

- Unlisted equity investment 18 4379 2453 level 3 2022: Market approach  Price to sales ratio: 294 The higher the ratio, the 5% increase/(decrease)
which principally engages and discount for lack higher the fair value; in price to sales ratio
in provision of asset of marketabilty: 20% the higher discount would result in increase/
management of unlisted rate, the lower the fair (decrease) in fair
investments in the PRC value value of approximately

HK$71,000

- FENSATEFLTR B/ ZECZEIHHE BEE2MRBIZT  LEMBAATES  mEEEN/ (80) 5%
BRUBEEEERNGE BRBUEER 0% B BEZERAR  RERATEEN/
TTRERE TEHMA (D) 471,005 7

2021: Based on the /A
investee’s financial
posttion and using
NAV

TRC-FIERER TER
BEMBRN KR
REREETER
P

N/A

TER

5% increase/(decrease)
in discount for lack of
marketability would
result in increase/
(decrease) in fair
value of approximately
HK$18,000
BREmEREERREN
/ (B) D% EHA
FEEI/ (AL &
18,0007

N/A

TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair values of financial assets that are measured at fair value on
a recurring basis (Continued)

35. EMT A ®w

TRMIANAFEFAE (B

EEMBEULFEFEZZHE
EZAFE #)

Significant Relationship of Sensitivity of
Fair value  Valuation techniques unobservable unobservable input(s)  fair value to
Fair value as at hierarchy  and key inputs input(s) to fair value the input(s)
BT EARH FOBREARER ATEHBAMEZ
ATE ATERR  TEEARR BREAYR ATEZRR HEE
2022 2021
ZE-CF &
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Mizk TEr TEL
2. Equity investments at FVTOCI
(Continuea)
2. BATEZEEMEZERAT

RZRERE (B)

- Unlisted equity investment 18 1,140 3681 level 3 2022: Market approach  Enterprise value to The higher the ratio. the 5% increase/(decrease)
which principally engages in sales ratio: 6.6 and higher the fair value; in enterprise value
manufacturing and sales of discount for lack of the higher discount o sales ratio would
electronic components marketability: 20% rate, the lower the fair result in increase/

value (decrease) in fair
value of approximately
HK$609,000
- IEBNESFRMARER B ZTIIEIHEE CLENE c6%RE WERMBIATEY  AEENEEN/ (D)
HEMNIE LTRERE THEREMRER. B RRIURAL  SHRERATEEM
20% TFiEHE / (2b) 43609,0007%
T
2021: Based on the N/A N/A N/A
investee’s financial
position and using
NAV
TRC-FIERER TER TEH TEH
BEMBHRN KR
REREETER
P

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both years.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. £ERIT A @&
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements BZRAFEFEZHER
Equity Financial
investments assets
at FVTOCI at FVTPL

BATE  RATHE
ERHM  EERE

2HEB AR FiRZ
ZIGHERE EREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 January 2021 A TE_—F—H—H 123,781 88,018
Purchases BE 36,930 33,997
Reclassification from interests in BEE AR ERENDLE
associates 18,000
Disposal HE (562,876) (60,791)
Change in fair value recognised in Rz AT EEF)
— profit or loss -R1E= - 7,961
— other comprehensive income ~-REMEEEA (18,698) -
Exchange realignment bE R aH %L 1,625 3,039
At 31 December 2021 and N2 —F+"H=+—H
1 January 2022 E_E-__F#—F—H 108,762 72,224
Purchases BE 5,812 20,311
Disposal HE (11,790) (11,765)
Change in fair value recognised in Rz AT EEF)
— profit or loss - Em - (10,748)
— other comprehensive income -REMEEERA (6,735) -
Exchange realignment bE R aE %L (2,845) (5,603)
At 31 December 2022 W2 _F#+"HB=+—H 93,204 64,419
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other than URTEFAEZEMEERERZR
fair value TE
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts RABIESBRD» REHMAARNE
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised MEENRETHEENREERAER S
cost are not materially different from their fair value as at 31 T TERTE—H+"A=+—HZ
December 2022 and 2021. NEEBEEAHAC

Annual Report 2&2% 225
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 36.
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

EHRMETEMELEERE
Z H R

TRFMTEERETBMELERZ
2F OFERSRIFRTEH MBS
@Jﬁizﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁwiiﬂijﬁﬁ%ﬁ

2 ZEREMEFRKRFEREN K
%l??é\fﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁPﬁiﬁ%mﬁéﬁﬁb
FRELZIREME-

Borrowings

f&m=x

HK$'000

TFAET

At 1 January 2021 N2 _—F—HF—H 473,389
Financing cash flows MERERE -
Repayment of borrowings by lessees A NEEER (63,108)
Repayment B (1,204)
Foreign exchange translation SNBSS 14,614

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 T2 —HF+ZHA=+—H

kRZZE2-"F—HF—H 423,691

Financing cash flows MERESRE -
Derecognition of financial liabilities SRS BRI (232,460)
Repayment of borrowings by lessees A NBIRER (12,033)
Foreign exchange translation INEAR S (26,553)
At 31 December 2022 R_E-_—F+"F=+—H 152,645

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their
entirety

The Group entered into sale-leaseback transaction and finance
lease receivables transfer agreements (the “Agreements”) and
transferred certain sale-leaseback and finance lease receivables
(the “Transferred Lease Receivables”) to banks and other financial
institutions for financing. Under the Agreements, the banks and
other financial institutions have recourse right and the Group
has the obligation to reimburse the banks and other financial
institutions for loss of rental if any lessees have late and default
payment. As the Group has not transferred the significant risks
relating to these Transferred Lease Receivables, it continues to
recognise in their full carrying amount and has recognised the
cash received as repayment of the relevant secured borrowings.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, repayment of
borrowings of HK$12,033,000 (2021: HK$63,108,000) in respect
of the Transferred Lease Receivables as set out in note 36 was
made by relevant leasees directly to banks and/or other financial
institutes.

The following tables provide a summary of carrying amounts
related to transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in
their entirety and the associated liabilities:

37.

HEREMEE

HEREARILIEIZEHNEE

REBMITUIERLBBERZ MEWRME
HESERE (R EEETER
@%ﬂ XA B ERYGR (B8R

EREWEN) TIRITREMS RSB
R o RIE R IRIT R EM SRS
BEEBRE MEABABFERCRIE
4 AEBBETEMNBITREMER
BB L AN AEELERILE
LEEEHERNTEBREERN > A
IEIFERERE 2 EPARE A > W A% FTURER
HIRERTAEREMAIRRENR &
EIERT T+ A=F+—HIFE>
AR ES6P T E N B R E RN
Bi1215=12,033,000/8 7T (ZE_—4F:
63,108,000787T) JTH BRI AR A BIZE
RIT R, REMERIABIEL o

THIRE M R EEAIR T2 &L
HESREYE RS E KRR & (RRVARE(E

2022 2021

-z 2T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAT TFAET

Carrying amount of transferred assets BEREEREE - 158,270
Carrying amount of associated liabilities s REZRmEE (152,645) (423,691)
Net position JRRE (152,645) (265,421)

Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

37.

38.

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their
entirety (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, the Group had certain other finance lease
receivables transfer agreements (the “Non-recourse Agreements”)
and transferred certain finance lease receivables with interests
(the “Non-recourse Transferred Lease Receivables”) to banks
and other financial institutions for financing without recourse with
an aggregate amount of HK$2,576,931,000. Under the Non-
recourse Agreements, the banks and other financial institutions do
not have recourse right and the Group does not have the obligation
to reimburse the banks and other financial institutions for loss of
rental if any lessees have late and default payment. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Group has transferred all
risks and rewards relating to these Non-recourse Transferred
Lease Receivables. Accordingly, it has recognised the full carrying
amounts of the Non-recourse Transferred Lease Receivables and
the associated liabilities. During the year ended 31 December
2021, the Group has not recognised any loss in relation to the
continuing involvement, both during the period or cumulatively.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Same as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, during the year the Group had the following
transactions with related parties.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel of the Group,
represented by the directors and chief executive of the Company,
during the year are set out in note 9. The remuneration of directors
and chief executive is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and market trend.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEZMEHEEEERAR

37.

38.

HIESHREE @

HERBAKILIEIZENEE (B)

W_E_—F+"F=+—H>K~EH
BEETHMREREES RN ES:E =S
(MBREWZR)) EEE T E/ME
TAEREWE (MRERECEEREREI
) FIRTREMSRMEEURES T
2,576,931,000/8 7 (EBERE) < RIEMEE
R IRIT R E M R E I e
R M E AR AT RAIREEEL
AEE B R SR E IR T R H At b
BZHSBL - NBEERS AEH
Bt ERERE SRR E R
B2 T Z A MK - Fit > SR
BRECEEAEERINTIERaEN
EWREE RNEE_E-_—F+_4
= +—HIEFE AEET E AR
REHARERES AR kSR o

RS X5
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39.

Particulars of the major subsidiaries of the Company at 31

December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

o

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

FEMBATZFE

TERCCERZE-F+TAR

Proportion of nominal

=+ —H TxREEEMBRBZFIE
LI

Place of value of issued
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid share capital/registered
Name of subsidiaries registration share capital (Note a) capital held by the Company Principal activities
B1iAve ERITRAERE FARFRERTRE/
WEAR%E sHtEs (Hf5ta) AMEFZEGLS FEXH
2022 2021
“EICE %

Able Winner International Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding

EBERERAT &% EERIET RERR

Upmove International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding

BIRERERAT &% EERIET RERR

Elegant Basic Investments Limited ~ BVI Ordinary shares US$100 100% 100%  Investment

REREERAR HEERUREE  BERI0ET RE

TF Advances Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$1 100% 100% Treasury investment activities including

money lending
&% EERIET BERBXHEENE
Multi Kingdom Investment Limited ~ BVI Ordinary shares US$100 100% 100%  Property investment
EREYEHE  EBRI0ET ES
Amaze Global Limited BVI Ordinary shares US$1,000 100% 100%  Office management
EEEYEHE  EBRI100ET WAEER
BJEGA The PRC 1S$36,000,000 51.39% 51.39% Provision of finance lease and related
consulting services in the PRC
HE 36,000,000 TEHER MR ERE RBAAR
%

8% (KF) MEMEBRAR"  ThePRC RMB200,000,000 51.39% 51.39% Provision of finance lease and related
(transliterated as Ever Grand consulting services in the PRC
(Tianjin) Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.

(“TJ EG”)#)

8% (K2 MEMEBRAE  +E AR 200,000,007 EREREMER S REHSHAR
(ES:4EE) %

EEREEMRREBRAT  ThePRC HK$130,376,000 100% 100% Research & development,
(transliterated as Qikang Biological manufacturing and sales of food
Technology Limited (“Qikang"))* additives and health beverage

products in the PRC

EERREMRRERAT FE 130,376,0007¢ Bl e VI R R R m AR

U=

EERHE
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SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

39. TEMBLABTIZHE @

Proportion of nominal

Place of value of issued
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid share capital/registered
Name of subsidiaries registration share capital (Note a) capital held by the Company Principal activities
SRR ERIRERRE FAFIFRERTRE/
MEAELTE st (Hizta) AfERZEELRS  FEER
2022 2021
ZECCE “E°-F
MEEWRE (58 BRAE*  ThePRC RMB5,000,000 100% 100% Research & development of
(transliterated as Zhujian bioengineering technology and sales
Biotechnology (Shanghai) of food additives and health beverage
Company Limited (“Zhujian™))* products in the PRC
MEENEE (B8 BRAT  FE A 15,000,000 FEE N TREATRIRE KRB A
(M) AR EERmAHE
EEIREYREERAR" The PRC HK$126,310,000 100% 100% Research & development of
(transliterated as Livingzone bioengineering technology and
(Shanghai) Bio-Chem Technology property investment in the PRC
Co., Ltd (“Livingzone”))*
ERIREMRRERAT i 126,310,007t FEE I REMOMERNERE
(M)
Ever Grand Healthcare Company ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100% Provision of sale of medical and health
Limited Products
EEREEEERAT e 1,000%7t RUBEREROHE
Tripler Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Provision of sale of daily necessities and
personal hygiene products
RIBEERRT sy 1,000,000 7% RUEABRRENGEERNEE
BRHEREMRRBRAT  ThePRC RMB14,640,000 51.39% 51.39% Investment
(transliterated as Hainan Jintong
Huafu Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Hainan Jintong”))f
ERHERERRRER I AR #14,640,0007T RE
28 (NemER)
# The English transliteration of Chinese name is included in this report for

reference only and should not be regarded as its official English name.

A Established in PRC as sino-foreign joint venture.

* Established in PRC as wholly foreign owned enterprises.

Note:

(@) All principal subsidiaries operate principally in Hong Kong except BJEG,

TJEG, Qikang, Livingzone, Zhujian and Hainan Jintong.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results of the year
or formed a substantial portion of the assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
of the financial year.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of major non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling
interests:

39.

FEMBRTZFHE @

EFEA/ LRI ETBRERFEREG
VBN AEBEEZ T B D Z AT
BT -EEDR 27 HMNE AR
Z S IEREREFRBRR TR

LA B A B B S B T U
B

BB EAIFER IR R 2 AN
BAR

TRITEERER ERIFERARRE
mZ TEIFREMBARFIE

Place of Proportion of Profit/(loss) and total
incorporation and equity interest and comprehensive income/
principal place voting rights held by (expenses) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary of business non- controlling interest non-controlling interest non-controlling interest
BT FERMRERAERER  AETIEERRRES 2R
B AR %E TERLME et ] (B8 R2EKA/ B 4% RetIFRR RS
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
ZBIZf CT®°-F ICBIZE T3°-% BRI TE°-F
% HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TAET FER TER FER
BJEG The PRC 49 36,585 (22,089) 32,754 35
FRIER FE

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

BRAERBEREAIFERRRED Y
MEBARZMHERIZEH I T X oL
THHENBEZIEERE N EEH
Az ER e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39. FEMBARIZHEHE @
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material BEEREERKRRER ZIEREM
non-controlling interests (Continued) BaEHE (@
2022 2021
B T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHEIT
Current assets TMENEE 186,176 384,089
Non-current assets IERENEE 79,983 121,515
Current liabilities V=N (195,559) (490,795)
Non-current liabilities el e =] (16,776) (29,995)

Equity/(deficit) attributable to owners of the ~ AxABI¥EA AFE(LRERS, (Bo4t)

Company 21,070 (15,221)
Non-controlling interest IR AG SR 32,754 35
Revenue N 6,048 3,214
Expenses Fahvd (27,206) (42,685)
Other income and loss HW A K515 96,420 (5971)
Profit/(loss) for the year FmF] (6518 75,262 (45,442)

232 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39. X EMBATIZHE @
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material BEEREERRRER ZIEREIM
non-controlling interests (Continued) BREIHE (@&
2022 2021
-z T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT TFAET

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: TEIRIBREEENEN, (B8 -

Owners of the Company ZiN/NETEZZ =N 38,677 (23,353)

Non-controlling interests JEERR IR R TR 36,585 (22,089)
Profit/(loss) for the year FNiEA (518 75,262 (45,442)
Other comprehensive expense for the year A EIBEGFENEMEERRY :

attributable to:

Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZZ= DN (4,086) (4)

Non-controlling interests ISR R SR e R (3,866) 3)
Other comprehensive expense for the year  FEREMEERS (7,952) (7)

Total comprehensive income/(expense) THEEEGERZEERA G

for the year attributable to: 48%E

Owners of the Company Pi/NETEZ T DN 34,591 (23,356)

Non-controlling interests JFIER G R T 32,719 (22,092)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) EREEWA (i) 4858

for the year 67,310 (45,448)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating KESEBEE VIR RA

activities (i) 328 30,153 (3,319)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing BEFFHESZHERA

activities () J$%8 10,697 (11,847)
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEEHEEZIRE AT - 15,624
Net cash inflow REMAFER 40,850 458
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_-_"F+_FB=+—HIEFE

40. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 40. xR B Z TR AR R G
COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL &
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY
2022 2021
g T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Non-current assets EREEE
Interests in subsidiaries RB ARz #am 11 11
Amounts due from subsidiaries U B ATFIE 392,293 392,293
392,304 392,304
Current assets RENEE
Other receivables, deposits and HAEW R 2% R Ta s amiE
prepayments 1,472 1,436
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSH B A BFIE 5,000 5,048
Bank balances and cash RITHERR SRS 418 370
6,890 6,854
Current liabilities RENAE
Other payables and accruals HhE RS ER 11,320 11,560
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEI B ATRIE 14,270 -
25,590 11,560
Net current liabilities A EFE (18,700) (4,706)
Net assets BESE 373,604 387,598
Capital and reserve B s Be frE
Share capital fgs 168,730 168,730
Reserve (B3] 204,874 218,368
Total equity R 373,604 387,598

ER_E_=F=A_thBEEEZ
o WA TESRE

Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2023 and are
signed on its behalf by:

WONG LIK PING LAI KA FAI
EHE RENE
Director Director

EBFE BE

234 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AWM BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_Z_"F+_B=1+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 40. XA B 2T FBARRR K (H
COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL iR
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves AT ZHEED
Share
Share options  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
RiINEE  ERREGRE RetEsE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TAT AT FET FET
At 1 January 2021 K" —F—HF—H 1,557,598 727 (1,294,438) 203,887
Loss and total comprehensive expenses AEEHENEERYZ AR
for the year - - (45,019) (45,019)
Share options lapsed BRMERE - (727) 727 -
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZZ-—F+_A=1+—H
R-_E-_F#—-A—H 1,557,598 - (1,338,730) 218,868
Loss and total comprehensive expenses AEEBENE AR AR
for the year - - (13,994) (13,994)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_"F+_A=+—H 1,557,598 - (1,352,724) 204,874

4].

42.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 41.

There is no significant event affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the reporting period.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES 42.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to
current period’s presentation.

HEHRER

BREAERURL EEEZERNT
WEAREE-

EEEHF

AREERETEREFENDLE UL
iSiep S ELlySpa v

Annual Report 2022
“ECCEER

235



236

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Year ended 31 December
BE+-B=1+—HLEE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
2N\ “2-hE “ETEHF BT -F —EBECCE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FTET FAET TERT
RESULTS £
Revenue WA 90,523 71,155 66,184 123,630 77,786
(Loss)/profit before tax B (518) /A (359,626) (52,761) (342,603) (58576) 44,079
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisiiEs,/ D) (13,468) 1,798 (13975) (4,132) (466)
(Loss)/profit for the year TEE (58 /&H (373,094) (50,963) (356,578) (62,708) 43,613
Attributable to: THIE B
Owners of the Company —KATEEAN (372,098) (34,132 (242 933) (40,619) 7,028
Non-controlling interests 2O E L d (996) (16,831) (113,645) (22,089) 36,585
(373,094) (50,963) (356,578) (62,708) 43,613
As at 31 December
BK+ZB=+—H
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
“E-N\E EZ-hF 2ZTF 2”& Z®BZZC
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FTET FAET TERT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets mEE 1,878,875 1,546,675 1,185,716 1,081,497 801,335
Total liabilities mas (951,174) (685,656) (611,098) (565,751) (264,676)
927,701 861,019 574,618 515,746 536,659
Equity attributable to TR IR |
Owners of the Company —KATEEAN 787,937 740,419 568,063 515,711 503,905
Non-controlling interests 2O E L d 139,764 120,600 6,555 35 32,754
927,701 861,019 574,618 515,746 536,659

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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